
 
   
      

 LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT MEETING AGENDA 

    
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DATE:   November 9, 2021 
TIME:  5:30 p.m.  

 
 
POSTING:  This agenda was posted prior to 5:00 p.m. on November 4, 
2021, at the District Board Room, District Office, & the District Website 
 
Pursuant to AB 361 and state and local recommendations of social 
distancing in response to the COVID-19 emergency, the meeting will be 
conducted as a hybrid (in-person and via GoToMeeting) meeting. In-
Person Public Participation: Members wishing to attend the meeting in-
person should be prepared to wear a face covering. 

 
TELECONFERENCE ACCESS 

To join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/739103973  

and or by  
phone 1 (571) 317-3122 and enter the access code 739-103-973 

To self-mute your line, press *6 on your keypad 
To unmute your line, press *6 on your keypad 

 
MEETING LOCATION 

LACSD Blue Jay Board Room 
27307 State Hwy. 189, Suite 104 

Blue Jay, CA 92317 
 
 
A.      CALL TO ORDER – John Wurm, President 
B.      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
C.      AGENDA POSTING CERTIFICATION 
D.      ROLL CALL 
E.      APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Additions and/or Deletions) 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/739103973
tel:+15713173122,,739103973
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F. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the agenda is reserved for the public to speak to the
Board of Directors on matters within the jurisdiction of the Lake
Arrowhead Community Services District that are not on the agenda. No
action may be taken by the Board, except to refer the matter to staff
and/or place it on a future agenda. It is in the best interest of the person
speaking to the Board to be concise and to the point. A time limit of
five minutes per individual will be allowed.

Any person wishing to comment on an item that is on the agenda are
invited to participate via teleconference or submit comments via email
to the Board Secretary at kfield@lakearrowheadcsd.com by Tuesday,
November 9, 2021, at 4:30 p.m. Please note that submitting a written
comment is voluntary, and all persons may attend the meeting whether
they submit a written comment. Please limit comments to 300 words or
less. All submitted written comments will be read aloud during the
meeting. Upon signing into the teleconference, all participants will be
auto-muted, please unmute when recognized by the Board President,
then self-mute when finished speaking. Any person attending the
meeting in person wishing to speak on the Consent or Open agenda
may do so by raising his/her hand and being recognized by the
President.

G. CONSENT CALENDAR

The following consent items are expected to be routine and non-
controversial, and will be acted on at one time without discussion,
unless an item is withdrawn by a Board member for questions or
discussion. Any person wishing to speak on the Consent or Open
agenda may do so by raising his/her hand and being recognized by the
President.

1. Consider Reaffirming Resolution No. 2021-11 and Authorizing
Virtual Board and Committee Meetings Pursuant to AB 361.

2. Approval of Minutes.

September 28, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Page 6

Page 11



Board Meeting Agenda              November 9, 2021  Page 3 

(Directors:  Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and Wurm) 

3. Consider Accepting Blue Jay Deck Improvements Project #217 as
Complete.

4. Consider Accepting the Manhole Inflow Reduction 2021 Project
#225 as Complete.

5. Consider Approving Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Investment Policy.

6. Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2021-12 Authorizing and
Directing the General Manager to Sign and File a Financial
Assistance Application for a Financing Agreement for the State
Water Resource Control Board for Planning, Design and
Construction of the Rimforest Planning Project.

H. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

7. Departmental Reports.

a. District Engineer’s Report – Capital Improvement Program
Update Third Quarter 2021

b. Field Operations Manager’s Third Quarter Report

c. Finance Manager’s Fiscal Year 2021-22 Financial Statements
and Cash and Investment Report for the Quarter Ended
September 30, 2021

d. Human Resources Manager’s Third Quarter Report

e. Operations Manager’s Report

8. General Manager’s Report.
This is an information item.
(Presenter: Catherine Cerri, General Manager)

I. ACTION ITEMS

Page 19

Page 21

Page 23

Page 43

Page 48

Page 50

Page 55

Page 71

Page 74

Page 79



Board Meeting Agenda              November 9, 2021  Page 4 

9. Consider Accepting and Filing of the Fiscal Year 2020-21
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
(Presenter: John O’Brien, Finance Manager)

10. Consider Approving Purchase of 2-Way Radio Equipment
Procurement Project No. J103.
(Presenter: Matt Brooks, Operations Manager)

11. Consider Approving a Contract to Conduct a Compensation
Study.
(Presenter: Catherine Cerri, General Manager)

J. BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

Board members will have the opportunity to seek Board approval for
attendance at meetings of other organizations, seminars, conferences,
and other meetings not previously planned for and to report on
meetings that they have attended.

K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

L. CLOSED SESSION

The Board will go into Closed Session to discuss:

1. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation
Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9.
Name of case: The City of Hesperia v. Lake Arrowhead Community
Services District, et al., Case No. CIVIDS2019176

2. Conference with Real Property Negotiators.
Property: 27307 Hwy. 189, Blue Jay, CA 92317
Agency negotiator: Catherine Cerri, General Manager
Negotiating parties: Arrowhead Woods Architectural Committee
Under negotiation: Price and terms of lease

Page 82

Page 177

Page 179
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M. OPEN SESSION

The Board will come out of Closed Session and report on any action
taken.

N. ACTION ITEMS

12. Consider Approving Lease Agreement with Arrowhead Woods
Architectural Committee.
(Presenter: Catherine Cerri, General Manager)

O. ADJOURNMENT

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact Kathleen Field, Board Secretary (909) 336-7117. Notification 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. (28 
CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the 
records are distributed to all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at 
the District office located at 27307 State Highway 189, Suite 101, Blue Jay, CA 92317, and our website at 
www.lakearrowheadcsd.com. 

Page 216



LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: JOSEPH BYRNE, General Counsel 

SUBJECT: DETERMINE WHETHER TO CONTINUE REMOTE MEETINGS 
PURSUANT TO AB 361 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

That the Board reaffirm Resolution No. 2021-11 and vote to continue remote meetings 
pursuant to AB 361 based upon the continued state of emergency for COVID-19 and find 
that (1) the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency; (2) state 
and local officials have imposed or recommend measures to promote social distancing; and 
(3) meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees. 

B. BACKGROUND AND REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

At the last regular Board meeting, pursuant to AB 361, the Board of Directors adopted 
Resolution 2021-11, which authorized the Board to have remote meetings based upon the 
state of emergency for COVID-19, and made findings that (1) state and local officials 
have imposed or recommend measures to promote social distancing; and (2) meeting in 
person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees. This suspends 
certain Brown Act provisions related to noticing and remote meetings. 

In order to continue to have remote meetings, AB 361 requires that there be a state of 
emergency, that the Board reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency, and 
that the Board make one or both of the above findings. At the time this report was 
prepared, there was a continued state of emergency for COVID-19. As a result, this item 
is on the agenda for the Board to consider whether to reaffirm Resolution No. 2021-11 
and make the required findings to continue to have remote meetings pursuant to AB 361 
for the next 30 days. 

The Board of Directors may also decide to not proceed with remote meetings pursuant to 
AB 361, which would result in a return to in person Board meetings and all Brown Act 
requirements. 
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C. FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

This item does not qualify as a project under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA). 

E. ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution No. 2021-11 

65171.00001\34371640.1 
Continue Virtual Meetings Pursuant to AB 361 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-11 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAKE ARROWHEAD 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING VIRTUAL BOARD AND 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS PURSUANT TO AB 361 

WHEREAS, the Lake Arrowhead Community Services District ("District") is committed to 
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; 
and 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the District's legislative bodies are open and public, as required by 
the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 - 54963), so that any member of the public may 
attend and participate in the Agency's meetings; and 

WHEREAS, starting in March 2020, in response to the spread of COVID-19 in the State of 
California, the Governor issued a number of executive orders aimed at containing the COVID-19 
virus; and 

WHEREAS, among other things, these orders waived certain requirements of the Brown Act to 
allow legislative bodies to meet virtually; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Governor's executive orders, the District has been holding virtual 
meetings during the pandemic in the interest of protecting the health and safety of the public, 
District staff and Directors; and 

WHEREAS, the Governor's executive order related to the suspension of certain provisions of 
the Brown Act expires on September 30, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021 the Governor signed AB 361 (in effect as of October 1, 
2021 - Government Code Section 54953(e)), which allows legislative bodies to meet virtually 
provided there is a state of emergency, and either (1) state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing; or (2) the legislative body determines by 
majority vote that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of 
attendees; and 

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the District, specifically, a state of emergency has 
been proclaimed related to COVID-19, state and local officials are recommending measures to 
promote social distancing, and because of the ongoing threat of COVID-19, meeting in person 
would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Resolution No. 2021-11 September 28, 2021 Page 1 of3 
24148.00000\34371525. l 
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Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. Remote Teleconference Meetings: Consistent with the provisions of Government 
Code Section 54953( e ), the Board of Directors finds and determines that (1) a state of emergency 
related to COVID-19 is currently in effect; (2) state and local officials have recommended 
measures to promote social distancing in connection with COVID-19; and (3) due to the 
COVID-19 emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety 
of attendees. Based on such facts, findings and determinations, the Board authorizes staff to 
conduct remote teleconference meetings of the Board of Directors, including Committee 
meetings, under the provisions of Government Code Section 54953(e). 

Section 3. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect October 1, 2021, and 
shall be effective for 30 days or until this Resolution is extended by a majority vote of the Board 
of Directors in accordance with Section 4 of this Resolution. 

Section 4. Extension by Motion. The Board of Directors may extend the application of this 
Resolution by motion and majority vote by up to 30 days at a time, provided that it makes all 
necessary findings consistent with and pursuant to the requirements of Section 54953(e)(3). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Lake Arrowhead Community 
Services District this 28th day of September 2021, by the following vote: 

A YES: Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and Wurm 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Gross 
ABSTAIN: None 

John Wurm, President of the Board 
of Directors of the Lake Arrowhead 
Community Services District 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

I< o.rl,Q Q4-={LL.l)& 
Kathleen Field, Secretary ~ f the Lake 
Arrowhead Community Services District 
and to the Board of Directors 

Resolution No. 2021-11 September 28, 2021 Page 2 of3 
24148.00000\34371525.1 
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CERTIFICATION 

I, Kathleen Field, Board Secretary of the Lake Arrowhead Community Services District, hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of the Resolution No. 2021-11 adopted 
by the Board of Directors of said Agency at the regular meeting of said Board held on the 28th 

day of September 2021, by the following vote: 

AYES: Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and Wurm 
NOES: None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
ABSENT: Gross 

Kathleen Field, Secretary of the Lake 
Arrowhead Community Services 
District and to the Board of Directors 

Resolution No. 2021-11 September 28, 2021 Page 3 of3 
24148.00000\34371525 .1 
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DRAFT 
LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 

DATE:     September 28, 2021  
 
TIME:     5:30 p.m.   
     
PLACE:    Via Teleconference     
    https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/732179141   
    +1 (872) 240-3311  access code 732-179-141  
 
    LACSD Board Room  
    27307 State Hwy. 189, Suite  104  
    Blue Jay, CA 92317  
 
ATTENDANCE:   Board Members Present:  
    Steve Boydston,  Vice President  

Steve Keefe, Director  
Robert Morris, Director, joined at 5:33 p.m.  
John Wurm, President  

       
    Board Members Absent:    

Ryan Gross, Director  
 
    Others Present:   
    Catherine Cerri, General  Manager  
    Joseph Byrne,  General Counsel  
    Lindsay Puckett, Special  Counsel     
     Mike Blackwood, Field Operations Manager    
    Matt Brooks, Operations  Manager  
    Kathleen  Field, Board Secretary  
    Marc Lippert, Public Programs Supervisor    

John O’Brien, Finance Manager  
Natalie  Potter, Human Resources Manager  
Scott Schroder, Engineering Manager  
Members of the Public  –  None  

The Meeting was called to Order at 5:30 p.m. by John Wurm, President, who led those 
present in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 
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AGENDA POSTING CERTIFICATION 

Board Secretary Field certified the proper posting of the agenda and called the roll. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

The Board, by general consensus, approved the September 28, 2021, Regular Board 
Meeting agenda as presented. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No written or oral public comments were received. 

AWARD PRESENTATION 

President Wurm presented the Government Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA) 
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to Mr. O’Brien. 

CONSENT CALENDAR     
 
Listed  on t he Consent  Calendar  were  the following items  for approval:   
 
1.   Approval  of Meeting  Minutes.   

 
August 24, 2021 R egular Board Meeting Minutes  

 
Director Keefe  MOVED  and  Vice President Boydston  SECONDED  to approve the  
August  24, 2021, r egular  Board meeting minutes as  presented.  

 
Ms. Field took a roll call  vote as follows:  

 
CARRIED:  AYES:  Boydston, Keefe,  Morris, and  Wurm  
    NOES:  None  
   ABSTAIN:   None  

ABSENT:  Gross  

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

2. Departmental Reports. 

a. Update on the District Corporate Yard, Project No. 177 

Minutes of a Regular Board Meeting          September 28, 2021 Page 2 
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Ms. Cerri reported that she received notice today from the County Planning 
Commission that the District Corporate Yard Project will be on the County Planning 
Commission’s October 7, 2021, agenda. She has not received any opposition to the 
project and feels that it will pass; adding Mr. Thornton would like to start the project 
right away. 

b. Operations Manager’s Report 

Mr. Brooks reported that water consumption, lake draw, wells to system, and 
CLAWA water purchase were all similar to last year. Starting on October 1, 2021, the 
District will purchase approximately 140 – 150 acre feet of CLAWA II water, 
reserving some water for the Spyglass Project. At year-end 2020, 1275 acre feet of 
water was withdrawn from the Lake. If everything ends similar to last year, after 
subtracting the 150 acre feet of CLAWA II water, he was anticipating 1125 acre feet 
of Lake withdrawal, leaving a portion of the water allotment in the Lake for Lake 
level. Mr. Brooks responded to questions regarding water usage during 2019. Mr. 
Brooks also stated that staff was waiting to hear back from the contractor regarding 
Groundwater Well No. 2. Mr. Schroder provided an update on the Blue Jay 
Groundwater Well, stating that the geohydrologist reported that they drilled down to 
420 feet, and there were additional issues with equipment breaking. However, the 
project was back up and running. Ms. Cerri added, the first pump test, the fracture 
was up to 35 mpg, and since then, they have found two more fractures. 

3. District Education Video Presentation. 

Mr. O’Brien stated in the past; we had the calendar contest to increase awareness on 
water conservation. Due to the lack of response due to Covid-19, the calendar 
contests did not happen. The funds were re-deployed to a still image educational 
video. He commented that he and Mr. Lippert came up with the whiteboard video to 
accomplish the same message and answer ratepayer questions. Mr. Lippert stated that 
one of the challenges is the numerous time-consuming phone calls that Customer 
Service receives from part-time homeowners. A typical question, for example, was 
why the fixed fees are so much. He added the video might be a good tool for 
Customer Service to use in answering questions. Mr. Lippert expressed appreciation 
to Steve Keefe, who provided some drone photos and video. 

4. General Manager’s Report. 

Ms. Cerri commented that the water usage decrease in August might be attributed to 
the Governor’s Order to reduce consumption by 15% and might be claimed for water 
conservation. Lake level was more than six feet low, long-term projections from the 
State Water Board show a wet December, and January through March 2022 look dry. 

Minutes of a Regular Board Meeting          September 28, 2021 Page 3 
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ACTION ITEMS   
 
5.  Consider Approving  CalPERS Pension Unfunded Accrued Liability Funding  

Option.  
 
Mr. O’Brien  stated that the Unfunded Accrued  Liability  (UAL) represents the 
difference between  historical projected  returns from investments within the District’s 
pension plan versus the actual return on investments. In September of 2019, the  
Board reviewed and considered several options for paying down the District’s UAL.  
The District decided to make five  annual payments of  $1.7 million to pay down the  
outstanding liability and save a projected $13,680.00 in interest. Mr.  O’Brien pointed  
out several broader  economic matters that appeared since the last payment, which 
included economic  consequences related to the Covid-19 virus, a slight uptick in 
payment delinquencies offset by an increase in consumption, a nd rising costs. 
CalPERS fiscal year 2020-21 investment returns  were in excess of its stated discount  
rate of 7%, the discount rate  applied to future calculations will be reduced by .20%. 
The District can expect to be required to fund a slightly higher contribution rate in the 
fiscal year 2022-23. The  recommendation was  to approve a single lump sum payment  
of $1,700,000.00 towards the  District’s  CalPERS  Pension UAL to be disbursed as  
soon as administratively possible. Mr. O’Brien responded to que stions.  

 
 Director Morris  MOVED  and  Vice  President Boydston  SECONDED  to  approve a  
single lump-sum payment of $1,700.000.00  towards the District’s  CalPERS  Pension 
Unfunded Accrued Liability.  

 
 Ms. Field took a roll call vote as follows:  

 
CARRIED:  AYES:  Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and  Wurm  
    NOES:  None  
   ABSTAIN:   None  

ABSENT:  Gross  

6. Consider Approving the Purchase of One New Replacement Pump for Lift 
Station #7. 

Mr. Brooks reported that Lift Station #7 was located on the shore of Lake Arrowhead 
and pumps wastewater from the Lake Arrowhead Basin to the Willow Creek 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. This lift station is one of the District’s higher volume 
lift stations and will often use two and sometimes all three duty pumps during periods 
of heavy demand and or storm surcharges. The pump has sustained internal damage 
to the electric motor and was put out of service indefinitely. District staff will be 
installing the replacement submersible pump. The recommendation was to approve 
the purchase of one new HOMA replacement pump at a cost of $24,984.34 freight 
and tax included, from Multi W Systems, Inc. He added that the replacement pump 
was an unbudgeted item. Mr. Brooks responded to questions. 

Minutes of a Regular Board Meeting          September 28, 2021 Page 4 
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Director Keefe   MOVED  and  Vice  President Boydston SECONDED  to approve                 
the purchase of one new  HOMA  replacement  pump at a cost of $24,984.35 freight  
and tax included, from  Multi W Systems, Inc.  

 Ms. Field took a roll call vote as follows:  

CARRIED:  AYES:  Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and  Wurm  
    NOES:  None  
   ABSTAIN:   None  

ABSENT:  Gross  

7. Consider Approving the Purchase of One New 150kw Diesel Generator for the 
Corporation Yard and One New 200kw Diesel Generator for North Bay Intakes. 

Mr. Brooks commented that funds for the generators were from the Cal OES 
Community Power Resiliency Allocation to Special District Program Grant for 
$300,000.00 that Ms. Cerri applied for and received. The grant money can be used for 
generators, generator supplies, and radio communications. The recommendation was 
to purchase two generators; one for the future Corporation Yard and one for the North 
Bay Intakes or Bernina Water Treatment Plant. The fiscal impact would be 
$163,725.44 freight, tax, and AQMD permit included for both generators, leaving a 
balance of approximately $133,000.00 to purchase handheld radios, mobile radios, 
and repeaters. The grant funds must be expended by March 31, 2022. 

Director Keefe MOVED and Vice President Boydston SECONDED to approve the 
purchase of one new stationary 150kW diesel generator for the Corporation Yard at a 
cost of $46,007.71 and one new trailer mounted 200kW diesel generator to be used at 
North Bay Intakes or Bernina Water Treatment Plant at a cost of $117,717.73 freight, 
tax and AQMD Permit included, from Quinn Power Systems through Sourcewell. 

Ms. Field took a roll call vote as follows: 

CARRIED: AYES: Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and Wurm 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Gross 

8. Consider Voting for the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) 
Region 9 Board of Directors. 

Ms. Cerri reported that the vote was for the ACWA Region 9 Board of Directors by 
either voting for individual candidates or the Nominating Committee’s 
recommended slate. The recommendation to the Board was to vote for the 
Nominating Committee’s recommended slate. Ms. Cerri responded to questions. 
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Director Keefe MOVED and Vice President Boydston SECONDED to vote for the 
ACWA Region 9 Board of Directors in concurrence with the Nomination 
Committee’s recommended slate. 

Ms. Field took a roll call vote as follows: 

CARRIED: AYES: Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and Wurm 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Gross 

9. Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-11 to Continue Virtual Meetings 
Pursuant to AB 361. 

Mr. Byrne reported that there has been an Executive Order in place during the 
pandemic that essentially suspends certain provisions of the Brown Act, allowing 
legislative bodies to meet virtually. Mainly, AB 361 allows board members to 
participate remotely without posting their location or allowing the public to access the 
location they’re participating from, which would be required under normal Brown 
Act conditions. The Executive Order expires on September 30, 2021. Assembly Bill 
361 goes into effect on October 1, 2021, and this essentially allows the District to 
make a decision if they want to have virtual meetings under certain conditions. There 
are three parts to be met: (1) A declared state of emergency and, (2) state and local 
officials have imposed or recommend measures to promote social distancing, and (3) 
meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees. 
The decision before the Board is a resolution making these findings as of October 1, 
2021, and would allow the first meeting in October to be held virtually. Pursuant to 
the law, every 30 days the Board would reconsider their position or reaffirm the 
resolution. He emphasized that this is only possible during a declared state of 
emergency. In response to a question, he stated that this could be placed on the 
consent calendar at future meetings. 

Director Keefe MOVED and Vice President Boydston SECONDED to adopt 
Resolution No. 2021-11 to continue remote meetings in October based upon the 
continued state of emergency for COVID-19 and find that (1) state and local officials 
have imposed or recommend measures to promote social distancing; and (2) meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees. 

Ms. Field took a roll call vote as follows: 

CARRIED: AYES: Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and Wurm 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Gross 
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BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS 

No Board members requested to attend any meetings. 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

There were no Board member comments. 

CLOSED SESSION 

Immediately following the announcement of the closed session, President Wurm 
announced that he would be recusing himself from item 4, stating that he represented 
Arrowhead Woods Architectural Committee, Inc. as their attorney. The Board, Ms. Cerri, 
Mr. Byrne, Ms. Field, and Ms. Puckett went into the Closed Session to discuss items 1-4 
at 6:07 p.m. 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 
Name of case: The City of Hesperia v. Lake Arrowhead Community Services 
District, et al., Case No. CIVIDS2019176 

Ms. Puckett departed the closed session at approximately 6:37 p.m. and Ms. Field 
departed the closed session at approximately 6:38 p.m. 

2. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
Title: General Manager 

Ms. Cerri departed the closed session at approximately 6:45 p.m. 

3. Conference with Labor Negotiators 
Agency Designated Representative: Joseph Byrne, General Counsel 
Unrepresented Employee: General Manager 

Ms. Cerri and Ms. Field returned to the closed session at approximately 7:00 p.m. 
President Wurm departed the meeting at approximately 7:01 p.m. 

Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
Property: Groundwater in Connection with Properties in Arrowhead   
Woods 
Agency Negotiators: Catherine Cerri, General Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Arrowhead Woods Architectural Committee, Inc. 
Under Negotiation: Price and terms of payment 

OPEN SESSION 

Minutes of a Regular Board Meeting          September 28, 2021 Page 7 
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ADJOURNMENT  
 

      Director Keefe  MOVED  and  Vice President Boydston  SECONDED  to  adjourn            
the meeting. The meeting was adjourned  at approximately  7:17 p.m.  

 
CARRIED:  AYES:  Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and  Wurm  
    NOES:  None  
   ABSTAIN:   None  

ABSENT:  Gross  
  

                         

 
 

 
  

________________________________________ 

The Board came out of Closed Session at approximately 7:13 p.m. Mr. Byrne announced 
that there were no reportable actions taken in Closed Session pursuant to the Brown Act. 
President Wurm returned to the meeting at approximately 7:14 p.m. 

ACTION ITEM  
 
10.  Consider Amendment to General Manager Employment Agreement.  
 

Mr. Wurm  announced the consensus of the Board was  to give a retroactive raise to  
the General Manager  of an additional  three  percent retroactive  to January 1, 2021,  
through December  31, 2021, a nd effective January 1, 2021,  for a total increase for  
2021 of 3.6 p ercent.  

 
Director Keefe  MOVED  and  Vice President  Boydston SECONDED  to  give  a 
retroactive raise to the General Manager  of an  additional three  percent retroactive  to 
January 1, 2021, t hrough December 31, 2021, a nd effective January 1, 2021,  for a  
total increase  for 2021 of 3.6 p ercent.  

 
 Ms. Field took a roll call vote as follows:  

 
 CARRIED:  AYES:  Boydston, Keefe, Morris, and  Wurm  
    NOES:  None  
   ABSTAIN:   None  

ABSENT:  Gross  

Kathleen Field, Board Secretary 

Minutes of a Regular Board Meeting          September 28, 2021 Page 8 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: SCOTT SCHRODER, Engineering Manager 

CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ACCEPTING THE BLUE JAY DECK 
IMPROVEMENTS, PROJECT NO. 217 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept the work performed by Slater 
Waterproofing, Inc. (“Slater”) as complete under the construction contract for the 
Blue Jay Deck Improvements, Project No. 217. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

The project is complete. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

On May 13, 2021 the District received one (1) bid for the construction of this 
project. On May 25, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract 
for the project to Slater for their low responsive and responsible bid of $44,630. 

There was one change order on this project. Change order #1 was to patch concrete 
that fell off the raised platform and to patch void where the scuppers are located 
totaling $2,440, adjusting the contract price to $47,070.  
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D. FISCAL IMPACT 

The Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-21 included $45,000 for this project with funds 
provided by the Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund (Fund 210). At the time 
of the award, the project cost was estimated at $44,030, which included $34,000 
for construction and $10,030 for engineering, inspection, environmental services, 
and other related costs. As of October 28, 2020, the actual project cost is $50,181, 
which includes $47,070 for construction, and $3,111 for engineering, inspection, 
and other related costs. The total project cost is 11.5% above the budgeted 
amount. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

The acceptance of this project is an administrative action; therefore, it is not 
subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

None 

Blue Jay Deck Improvements (217) Acceptance 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: SCOTT SCHRODER, Engineering Manager 

CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ACCEPTING THE MANHOLE INFLOW 
REDUCTION 2021, PROJECT NO. 225 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept the work performed by Tryco 
General Engineering (“Tryco”) as complete under the construction contract for the 
Manhole Inflow Reduction 2021 Project No.225. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

The project is complete. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

On March 11, 2021 the District received four (4) bids for the construction of this 
project. On March 23, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction 
contract for the project to Tryco for their low responsive and responsible bid of 
$169,726. 

There was one change order for the project. Change order #1 was for reconciliation 
of quantities for ($5,000), adjusting the contract price to $164,726. This change 
order reconciled unused bid items and balanced the final contract price. 
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D. FISCAL IMPACT 

The Budget for Fiscal Years 21-22 included $260,000 for this project with funds 
provided by the Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund (Fund 210). At the time of 
the award, the project cost was estimated at $254,109, which included $169,726 for 
construction and $84,383, for engineering, inspection, environmental services and 
other related costs. As of July 20, 2021, the actual project cost is $216,876, which 
includes $164,726 for construction, and $52,150 for engineering, inspection, and 
other related costs. The total project cost is 18% below the budgeted amount. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

The acceptance of this project is an administrative action; therefore, it is not 
subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

None 

Vicinity map showing project location 

Manhole Inflow Reduction (225) Acceptance 

22



LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: November 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: JOHN O’BRIEN, Finance Manager/Treasurer 

CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: 2021-22 INVESTMENT POLICY 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the Lake Arrowhead Community Services District Policy and Procedures 
Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2021-22. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Per Government Code 53646(a)(2), the Treasurer may annually render to the Board 
of Directors a statement of its Investment Policy. This action will also delegate 
authority to the Treasurer to engage in the activities as described in the policy in 
accordance with Government Code 53607. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

California Government Code 53600 et. Seq. provides specific guidance on 
allowable investments and states a list of prioritized objectives. The District has 
elected to adopt an Investment Policy that is in accordance with these laws and, in 
some cases, is more restrictive. The District, as part of procedure, reviews and 
adopts its Investment Policy annually. 

Upon review, no changes are deemed necessary for the upcoming 2021-22 fiscal 
year. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact associated with the approval of this item. 
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E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

None. 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

• Draft Investment Policy Fiscal Year 2021-22 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD 
COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

INVESTMENT 
POLICY 

Fiscal Year July 2021 – June 2022 
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SECTION 1.0 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

1.1 Purpose 

1.1.1 This Investment Policy is intended to outline the guidelines and practices 
to be used in effectively managing the District’s available cash and 
investment portfolio.   It applies to all cash and investment assets of the 
District.  District monies not required for immediate expenditure will be 
invested in compliance with governing provisions of law, (Government 
Code Section 53600 et seq.) and this policy. 

1.1.2 Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances 
then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence 
exercise in the proper management of public funds; not for speculation, 
but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well 
as the probable income to be derived.  The standard of prudence to be used 
by the investment officials shall be the “prudent investor” standard 
(Government Code Section 53600.3) and shall be applied in the context of 
managing an overall portfolio. 

1.1.3 Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and the 
investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of 
personal responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market 
price changes, provided deviations from expectations are reported in a 
timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse 
developments. 

1.1.4 Cash with Fiscal Agents are exempt from the provisions of the 
Government Code Section 53600 et seq. and are therefore not covered 
under this Investment Policy, but rather they are governed by the debt 
agreement associated with the bond proceeds. 

1.2 Investment Goal 

1.2.1 The Board’s ultimate investment goal is to enhance the District’s financial 
condition while ensuring the safety of its funds invested and that funds are 
readily available when needed. 

1.2.2 In so doing, the District will abide by Section 53600 et seq. of the 
Government Code, which establishes specific rules for investment of 
public funds by California public agencies. 
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1.3 Objective 

1.3.1 The objective of this policy is to maximize return on investment of all idle 
funds through the optimum operation of the District’s “Cash Management 
System”.  This system is designed to reliably forecast and monitor the 
cash needs of the District. 

1.3.2 The Finance Manager will obtain the highest yield possible on District 
deposits consistent with the District’s policy of preserving principle and 
maintaining liquidity. 

1.3.3 As specified in Government Code Section 53600.5, when investing, 
reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and managing 
public funds, the primary objectives, in priority order, of the investment 
activities shall be: 

1.3.3.1 Safety: 

Safety is the minimizing of risk associated with investing and 
refers to the attempt to reduce the potential for loss of 
principal, interest or a combination of the two. 

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment 
program.  Investments of the Lake Arrowhead Community 
Services District shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to 
ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. 

To attain this objective, diversification is required in order that 
potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the 
income generated from the remainder of the portfolio. 

All District investments are controlled by the restrictions 
contained in Section 53601 of the Government Code. 
The First Level of risk control is to invest in instruments as 
described above that are the most credit worthy. 

The Second Level of risk control is to invest in instruments 
that have maturities coinciding with dates of anticipated 
disbursements, thereby reducing the risk of loss of interest 
from an early disposition or withdrawal. 

The Third Level of risk control is to invest in instruments that 
have the greatest potential for interest return, thereby avoiding 
the risk of lost earnings. 

The District will only invest in those instruments that are 
considered very safe, in accordance with Government Code 
Section 53600 et. seq. 
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1.3.3.2 Liquidity 

Liquidity refers to “the ability to easily sell” at any time with 
a minimal risk of loss of principle or interest. 

Liquidity is an important quality for District investments since 
cash flow can be unpredictable. 

The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to 
enable the Lake Arrowhead Community Services District to 
meet all operating requirements, which might be reasonably 
anticipated. 

The District will attempt to maintain liquidity of investments 
in conjunction with safety and yield. 

1.3.3.3 Return on Investments: 

Yield or rate of return is the earnings an investment can 
provide. 

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective 
of attaining a market rate of return throughout the budgetary 
and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk 
constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 

The District attempts to obtain the highest yield prudent when 
selecting an investment, provided that the criteria stated in this 
Policy for safety and liquidity are first met. 
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SECTION 2.0 

AUTHORITY FOR INVESTMENT OF DISTRICT FUNDS 

2.1 Authority 

2.1.1 Authority to manage the investment program is derived from California 
Government Code Section 53600 et. seq.  Management responsibility for 
the investment program resides with the Finance Manager. 

2.1.2 No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided 
under the terms of this policy. 

2.1.3 The Finance Manager shall be responsible for all the transactions 
undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the 
activities of subordinate officials.  Under the provisions of California 
Government Code Section 53600.3, the Finance Manager is a trustee and 
a fiduciary subject to the prudent investor standard. 

2.1.4 All investment transactions or reporting conducted by the Finance 
Manager, shall be reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors within 
thirty (30) days or at the next scheduled Board meeting following the 
transaction or report date.  

2.2 Policy Review 

2.2.1 The Finance Manager or his/her designee shall review the policy annually, 
for approval of the Board of Directors. 

2.3 Ethics and Conflicts of Interest 

2.3.1 District officers and employees with delegated investment program 
responsibility shall refrain from personal investment activities, which 
could conflict with the proper execution of the investment program or 
impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  Such activities include, 
but are not limited to: 

2.3.1.1 Knowingly using the same broker who is managing District 
investments for personal investments. 

2.3.1.2 Knowingly accepting gifts or entertainment from any broker 
who is managing District investments, or who has expressed 
a desire to manage District investments.  The term “broker” 
here refers to an individual and not to a brokerage. 
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2.4 Bonding 

2.4.1 The Finance Manager and any and all individuals involved in the 
investment practices and investment decisions of the District shall be 
bonded by a recognized insurance company, duly authorized to transact a 
general surety business in the State of California. 

2.5 Liability Insurance 

2.5.1 The District shall provide liability insurance for the protection of the 
Finance Manager and/or any authorized investment broker and other 
authorized individuals with fiduciary responsibility to the District’s 
investments. 
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SECTION 3.0 

INVESTMENT GUIDELINES AND STRATEGY 

The Board hereby adopts the following investment guidelines and strategies for the 
investment of District funds: 

3.1 Cash Availability 

3.1.1 Five-year cash flow analysis will be developed to serve as a basis for 
determining cash requirements and cash available for investment. 

3.1.2 Where practical, cash receipts will be invested on a pooled basis with 
separate accounting for Water, Wastewater, Deer Lodge Park and 
Rimforest Utilities. 

3.1.3 All investment earnings (losses) will be allocated regularly based on cash 
balances of each such account. 

3.2 Internal Controls Over Investments 

3.2.1 The District shall develop an adequate system of internal investment 
controls and a segregation of responsibilities of the investment functions 
in order to safeguard assets of the District.  The Finance Manager will be 
responsible for maintaining adequate internal controls over invested 
funds. 

3.2.2 The Finance Manager, or his/her designee will continually monitor 
investment advisors, brokers and financial institutions used by the District 
to ensure that they continue to provide expertise, safety of investments 
with maximum return on investment at a reasonable price. 

3.2.3 The Finance Manager, or his/her designee, will make every effort to enroll 
in continuing education programs to enhance knowledge and skills 
necessary to manage and oversee the District’s investments and its 
advisors. 

3.2.4 The District will only invest in those financial instruments that are 
authorized in the California Government Code in Section 53601 as 
amended and as specifically authorized in this investment policy. 
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3.2.5 The District will purchase financial instruments with idle funds and will 
periodically receive three (3) verbal quotes, except in cases where the 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund is utilized. 

3.2.6 The District may use the services of an investment advisor or broker; 
however, those advisors may at no time have autonomous control over 
District funds and those funds must be held by a third party financial 
institution. 

3.3 Authorized Financial Institutions and Dealers 

Investment advisors, brokers and financial institutions will be subject to the 
following requirements: 

3.3.1 Section 53601.5 of the California Government Code states that the 
purchase by a local agency of any investment authorized pursuant to 
Section 53601 or 53601.1, not purchased directly from the issuer, shall be 
purchased either from an institution licensed by the state as a broker-
dealer, as defined in Section 25004 of the Corporations Code, or from a 
member of a federally regulated securities exchange, from a national or 
state-chartered bank, from a savings association or federal association (as 
defined by Section 5102 of the Financial Code) or from a brokerage firm 
designated as a primary government dealer by the Federal Reserve bank. 

3.3.2 Before engaging in investment transactions with a broker/dealer, the 
Finance Manager, or his/her designee, shall have received from said firm, 
a signed certification form.  This form shall attest that the individual 
responsible for the District’s account with that firm has reviewed the 
District’s Investment Policy and that the firm understands the policy and 
intends to present only those investment recommendations and 
transactions to the District that are appropriate under the terms and 
conditions of the Investment Policy. 

3.3.3 The advisor, broker or institutions must have offices or branches in 
California. 

3.3.4 The Finance Manager, or his/her designee, will review the list of District 
financial advisors, brokers and financial institutions annually to ensure 
that they continue to be of the highest caliber in advice, safety and 
reputation. 

3.3.5 The District’s investments will be reviewed by the Finance Manager, or 
his/her designee, on a monthly basis, and will report on a quarterly basis 
the results of the review to the Board of Directors of the District. 

3.4 Financial Instruments 

INVESTMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES  July 1, 2021 PAGE 9 

33



The purchase of financial instruments will be made with the intent of holding the 
instruments to maturity unless market conditions dictate otherwise. 

SECTION 4.0 

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT 

4.1 Authorized and Suitable Investments 

4.1.1 The District is empowered by California Government Code Section 53601 
et. seq., which contains a detailed summary of the limitations and special 
conditions that apply to each of the allowed investment securities. 

4.1.2 The Finance Manager or his/her designee may only invest in financial 
instruments as described in the California Government Code Section 
53601 and in accordance with specific guidelines, which set forth the 
authorized financial instruments. 

4.1.3 The table on the following page compares California Government Code 
allowed investments with District Policy as to limits of maturity and 
percentage allocation of total portfolio.  Section 5 of this Investment 
Policy explains in detail the definition of the Investment types, as well as 
the legal authority for each. 
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CGC 

STATE CODE 

Max      Auth  Reqd

DISTRICT POLICY 

    Max    Auth     Reqd 
SECTION

53601 (a) 

 Investment Type

Local Agency Bonds 

  Matrty     limit (%)  Rating

5 yrs None None 

  Matrty   limit (%)   Rating 

5 yrs   10%  None

53601 (b) US Treasury bills, Notes or 
Bonds 5 yrs None   None  5 yrs   None None

53601 (c) State Registered Warrants, 
Notes or Bonds of this state 5 yrs None   None  5 yrs 10%   None 

53601 (d) State Registered Warrants, Notes 
or Bonds of the other 49 states None None     N/A None   None

53601 (e)   Notes & Bonds of other 
Local California agencies 5 yrs None    None  5 yrs None    None 

53601 (f) U. S. Agencies      5 yrs  None    None 5 yrs None    None 

53601 (g) Bankers Acceptances (1) 180 days 40% None 180 days 30%   None 

53601 (h)  Prime Commercial Paper (2) 270 days 10%or25% Al/Pl 270 days 10%   Al/Pl 

53601 (i)  Negotiable Certificates of 
Deposit (3) 5 yrs 30%   None 5 yrs   30% None 

53601 (j) Repurchase Agreements* 1 yr     None  None Not Allowed 

53601 (j4)    Reverse Repurchase Agrmts*   92 days 20% None Not Allowed

53601 (k)  Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 yrs 30%  A   5 yrs   10%  A

53601 (m)    Money Market Mutual Funds 
& Mutual Funds** 5 yrs 25% 2-AAA         5 yrs  15%   2-AAA 

53601 (n)   Collateralized Bank Deposits   5 yrs None None 5 yrs     None   None 

53601 (o)    Mortgage Pass-Thru Securities 5 yrs 20%  AA 5 yrs 20%    AAA 

53601 (q) International Bank Obligations 5 yrs 30% AA 5 yrs  30% AA

16429.1 Local Agency Inv. Fund (LAIF)   N/A    None None     N/A    None None 

* See California Government Code Section 53601 (j) for limits on the use of repurchase and reverse repurchase 
Agreements. 

** Mutual Funds maturity may be defined as the weighted average maturity; money market mutual funds 
must have an average maturity of 90 days or less, per SEC regulations. 

(1) No more than 30% of surplus funds may be invested in Bankers Acceptances of any one commercial bank. 
(2) Commercial paper issuers must be organized and operating within U. S. and have total assets in excess of $500 

million, and have “A” or higher rating for issuer’s debt, other than commercial paper, by Moody’s or Standard 
and Poor’s.  Purchases may not exceed 10% of outstanding paper of an issuing corporation. 

(3) Prohibited if the CD’s are issued by a state or federal credit union if a member of the legislative body or any 
person with investment decision making authority also serves on the Board of Directors, or any committee 
appointed by the Board of Directors, or the credit union committee or the supervisory committee of the state or 
federal credit union issuing the negotiable CD’s. 
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4.2 Collateralization 

4.2.1 All Certificates of Deposits must be collateralized by U. S. Treasury 
Obligations.  Collateral must be held by a third party trustee and valued 
on a monthly basis.  The percentage of collateralization on repurchase and 
reverse repurchase agreements will adhere to the amount required under 
California Government Code Section 53601(i)(2). 

4.3 Safekeeping and Custody 

4.3.1 All security transactions entered into by the District shall be conducted on 
a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis.  All securities purchased or 
acquired shall be delivered to the District by book entry, physical delivery 
or by third party custodial agreement, as required by California 
Government Code Section 53601. 

4.4 Diversification 

4.4.1 It is the policy of the District to diversify its investment portfolio.  Assets 
shall be diversified to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from over 
concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific 
class of securities.  Diversification strategies shall be determined and 
revised periodically.  In establishing specific diversification strategies, the 
following general policies and constraints shall apply: 

4.4.1.1 Portfolio maturities shall be matched versus liabilities to avoid 
undue concentration in a specific maturity sector. 

4.4.1.2 Maturities selected shall provide for stability of income and 
liquidity. 

4.4.1.3 Disbursement and payroll dates shall be covered through 
maturities investments, marketable U. S. Treasury bills or 
other cash equivalent instruments such as money market 
mutual funds. 
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4.5 Reporting 

4.5.1 In accordance with CGC Section 53646(b)(1), the Finance Manager, or 
his/her designee, shall submit to each member of the Board of Directors a 
quarterly investment report.  The report shall include a complete 
description of the portfolio, the type of investments, the issuers, maturity 
dates, par values and the current market values of each component of the 
portfolio, including funds managed for the Lake Arrowhead Community 
District by third party contracted managers.  The report will also include 
the source of the portfolio valuation.  As specified in CGC Section 
53646(e), if all funds are placed in LAIF, FDIC-Insured accounts and/or 
in a County investment pool, the foregoing report elements may be 
replaced by copies of the latest statements from such institutions.  The 
report must also include a certification that (1) all investment actions 
executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the 
Investment Policy, and (2) the Lake Arrowhead Community Services 
District will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months, as 
required by CGC Section 53646(b)(2) and (3) respectively.  The Finance 
Manager, or his/her designee, shall maintain a complete and timely record 
of all investment transactions. 

4.6 Prohibited Investments 

4.6.1 Under the provisions of CGC Sections 53601.6 and 53630, the Lake 
Arrowhead Community Services District shall not invest any funds 
covered by this Investment Policy in inverse floaters, range notes, or 
mortgage-derived, interest-only strips. 
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SECTION 5.0 

EXPLANATION OF INVESTMENT TYPES 

5.1 State and Local Agencies 

5.1.1 Definition: These are bonds, notes, warrants or other evidences of 
indebtedness of any local or State agency, including the District’s own 
bonds, within the State of California.  This includes bonds payable solely 
out of the revenues from a revenue producing property owned, controlled 
or operated by the local or State agency, or by a department, board, 
agency, or authority of the local agency or State. 

Legal Authority: Section 53601 (a,c,d,e) of the Government Code 
authorizes local and State agencies to purchase these bonds with no 
limitations as to the amount that can be owned. 

5.2 U. S. Treasuries 

5.2.1 Definition: These are instruments in which the full faith and credit of the 
United States Government is pledged. They are designated as Bills, Notes, 
or Bonds, depending on their maturity. 

Legal Authority: Section 53601(b) of the Government Code authorizes 
local agencies to purchase U. S. Treasuries with no limitations as to the 
amount that can be owned of each. 

5.3 Specified Bank Obligations 

5.3.1 Definition: This category includes securities issued by federally owned 
or sponsored agencies that have the backing of the full faith and credit of 
the Federal Government.  These securities are very liquid and marketable 
and they offer a wide range of available maturities.  Bank obligations in 
this category are limited to certain federally owned or sponsored agencies 
such as Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Land Banks, Federal 
Intermediate Credit Banks, and Federal Home Loan Banks.  Also included 
are obligations, participations, or other instruments of, issued by, or fully 
guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association, guaranteed 
portions of Small Business Administration notes, and obligations, 
participations, or other instruments of, or issued by, a Federal agency or a 
United States government-sponsored enterprise. 
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Legal Authority: Section 53601 (f) of the Government Code allows 
public agencies to invest in obligations issued by banks for these federally 
sponsored agencies. 

5.4 Bankers’ Acceptance 

5.4.1 Definition: A Bankers’ Acceptance (BA) is a time draft drawn on and 
accepted by a bank for payment of the shipment or storage of merchandise. 
The initial obligation of payment rests with the drawer, but the bank 
substitutes its credit standing for that of the borrower and assumes the 
obligation to pay face value at maturity. 

Legal Authority: Section 53601 (g) limits investments in this category to 
those Bankers’ Acceptances, which are eligible for purchase by the 
Federal Reserve System and not exceeding 180 days maturity.  In addition, 
no more than 40% of the District’s surplus funds may be invested in BA’s, 
and no more than 30% may be invested in any one bank. 

5.5 Commercial Paper 

5.5.1 Definition: Commercial paper consists of promissory notes of large 
business concerns of high credit standing, usually maturing in four to six 
months.  These Corporate IOU’s are bought and sold in the open market. 
Large companies raise short-term capital needs with this type of 
instrument. 

Legal Authority: Section 53601 (h) of the Government Code allows 
public agencies to invest in only “prime” quality Commercial Paper issued 
with the highest rating provided by Moody’s Investors’ Service, Inc. or 
Standard and Poor’s Corporation.  Eligible paper is further limited to 
issuing corporations:  (1) organized and operating within the United 
States, (2) having total assets in excess of $500 million dollars and (3) 
having an “A” or highest rating for the issuer’s debt, other than 
commercial paper, if any, as provided for by Moody’s or Standard and 
Poor’s.  Commercial Paper may not exceed 270 days maturity and must 
not represent more than 10% of the outstanding paper of the issuing 
corporation. In addition, the amount invested in this type of instrument 
cannot exceed 25% of the total funds available to the District. 
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5.6 Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 

5.6.1 Definition: A CD is a negotiable instrument evidencing a time deposit 
with a bank at a fixed rate of interest for a fixed period.  CD’s of this type 
are not collateralized and should be considered an unsecured deposit. 

Legal Authority: Section 53601 (i) of the Government Code allows public 
agencies to invest a maximum of 30% of surplus funds in the CD’s of State 
or Federal associations, credit unions or State licensed foreign banks. 
Section 53601 (i) also stipulates that these investments are not allowed if 
anyone on the legislative body, its officers or staff with oversight or 
signing authority also serves on its Board of Directors or a committee of 
the credit union.  Section 53638 stipulates that negotiable CD’s may not 
exceed the shareholder’s equity of the bank, and that the amount of CD’s 
purchased from a State or Federal association may not exceed the total of 
the net worth of that association unless the purchase amount is less than 
$500,000 and the deposits are insured or secured as required by law. 

5.7 Repurchase Agreements 

5.7.1 Definition: A Repurchase Agreement (Repo) involves two simultaneous 
transactions.  One transaction involves the sale of securities (collateral) by 
a borrower of funds, typically a bank or broker/dealer in governments or 
agencies, to a lender of funds.  The lender can be any investor with cash 
to invest.  The second transaction is the commitment by the borrower to 
repurchase the securities at the same price plus a predetermined amount 
of interest on an agreed future date. 

Legal Authority: Section 53601 (j) of the Government Code permits 
Repos in any security that is allowed for purchase as defined in that same 
section of the Code and for a term of one year or less.  It also places 
restrictions on the transactions.  The value of underlying securities must 
be at least 102% of the funds borrowed against those securities and 
transactions must be made only with primary dealers of the Federal 
Reserve Bank of New York.  Subject to fluctuations in the market, if the 
value falls below 102%, the value must be brought back up by the next 
business day. 

5.8 Medium Term Corporate or Bank Notes 

5.8.1 Definition: A Medium Term Note is a promise to pay, issued by a 
corporation or a bank at a fixed interest rate for a fixed period of nine 
months to fifteen years.  Most are unsecured, although some are 
collateralized or carry other credit enhancements such as letters of credit. 
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Legal Authority: Section 53601 (k) of the Government Code allows 
public agencies to invest a maximum of 30% of surplus funds in the 
MYN’s for a maximum of five years maturity.  The notes must be issued 
by an U. S. Corporation or by a depository institution licensed by the 
United State or any State.  To minimize risk, the notes must be rated in a 
rating category of “A” or better by a nationally recognized rating service, 
like Moody’s Investors’ Service, Inc. or Standard and Poor’s Corporation. 

5.9 Designated Mutual Funds 

5.9.1 Definition: These are companies that are defined under IRS Code 26 
U.S.C. 851, which are typically mutual funds that make diversified 
investments for their shareholders. 

Legal Authority: Section 53601 (l) of the Government Code authorizes 
investments in mutual funds as long as the mutual companies are investing 
only in those securities and obligations otherwise authorized for direct 
investment by public agencies.  Additionally, these companies must have 
attained the highest rating provided by at least two of the three largest 
nationally recognized rating services, or have an investment advisor 
registered with the SEC with assets under management in excess of $500 
million and with at least five (5) years experience investing in statutorily 
permitted securities. Investments in this category are also limited to 15% 
of total funds available. 

5.10 Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit (CD) 

5.10.1 Definition: A Non-negotiable CD is an instrument evidencing a deposit 
with a financial institution for a fixed period of time and normally for a 
fixed rate of interest. They can be collateralized with securities or 
mortgages or, if issued in denominations of $100,000 or less, they can be 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation if issued by a bank, 
or the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation if issued by a 
savings and loan association. 

Legal Authority: Section 53601 (n) of the Government Code allows 
public agencies to invest in Non-negotiable CD’s of banks or savings and 
loan associations with no limitations. 
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5.11 Mortgage Backed Securities 

5.11.1 Definition: Mortgage Backed Securities are issued by U. S. Government 
agencies and are collateralized by home loans which create mortgage 
pools which are purchased and serve as payment pass-through obligations. 

Legal Authority: Section 53601 (o) of the Government Code allows 
public agencies to invest in mortgage pass-through and mortgage backed 
securities issued by an issuer having an “A” or higher rating for the 
issuer’s debt as provided by a nationally recognized rating service and 
rated in a rating category of “AA” or better by a nationally recognized 
rating service.  Purchases of CMO securities are allowed for the District; 
they must carry a rating category of “AAA” or better, may not exceed 20% 
of the District’s surplus money that may be invested, and the term may not 
exceed five years. 

5.12 Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

5.12.1 Definition: The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is a special fund 
in the State of California Treasury created by law.  The law permits local 
government agencies (cities, counties, and special districts) to pool idle 
monies in this fund and utilize the trained personnel in the State 
Treasurer’s Office for its investment. 

Legal Authority: Section 16429.1 of the Government Code authorizes 
local agencies to invest through LAIF to a maximum of Forty Million 
Dollars ($40,000,000) per agency.  
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
 

MEMORANDUM  

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION 2021-12 AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN AND FILE A FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE APPLICATION FROM THE STATE WATER 
RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD FOR THE RIMFOREST 
PLANNING PROJECT 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize and direct the General Manager to 
sign and file a financial assistance application from the State Water Resources Control 
Board (SWRCB) for the Rimforest Planning Project.  

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

District staff submitted a pre-application to the SWRCB to consider funding for upgrades 
to the Rimforest water system. After review by the SWRCB, it was their recommendation 
to complete a full application to provide $300,000 for the planning and engineering of a 
groundwater well and redundant storage. This resolution is a requirement of the funding 
application. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Rimforest water system is currently supplied by one interconnection from the 
Crestline-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency and has only one water reservoir. This condition 
is not reliable and creates complications related to maintenance of the tank. District staff 
are in the planning stages to install a new groundwater well and redundant storage. Other 
benefits of these improvements include increased fire flow, improved water pressure in the 
upper zone, drought resiliency and reduced water purchase costs. 

The Rimforest water system is solely funded through rates from only 300 connections 
which makes it difficult to fund capital improvement projects. This application is for the 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund which may provide a 100% grant or loan forgiveness 
due to Rimforest’s economically disadvantaged status. After the initial planning stages are 
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complete, and an engineer’s estimate is calculated, a second application for the 
construction stage will be prepared. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

The application process has no financial impact. If the application is approved, the 
Rimforest water system could receive $300,000 to pay for the planning and engineering of 
the proposed improvements. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

This item does not qualify as a project under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) but the required analysis of potential environmental impacts will be conducted 
before any ground disturbing activities commence. 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

Resolution No. 2021-12 

Resolution 2021-12 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2021-12 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAKE ARROWHEAD 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
SIGN AND FILE, ON BEHALF OF LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION 
FOR FINANCING AGREEMENT FROM THE STATE WATER RESOURCES 
CONTROL BOARD FOR PLANNING, DESIGN, AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
RIMFOREST PLANNING PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (“DWRSF”) program is administered by 
the State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) division of Financial Assistance and 
assists public water systems in funding and financing the cost of drinking water infrastructure 
projects needed to achieve or maintain compliance with Safe Drinking Water Act and other 
water regulation requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the Lake Arrowhead Community Services District (“District” or “Entity”) wishes to 
apply for the DWRSF financial assistance from the SWRCB for the planning, design and 
construction of the Rimforest Planning Project; and 

WHEREAS, in order to submit the Financial Assistance Application for a financing agreement to 
the SWRCB for processing, the District Board of Directors must authorize a representative to sign 
and file the application and to take any and all actions necessary to obtain said financing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The General Manager (the “Authorized Representative”) or designee is hereby 
authorized and directed to sign and file, for and on behalf of the District, a Financial Assistance 
Application for a financing agreement from the SWRCB for the planning, design, and 
construction of the Rimforest Planning Project. 

Section 2. This Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to provide the 
assurances, certifications, and commitments required for the financial assistance application, 
including executing a financial assistance agreement from the State Water Resources Control 
Board and any amendments or changes thereto. 

Section 3. The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to represent the 
Entity in carrying out the Entity’s responsibilities under the financing agreement, including 
certifying disbursement requests on behalf of the Entity and compliance with applicable state and 
federal laws. 

Resolution No. 2021-12 November 9, 2021        Page 1 of 3 
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________________________________ 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Lake Arrowhead Community 
Services District this 9th day of November 2021, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

John Wurm, President of the Board 
of Directors of the Lake Arrowhead 
Community Services District 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ (SEAL) 
Kathleen Field, Secretary of the Lake 
Arrowhead Community Services District 
and to the Board of Directors 

Resolution No. 2021-12 November 9, 2021        Page 2 of 3 
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_______________________________ 

CERTIFICATION 

I Kathleen Field, Board Secretary, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct 
copy of Resolution No. 2021-12 duly and regularly adopted at a meeting of the Lake Arrowhead 
Community Services Board of Directors held on November 9, 2021, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTENTIONS: 
ABSENT: 

Kathleen Field, Board Secretary of the 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services 
District and to the Board of Directors 

Resolution No. 2021-12 November 9, 2021        Page 3 of 3 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   NOVEMBER  9, 2021  
 
TO:    BOARD  OF DIRECTORS  
   Lake Arrowhead Community Services District  
 
FROM:   SCOTT SCHRODER, Engineering Manager  
 
   CATHERINE  CERRI, General Manager  
 
SUBJECT:   ENGINEERING  REPORT –  CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENT  

PROGRAM UPDATE  3rd   QUARTER 2021  

A. RECOMMENDATION 

This is an informational item only. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

This is an informational item only. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Attachment 1 contains Capital Improvement Program Water and Wastewater Status 
Report – 3nd Quarter 2021. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

This is an informational item only. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

This is an informational item only. 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1: Capital Improvement Program, Water and Wastewater Status Report – 3rd 

Quarter 2021 
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Engineering CIP Projects 11/9/2021 
Project # Project Status 

218 LACC Well  #2 Rehabilatation Layne to flush well in the near future. 
221 GVWWTP Screw Press Procurement Review by Steve Ledbetter TKE. Delivery 11/17/2021 3+ weeks. Out to bid for construction during November. 
217 Blue Jay Deck Improvements To be accepted by the Board on 11/9. 
214 Palisades Sewer Rehabilitation Phase 4 Survey Completed Under Design. 
220 North Bay Slip Lining Phase 2 Plans are 95% complete. One conflict. 
192 Antler Wildrose Water Replacement Awarded to Altmeyer Construction. Start of construction during Spring. 
213 Dam Vault Upsize Responses back to Army Corps. TKE Reviewing Response. 
187 Blue Jay Well Under Construction.  
225 Manhole Inflow Reduction 2021 To be accepted by the Board on 11/9. 
226 I & I Manhole Rehabilitation 2021 Construction Completed on 10/26/2021. 
191 LS # 2 Relocation Met with Steve Ledbetter TKE. Steve is working with the village in conjunction with their Tesla project. 
177 Corporation Yard Grading plan is in final plan check. 
229 GVWWTP 1.0 MG  RW Pond TKE working on CEQA. 
228 GVWWTP SCADA Room Received proposal from Casas for $24,500. Staff is requesting quote for design- build. 
219 Maple WL Replacement Survey completed,Design in progress. Procurement of material bids on 11/4. 
179 Spyglass Slope Protection Under construction. Tank Demo on 11/01/2021. DN Tanks to start 12/01/2021. 
230 Edgewater to Village Cove Under Design. Steve to pothole. Out to bid for Procurement for materials on 11/4. 
186 12" WL Relocation St Hwy 173 Caltrans anticipates our portion of the work to start in February 2022. Out to bid for Procurement on 11/4. 

Project # Other Projects Status 
142 Solar Farm Support. 
J100 Hillside Ponds Support.

 - Diesel Bypass Pump Procurement for Mechanical Maintenance. 
J103 Radio Communications Procurement Bid opened on 10/7/2021- To Board on 11/9/2021 
231 Hesperia Buildings Demolition (231) Out to Bid in November 
232 Hesperia Well Rebabilitation (0232) Out to Bid in November 

- SWRCB Order WR 2006-0001 Complete for 2020/2021 
K-12 CDO R6V-2013-0022 Complete for 2020 2021 

Project # New Projects Status 
0 Rimforest Well and Tank Replacement FY 22/23 $1,065,000 - Kyle Groundwater/ RFP for Consultant (Mike T) Site Visit on 10/13/2021. 
0 LACC Ground Water Development Budgeting for future wells. 
0 Engineering CIP Quarterltly Report 11/9/2021 Board Meeting 

LEGEND 
Out to Bid- Bid Process 
Staff Report. To the Board of Directors for approval. 
Project Under Construction 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: MIKE BLACKWOOD, Field Operations Manager 

SUBJECT: FIELD OPERATIONS 2021 3rd QUARTER 
REPORT 

A. RECOMMENDATION 
This is an information item. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
This is an informational item. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
This report is to give a quarterly status update of current infrastructure maintenance 
activities in the Field Operations Department. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 
This is an informational item. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
This is an information item only and does not qualify as a project under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

• 2021 Quarterly Field Operations Water Report 
• 2021 Quarterly Water Leak Information 
• 2021 Quarterly Field Operations Wastewater Report 
• SSO Detail 
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FIELD OPERATIONS-WATER REPORT 

QUARTERLY YEAR: 2021 

Field Operations - Water 
ITEM 1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr. 

SERVICE INSTALL POTABLE 4 1 8 0 
SERVICE INSTALL FIRE 6 1 7 0 
SERVICE LINE REPLACE 4 7 7 0 
LEAK REPAIR SERVICE 9 24 29 0 
LEAK REPAIR MAIN 2 3 11 0 
HYDRANT REPLACE 0 0 0 0 
HYDRANT REPAIR 1 0 0 0 
VALVE REPLACE 0 0 0 0 
VALVE CAN REPAIR 2 0 12 0 
LEAK DETECTION 17354' 32503' 43953' 0' 
HYDRANT MAINTENANCE 42 18 59 0 
VALVES EXERCISED 109 47 160 0 
FLOW TEST PERFORMED 4 10 5 0 
CURB STOP REPLACED 9 7 18 0 
METER CHANGE OUT 2 2 4 0 
METER MOVE 0 1 2 0 
METER BOX REPAIR/REPLACE 6 4 3 0 
FLUSHING 79 51 103 0 
BALLARD, POST, POLE INSTALL/REPLACE 1 0 0 0 
PATCHES PERMANENTLY PAVED 5 15 15 0 

Service Order Work 
ITEM 1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr. 

DIG ALERT MARKINGS 771 1505 1591 0 
TURN ON/OFF METER 120 104 105 0 
CHECK FOR LEAK 25 33 43 0 
GET METER READING 128 111 116 0 
CHECK PSI/NO WATER CALL 12 16 22 0 
DIRTY WATER CALL 9 6 4 0 
INSTALL/REMOVE HYDRANT METER 0 0 0 0 
C.S.O.V. CHECK 8 5 10 0 
MEET WITH CUSTOMER 1 15 2 0 
LEAK METER BOX 8 33 21 0 
DOOR TAGS 1 4 6 0 

51



   

2021 3rd Quarter Water Leaks 

Date Address/Location 

Hydrant 
related 

leak
 Service 

Type 
Main 
Type Size 

Estimated 
Gallons 

7/2/21 248 Maple Dr. Steel 6 623 
7/6/21 755 Wayside Ln. Steel 1 650 
7/7/21 135 Fairway Dr. Steel 1 11,880 
7/8/21 27956 Peninsula Dr. Copper 1 100 
7/10/21 27775 N. Shore Rd. Steel 2 1,870 
7/12/21 27721 St. Bernard Dr. Steel 1 170 
7/13/21 1178 Nadelhorn Dr. PE 1 720 
7/15/21 319 Walnut Dr. Steel 2 1,404 
7/16/21 134 Fremont Dr. Steel 2 500 
7/20/21 1051 Saddlewood Dr. PE 1 360 
7/21/21 144 Brentwood Dr. Steel 1 360 
7/22/21 28990 N. Shore Rd. PE 1 500 
7/22/21 28566 Wabash Dr. PE 1 180 
7/23/21 143 Fairway Dr. Brass 1 5,320 
7/27/21 1176 Hwy 173 Steel 6 1,000 
7/27/21 436 Hwy 173 Steel 1 1,053 
7/29/21 Birchwood Dr. Steel 1 90 
7/30/21 27355 Matterhorn Dr. Copper 1 8,424 
8/2/21 1407 Yosemite Dr. Steel 1 1,968 
8/4/21 26584 Hwy 18 PE 3/4 37,380 
8/4/21 140 Fremont Dr. Steel 2 4,000 
8/14/21 28935 Mammoth Dr. Steel 3/4 400 
8/15/21 363 Hemlock Dr. Steel 6 350 
8/16/21 371 Hemlock Dr. Steel 2 1,404 
8/19/21 WCTP Brass 2 100 
8/26/21 26584 Hwy 18 PE 3/4 86 
8/27/21 27657 Peninsula Dr. Steel 3/4 1,247 
9/2/21 1120 Sandalwood Ct. Steel 8 258 
9/2/21 1684 S Way PE 1 2,493 
9/2/21 27751 Peninsula Dr. Steel 2 1,755 
9/2/21 889 Antler Dr. Steel 3/4 30 
9/5/21 943 Nadelhorn Dr. ACP 6 10,000 
9/7/21 27465 Bay Shore Dr. PE 2 1,800 
9/8/21 26429 Apache Trail Copper 1 5,000 
9/9/21 27657 Peninsula Dr. PE 2 50 
9/10/21 26825 Modoc Ln. Copper 1 1,000 
9/14/21 Hwy 173/ Mittry Dr. ACP 10 3,222 
9/15/21 278 Maple Dr. Steel 3/4 10 
9/20/21 27500 Meadow Bay Ct. Steel 1.5 20 
9/20/21 27888 N. Shore Rd. Steel 2 10,000 
9/21/21 26968 Golf Course Ln. Steel 1 50 
9/22/21 1185 Evergreen Ln. ACP 6 15,000 
9/29/21 27521 Peninsula Dr. ACP 12 61,000 
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Wastewater Collection Report 

QUARTERLY YEAR: 2021 

LINE CLEANING 1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr. 
VACTOR 0' 7399' 2476' 0' 
JET 19796' 44676' 16959' 0' 
POWER RODDER 2320' 6382' 13768' 0' 
BALLING/PIGGING 0' 0' 0' 0' 
*Contractor 0' 0' 0' 0' 
Debris removed during cleaning (gal.) 3,055 530 633 0 
PIPELINE INHIBITORS 
GREASE INHIBITOR 0' 1' 0' 0' 
ROOT FOAM INHIBITOR 0' 0' 0' 0' 
PIPELINE REHABILITATION 
INTERNAL PIPE REPAIR (trenchless) 3' 0' 0' 0' 
PIPE REPAIRS 19 10 12 0 
NEW PIPE INSTALLATION 76' 113' 25' 0' 
PIPE SLIP LINED 0' 0' 0' 0' 
MANHOLE REHABILITATION 
MANHOLE COATING 0 0 0 0 
NEW MANHOLE INSTALLATION 3 4 0 0 
MANHOLE REPAIR 6 1 0 0 
MANHOLE COVER GRADE CHANGE 0 1 13 0 
MANHOLES INSPECTED/SEALED 238 701 620 0 
TV INSPECTION/I&I INSPECTION 
TV INSPECTION 29081' 48140' 65233' 0' 
SMOKE TESTING 0' 85432' 1836' 0' 
FOG Inspection 26 0 5 0 
*Contractor 0' 0' 0' 0' 

SSO/SPILLS 
DISTRICT CATEGORY 1 0 0 1 0 
DISTRICT CATEGORY 2 0 0 0 0 
DISTRICT CATEGORY 3 1 1 0 0 
PRIVATE 0 0 20 0 
FLOODED HOME 0 0 0 0 
SERVICE ORDER WORK 
LATERAL INSPECTION 30 39 15 0 
DYE TEST 14 12 28 0 
ANTI-FLOOD INSPECTIONS 15 13 5 0 
SADDLE 0 0 0 0 
ODOR COMPLAINTS 4 11 9 0 
SEWER ISSUE - PRIVATE 19 18 20 0 
SEWER ISSUE - DISTRICT 3 7 4 0 
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2021  3rd Qtr. SSO Information 
CATEGORY 1 

LOCATION 

VOLUME 
OF SPILL 
(gallons) 

VOLUME 
RECOVERED 

(gallons) 

VOLUME 
TO 

SURFACE 
WATER 

(gallons) DATE CAUSE SIZE(inch) PIPE TYPE 

APPROX. 
AGE OF 

PIPE(years) 
482 State Hwy 173 2875 0 2875 7/14/2021 Damage to pipe* 12 Concrete 90 

* A length of rebar was 
driven into the pipe as a 

result of ALA trail 
improvements 

CATEGORY 2 
None 

CATEGORY 3 
None 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: November 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: JOHN O’BRIEN, Finance Manager 

CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND CASH AND INVESTMENT 
REPORT FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

This is an information item only. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

This is an information item only. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Quarterly reports are presented to the Board of Directors (Board) to provide the 
most current information on the financial activities of the Lake Arrowhead 
Community Services District (District) from which to base decisions.  Additionally, 
per the District’s Investment Policy, and as encouraged by California Government 
Code Section 53646, the Treasurer Finance Manager, or his/her designee, shall 
submit to each member of the Board a quarterly investment report. This report 
includes the year-to-date financial statements and cash and investment report 
through the first quarter of fiscal year 2021-22, covering the period through 
September 30, 2021.  

Summary of Significant Items – Financial Statements 
Districtwide operating revenue as of September 30, 2021 of $3.7 million, was 12% 
or $392,000 higher as compared to the same period last year.  Additional detail is 
below: 
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Arrowhead Woods Billed Units 
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• Water operating revenue was $1,899,000 or 14% higher as compared to the 
same period last year.  As compared to budget, water operating revenue was 
7% or $127,000 higher primarily due to actual consumption exceeding 
budget estimates. 

• Wastewater operating revenue was 11% or $167,000 higher as compared to 
the same period last year.  As compared to current year budget, wastewater 
operating revenue was 1% or $22,000 lower. 

• Deer Lodge Park operating revenue was even when compared to the same 
period last year and was 16% or $5,000 above budget. 

• Rimforest operating revenue was 4% or $2,000 lower as compared to the 
same period last year and was 6% or $3,400 below to budget. 

Consumption as of September 30, 2021, is as follows: 

• Water billed units were 5.4% more than the water conservation goal 2013 
and reflected an increase of .8% in consumption as compared to the same 
period last year. 

• Deer Lodge Park year-to-date billed units were 6.0% more as compared to 
the same period last year. 

• Rimforest year-to-date billed units were 2.5% lower as compared to the 
same period last year. 
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Operating Expenses through September 2021 

PY var Bgt 
Expense FYTD 2021-22 PYTD 2020-21 PYVar YTDBgt BgtVar 

% Var% 

Wages 1,(}46,948 1,020,194 26,754 3% 1,280,025 (233,077) -18% 

Health Ins 280,829 284,550 (3,721) -1% 335,730 (54,901) -16% 

Reti rem ent 261,381 266, 277 (4,896) -2% 301,179 (39, 798) -13% 

FICA 78, 301 75,414 2,888 4% 87,975 (9, 674) -11% 

Employer Ins 27,435 23,&87 3,548 15% 34,79,1 (7, 356) -21% 

Tra ining 50,695 53,023 (2,328) -4% 36,051 14, 644 41% 

Supplies 57,579, 56,564 1,015 2% 65,487 (7,908) -12% 

Equipm ent 100,864 158,954 (58,090) -37% 221,271 (120,407) -54% 

Fleet 22,981 19,690 3, 29,2 17% 44,607 (21,626) -48% 

Chemica ls 55,171 51,311 3,860 8% 53, 271 1,900 4% 

M eters 28, 740 3,581 25,159' 0% 31,620 (2,880) -9% 

liability Ins 66,010 90,660 (24,650) -27% 59,103 6,907 12% 

Outside Services 130,518 170,445 (39,, 926) -23% 246,795 (116, 277) -47% 

IT Services 53, 361 29,936 23,425 7&% 92,961 (39, 600) -43% 

l ega l 4,095 18,&84 (14,788) -78% 51,480 (47, 385) -9'2% 

Electric 180,209 211,555 (31,346) -15% 165,063 15,146 9% 

Utilities 101,995 W0,356 (98,361) -49% 112,098 (10,103) -9% 

Permits 16, 619 15,626 99,2 6% 37,035 (20,416) -55% 

Oth er 1,001 1,401 (400) -29% 7,563 (6,562) -87% 

Subt ot al 2,564, 731 2,752,306 (187,575) -7% 3, 264,105 (59,9, 374) -21% 

Water Purchase 52,821 96,910 (44,089) -45% 137,868 (85,047) -62% 

Grand Tot al 2,617,552 2,849,, 217 (231,665) -8% 3,401,9,73 (784,421) -23% 

Overall operating expenses as of September 30, 2021, were 7% lower than prior 
year and 21% below budget.  Significant increases as compared to budget include 
increases in insurances and utilities.    

The District purchased 5.39 acre-feet of water from CLAWA for Arrowhead 
Woods in the first quarter.  The District has a balance of $2.3 million for water that 
was prepaid to CLAWA. Also, in the first quarter, Deer Lodge Park purchased 9.45 
acre-feet and Rimforest purchased 11.84 acre-feet from CLAWA. 

Summary of Significant Items – Cash and Investment Report 
All District investment activities and all components of the investment portfolio for 
the period comply, in all respects, with the District’s Investment Policy.  As of 
September 30, 2021, the District’s market value of cash and investments totaled 
$42.2 million and are allocated to the following accounts: 

• Checking Account - $6.2 million or 14.8% of portfolio allocation 
• Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) – $28.0 million or 66.1% of 

portfolio allocation 
• Corporate Bonds - $2.9 million or 7.0% of portfolio allocation 
• Negotiable CDs - $5.1 million or 12.1% of portfolio allocation 

The majority of District funds are held in LAIF which has a current rate of .21%. 
All investments held by the District outside of LAIF have stated rates of .75% to 
3.2%. The District’s interest income was 56% or $39,000 lower as compared to 
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the same time in the prior year due to falling interest rates and higher yielding 
investments being called prior to maturity. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

This is an information item only. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

This is an information item only. 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

• Q1 2021-22 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
• Q1 2021-22 Statement of Net Position 
• Q1 2021-22 Cash Flow Statement 
• Q1 2021-22 Cash and Investment Report 

58



Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Statement of Net Position as of September 30, 2021 

Assets Water Wastewater DLP Rimforest Total 
Current Assets: 
Pooled Cash and Investments 9,101,708 19,065,112 163,873 (82) 28,330,611 
Restricted Cash and Investments 12,075,021 1,664,780 429,255 - 14,169,056 
Accounts Receivable 789,436 2,540,592 13,454 28,302 3,371,784 
Restricted Accounts Receivable 48,525 - - - 48,525 
Tax Roll Receivable - 1,668,727 - - 1,668,727 
Interest Receivable 5,973 11,092 - - 17,065 
Unbilled Accounts Receivable - - - - -
Other Receivables & Deposits 36,548 1,825 - - 38,373 
Parts Inventory 224,791 37,790 - - 262,581 
Prepaid Expenses 280,960 371,002 1,356 2,712 656,030 
Prepaid Water 2,313,794 - - - 2,313,794 
Interfund Receivable 1,880,220 - - - 1,880,220 
Total Current Assets 26,756,976 25,360,921 607,938 30,931 52,756,766 

Capital Assets: 
Fixed Assets 62,743,141 84,781,830 2,019,488 476,984 150,021,443 
Accumulated Depreciation (26,109,636) (40,775,515) (917,400) (99,416) (67,901,968) 
Intangible Asset 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 
Accum Amortization of Intangible (113,636) - - - (113,636) 
Construction in Progress 1,336,424 5,039,477 - 895 6,376,796 
Net Capital Assets 38,856,292 49,045,791 1,102,088 378,463 89,382,635 
Total Assets 65,613,268 74,406,712 1,710,026 409,394 142,139,400 

Deferred Outflows 2,554,136 3,469,062 43,343 43,343 6,109,884 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable (129,474) (468,652) 6,399 2,327 (589,400) 
Accrued Payroll and Benefits 468 - - - 468 
Compensated Absences 286,502 452,622 - - 739,124 
Deferred Revenue - 1,453,618 - - 1,453,618 
Deposits & Retentions 57,642 203,001 - - 260,643 
Interest Payable 121,125 235,125 - - 356,250 
SRF Loan & Notes Payable - - - 28,323 28,323 
Bonds Payable 219,300 425,700 - - 645,000 
Interfund Payable 827,297 1,052,923 - - 1,880,220 
Total Current Liabilities 1,382,860 3,354,338 6,399 30,650 4,774,247 

Non-Current Liabilities: 
Compensated Absences 120,920 186,060 - - 306,980 
Net Pension Liability 3,420,074 4,028,087 76,002 76,002 7,600,165 
SRF Loan & Notes Payable - - - - -
Bonds Payable 5,599,800 10,870,200 - - 16,470,000 
Bond Premium 848,719 1,647,513 - - 2,496,232 
Net Non-Current Liabilities 9,989,513 16,731,860 76,002 76,002 26,873,377 
Total Liabilities 11,372,373 20,086,198 82,401 106,651 31,647,624 

Deferred Inflows - Pension 497,197 585,581 11,049 11,049 1,104,875 

Net Position 
Restricted 14,437,340 1,664,780 429,255 - 16,531,375 
Unrestricted 8,823,301 17,789,324 128,576 (15,103) 26,726,099 
Capital Assets 33,037,192 37,749,891 1,102,088 350,140 72,239,312 
Total Net Position 56,297,833 57,203,995 1,659,920 335,037 115,496,786 
Liabilities, Deferrals & Net Position 68,167,404 77,875,774 1,753,369 452,737 148,249,284 

Beginning net position 55,895,058 57,417,365 1,664,931 340,041 115,317,395 
Change in Net Position (NI) 402,776 (213,369) (5,013) (5,004) 179,390 
Ending net position 56,297,834 57,203,996 1,659,918 335,037 115,496,785 

59



Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Premliminary Fiscal Year 2019-20 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Fund Balances 

Charges for Services 
Other Op Income 
Total Revenue 

Operations 
Water Purchases 
Field Operations 
Physical Plant 
Administration 
Engineering 
Water Conservation 
Total Op Expense 

Net Operating Income 

SWF or Prop Taxes 
Connection Fees 
Contributed Capital 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Other Expense 
Other Income 
Total Non-Op Income 

Net Income 

Beginning Net Position 
Change in Net Position 
Ending Net Position 

Fund Balances 
-00 Operating Fund 
-10 Capital Improvemnt 
-20 Rate Stabilztn Fund 
Total Pooled Cash 

-50 New Facilities Fund 
160 Supplemental Wtr 
161, 270 Debt Reserve 
271 Bond Proceeds 
Assessment Districts 
Total Restricted Cash 
Total Cash 

Water 
SEP - 21 YTD SEP -20 YTD PY Var % YTD Budget Bgt Var % 

1,845,404 
54,246 

1,899,650 

430,440 
15,976 

245,301 
28,793 

355,411 
32,377 
47,556 

1,155,852 

743,798 

18,734 
82,381 

-
14,882 

(60,563) 
(403,151) 

3,451 
-

3,244 
(341,022) 

402,776 

1,623,375 
49,032 

1,672,407 

428,665 
57,174 

220,461 
26,383 

369,143 
33,718 
43,416 

1,178,961 

493,446 

8,998 
48,146 

-
32,932 

(63,198) 
(402,038) 

3,451 
-

0 
(371,708) 

121,738 

222,030 
5,214 

227,244 

1,775 
(41,199) 
24,840 

2,410 
(13,732) 

(1,342) 
4,140 

(23,109) 

250,352 

9,735 
34,235 

-
(18,051) 

2,635 
(1,112) 

-
-

3,244 
30,686 

281,038 

14% 
11% 
14% 

0% 
-72% 
11% 

9% 
-4% 
-4% 
10% 
-2% 

51% 

108% 
71% 

100% 
-55% 

4% 
0% 
0% 

100% 
100% 

8% 

231% 

1,724,443 
48,090 

1,772,533 

502,590 
115,758 
258,066 

48,879 
458,355 

31,380 
77,328 

1,492,356 

280,177 

-
12,501 

-
54,027 

(67,566) 
(407,526) 

3,453 
(402) 

1,518 
(403,995) 

(123,818) 

120,961 
6,156 

127,117 

(72,150) 
(99,782) 
(12,765) 
(20,086) 

(102,944) 
997 

(29,772) 
(336,504) 

463,621 

18,734 
69,880 

-
(39,145) 

7,004 
4,375 

(2) 

1,726 
62,571 

526,192 

7% 
13% 

7% 

-14% 
-86% 

-5% 
-41% 
-22% 

3% 
-39% 
-23% 

165% 

100% 
559% 
100% 
-72% 
10% 

1% 
0% 

114% 
15% 

425% 

55,895,058 55,089,180 805,878 1% 55,895,058 - 0% 
402,776 121,738 281,038 231% (123,818) 526,594 425% 

56,297,834 55,210,918 1,086,916 2% 55,771,240 526,594 1% 

Water 
SEP - 21 YTD SEP -20 YTD PY Var 

2,397,784 2,173,343 224,441 
5,270,918 3,613,839 1,657,079 
1,433,007 1,358,641 
9,101,708 7,145,822 

74,366 
1,955,886 

145,692 94,198 51,495 
11,929,329 12,509,813 (580,484) 

- - -
- - -
- - -

12,075,021 12,604,010 (528,989) 
21,176,729 19,749,833 1,426,897 

% 
10% 
46% 

5% 
27% 

55% 
-5% 

100% 
100% 
100% 

-4% 
7% 

FY 21/22 Bgt Bgt Var % 
1,230,340 1,167,444 95% 
1,030,791 4,240,127 411% 
1,116,951 316,056 28% 
3,378,082 5,723,626 169% 

223,318 (77,626) -35% 
3,574,788 8,354,541 234% 

- - 100% 
- - 100% 
- - 100% 

3,798,106 8,276,915 218% 
7,176,188 14,000,541 195% 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Premliminary Fiscal Year 2019-20 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Fund Balances 

Charges for Services 
Other Op Income 
Total Revenue 

Operations 
Water Purchases 
Field Operations 
Physical Plant 
Administration 
Engineering 
Water Conservation 
Total Op Expense 

Net Operating Income 

SWF or Prop Taxes 
Connection Fees 
Contributed Capital 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Other Expense 
Other Income 
Total Non-Op Income 

Net Income 

Beginning Net Position 
Change in Net Position 
Ending Net Position 

Fund Balances 
-00 Operating Fund 
-10 Capital Improvemnt 
-20 Rate Stabilztn Fund 
Total Pooled Cash 

-50 New Facilities Fund 
160 Supplemental Wtr 
161, 270 Debt Reserve 
271 Bond Proceeds 
Assessment Districts 
Total Restricted Cash 
Total Cash 

Wastewater 
SEP - 21 YTD SEP -20 YTD PY Var % YTD Budget Bgt Var % 

1,630,373 
31,632 

1,662,005 

583,436 
-

254,548 
55,438 

411,797 
52,096 

-
1,357,315 

304,690 

-
46,651 

-
14,574 

(117,563) 
(512,137) 

6,699 
-

43,716 
(518,059) 

(213,369) 

1,469,471 
25,300 

1,494,771 

716,222 
-

258,247 
47,895 

472,188 
55,698 

-
1,550,251 

(55,480) 

(0) 
17,256 

-
34,682 

(122,678) 
(493,982) 

6,699 
-

40,064 
(517,957) 

(573,437) 

160,902 11% 
6,332 25% 

167,235 11% 

(132,787) -19% 
- 0% 

(3,699) -1% 
7,543 16% 

(60,391) -13% 
(3,602) -6% 

- 0% 
(192,936) -12% 

360,170 649% 

0 100% 
29,395 170% 

- 100% 
(20,108) -58% 

5,115 4% 
(18,155) -4% 

- 0% 
- 100% 

3,651 9% 
(102) 0% 

360,068 63% 

1,655,421 
29,250 

1,684,671 

769,944 
-

373,242 
90,156 

510,795 
51,972 

-
1,796,109 

(111,438) 

-
6,249 

-
47,805 

(125,559) 
(468,000) 

6,699 
(1,788) 
29,607 

(504,987) 

(616,425) 

(25,048) 
2,382 

(22,666) 

(186,508) 
-

(118,694) 
(34,718) 
(98,998) 

124 
-

(438,794) 

416,128 

-
40,402 

-
(33,231) 

7,997 
(44,137) 

0 

14,109 
(14,860) 

401,268 

-2% 
8% 

-1% 

-24% 
0% 

-32% 
-39% 
-19% 

0% 
0% 

-24% 

373% 

100% 
647% 
100% 
-70% 

6% 
-9% 
0% 

48% 
-3% 

65% 

52,509,207 4,908,158 9% 57,417,365 - 0% 
(573,437) 360,068 63% (616,425) 403,056 65% 

51,935,770 5,268,226 10% 56,800,940 403,056 1% 

Wastewater 
SEP -20 YTD PY Var % FY 21/22 Bgt Bgt Var % 

532,611 481,355 90% 1,440,640 (426,673) -30% 
17,082,809 (617,777) -4% 364,080 16,100,952 4422% 

1,560,601 25,513 2% 1,363,707 222,407 16% 
19,176,021 (110,908) -1% 3,168,427 15,896,685 502% 

30,407 31,531 104% 57,251 4,686 8% 
- - 100% - - 100% 
- - 100% - - 100% 

4 (4) -97% - 0 100% 
1,593,002 9,840 1% 1,489,903 112,940 8% 
1,623,413 41,367 3% 1,547,154 117,626 8% 

20,799,434 (69,541) 0% 4,715,581 16,014,311 340% 

57,417,365 
(213,369) 

57,203,996 

SEP - 21 YTD 
1,013,967 

16,465,032 
1,586,114 

19,065,112 

61,937 
-
-

0 
1,602,843 
1,664,780 

20,729,892 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Premliminary Fiscal Year 2019-20 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Fund Balances 

Charges for Services 
Other Op Income 
Total Revenue 

Operations 
Water Purchases 
Field Operations 
Physical Plant 
Administration 
Engineering 
Water Conservation 
Total Op Expense 

Net Operating Income 

SWF or Prop Taxes 
Connection Fees 
Contributed Capital 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Other Expense 
Other Income 
Total Non-Op Income 

Net Income 

Beginning Net Position 
Change in Net Position 
Ending Net Position 

Fund Balances 
-00 Operating Fund 
-10 Capital Improvemnt 
-20 Rate Stabilztn Fund 
Total Pooled Cash 

-50 New Facilities Fund 
160 Supplemental Wtr 
161, 270 Debt Reserve 
271 Bond Proceeds 
Assessment Districts 
Total Restricted Cash 
Total Cash 

Deer Lodge Park 
SEP - 21 YTD SEP -20 YTD PY Var % YTD Budget Bgt Var % 

34,024 
5,334 

39,359 

12,712 
19,863 

6,320 
477 

9,449 
852 
-

49,672 

(10,314) 

-
15,579 

-
415 
-

(10,742) 
-
-
49 

5,301 

(5,013) 

33,881 
5,537 

39,418 

15,117 
17,972 

3,407 
470 

10,318 
902 
-

48,187 

(8,769) 

-
15,579 

-
947 
-

(10,742) 
-
-

(0) 
5,784 

(2,985) 

143 0% 32,330 
(202) -4% 1,500 

(60) 0% 33,830 

(2,405) -16% 22,830 
1,891 11% 7,566 
2,913 85% 6,360 

6 1% 939 
(869) -8% 11,583 

(50) -6% 852 
- 0% -

1,485 3% 50,130 

(1,545) -18% (16,300) 

- 0% -
- 0% -
- 0% -

(532) -56% 1,677 
- 0% -
- 0% (10,500) 
- 0% -

-
49 100% -

(483) -8% (8,823) 

(2,028) -68% (25,123) 

1,694 
3,834 
5,529 

(10,118) 
12,297 

(40) 
(462) 

(2,134) 
0 

-
(458) 

5,986 

-
15,579 

-
(1,262) 

-
(242) 

-

49 
14,124 

20,110 

5% 
256% 

16% 

-44% 
163% 

-1% 
-49% 
-18% 

0% 
0% 

-1% 

37% 

0% 
0% 
0% 

-75% 
100% 

-2% 
0% 

100% 
160% 

80% 

1,653,056 11,875 1% 1,664,931 - 0% 
(2,985) (2,028) -68% (25,123) 20,110 80% 

1,650,071 9,847 1% 1,639,808 20,110 1% 

Deer Lodge Park 
SEP -20 YTD PY Var % FY 21/22 Bgt Bgt Var % 

63,768 3,899 6% 313 67,354 21519% 
54,615 14,502 27% - 69,117 100% 
26,927 161 1% 16,775 10,314 61% 

145,310 18,563 13% 17,088 146,785 859% 

28,153 1,604 6% 24,948 4,808 19% 
- - 100% - - 100% 
- - 100% - - 100% 
- - 100% - - 100% 

397,038 2,461 1% 166,615 232,884 140% 
425,191 4,064 1% 191,563 237,692 124% 
570,501 22,627 4% 208,651 384,477 184% 

1,664,931 
(5,013) 

1,659,918 

SEP - 21 YTD 
67,667 
69,117 
27,089 

163,873 

29,756 
-
-
-

399,499 
429,255 
593,128 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Premliminary Fiscal Year 2019-20 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Fund Balances 

Charges for Services 
Other Op Income 
Total Revenue 

Operations 
Water Purchases 
Field Operations 
Physical Plant 
Administration 
Engineering 
Water Conservation 
Total Op Expense 

Net Operating Income 

SWF or Prop Taxes 
Connection Fees 
Contributed Capital 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Other Expense 
Other Income 
Total Non-Op Income 

Net Income 

Beginning Net Position 
Change in Net Position 
Ending Net Position 

Fund Balances 
-00 Operating Fund 
-10 Capital Improvemnt 
-20 Rate Stabilztn Fund 
Total Pooled Cash 

-50 New Facilities Fund 
160 Supplemental Wtr 
161, 270 Debt Reserve 
271 Bond Proceeds 
Assessment Districts 
Total Restricted Cash 
Total Cash 

Rimforest 
SEP - 21 YTD SEP -20 YTD PY Var % YTD Budget Bgt Var % 

52,938 
1,290 

54,228 

7,205 
16,982 
10,672 

953 
17,331 

1,568 
-

54,712 

(484) 

-
-
-
-

(643) 
(3,975) 

-
-
98 

(4,520) 

(5,004) 

54,525 
1,752 

56,277 

8,282 
21,764 
16,451 

942 
21,062 

1,675 
-

70,176 

(13,899) 

-
-
-
62 

(1,556) 
(3,975) 

-
-
-

(5,469) 

(19,367) 

(1,586) -3% 
(462) -26% 

(2,049) -4% 

(1,076) -13% 
(4,782) -22% 
(5,779) -35% 

11 1% 
(3,731) -18% 

(107) -6% 
- 0% 

(15,463) -22% 

13,415 97% 

- 0% 
- 0% 
- 0% 
(62) -100% 
912 59% 
- 0% 
- 0% 

98 0% 
948 17% 

14,363 74% 

55,054 
2,574 

57,628 

10,773 
14,544 
12,396 

771 
20,643 

1,764 
-

60,891 

(3,263) 

-
-
-
210 

(306) 
(3,975) 

-
(18) 
-

(4,089) 

(7,352) 

(2,116) 
(1,284) 
(3,400) 

(3,568) 
2,438 

(1,724) 
182 

(3,312) 
(196) 

-
(6,179) 

2,779 

-
-
-

(210) 
(337) 

0 
-

98 
(449) 

2,330 

-4% 
-50% 

-6% 

-33% 
17% 

-14% 
24% 

-16% 
-11% 

0% 
-10% 

85% 

0% 
0% 
0% 

-100% 
-110% 

0% 
0% 

100% 
-11% 

32% 

279,268 60,773 22% 340,041 - 0% 
(19,367) 14,363 74% (7,352) 2,348 32% 
259,901 75,136 29% 332,689 2,348 1% 

Rimforest 
SEP -20 YTD PY Var % FY 21/22 Bgt Bgt Var % 

(4,403) (261) -6% 11,193 (15,857) -142% 
31,277 (26,696) -85% - 4,581 100% 

- - 100% - - 100% 
26,874 (26,956) -100% 11,193 (11,275) -101% 

- - 100% - - 100% 
- - 100% - - 100% 
- - 100% - - 100% 
- - 100% - - 100% 
- - 100% - - 100% 
- - 100% - - 100% 

26,874 (26,956) -100% 11,193 (11,275) -101% 

340,041 
(5,004) 

335,037 

SEP - 21 YTD 
(4,664) 
4,581 

-
(82) 

-
-
-
-
-
-
(82) 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Premliminary Fiscal Year 2019-20 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Fund Balances 

Charges for Services 
Other Op Income 
Total Revenue 

Operations 
Water Purchases 
Field Operations 
Physical Plant 
Administration 
Engineering 
Water Conservation 
Total Op Expense 

Net Operating Income 

SWF or Prop Taxes 
Connection Fees 
Contributed Capital 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Other Expense 
Other Income 
Total Non-Op Income 

Net Income 

LACSD Total 
SEP - 21 YTD SEP -20 YTD PY Var % YTD Budget Bgt Var % 

3,562,740 
92,503 

3,655,243 

1,033,793 
52,821 

516,840 
85,660 

793,988 
86,893 
47,556 

2,617,552 

1,037,691 

18,734 
144,611 

-
29,871 

(178,768) 
(930,004) 

10,150 
-

47,106 
(858,301) 

179,390 

3,181,252 
81,621 

3,262,873 

1,168,286 
96,910 

498,566 
75,690 

872,711 
91,994 
43,416 

2,847,574 

415,298 

8,998 
80,981 

-
68,623 

(187,431) 
(910,737) 

10,150 
-

40,064 
(889,350) 

(474,052) 

381,488 12% 
10,882 13% 

392,370 12% 

(134,493) -12% 
(44,089) -45% 
18,274 4% 

9,970 13% 
(78,723) -9% 

(5,100) -6% 
4,140 10% 

(230,022) -8% 

622,392 150% 

9,735 108% 
63,630 79% 

- 100% 
(38,752) -56% 

8,662 5% 
(19,268) -2% 

- 0% 
- 100% 

7,042 18% 
31,050 3% 

653,442 138% 

3,467,248 
81,414 

3,548,662 

1,306,137 
137,868 
650,064 
140,745 

1,001,376 
85,968 
77,328 

3,399,486 

149,176 

-
18,750 

-
103,719 

(193,431) 
(890,001) 

10,152 
(2,208) 
31,125 

(921,894) 

(772,718) 

95,492 
11,089 

106,581 

(272,344) 
(85,047) 

(133,224) 
(55,085) 

(207,388) 
925 

(29,772) 
(781,934) 

888,515 

18,734 
125,861 

-
(73,848) 
14,663 

(40,003) 
(2) 

15,981 
61,385 

949,900 

3% 
14% 

3% 

-21% 
-62% 
-20% 
-39% 
-21% 

1% 
-39% 
-23% 

596% 

100% 
671% 
100% 
-71% 

8% 
-4% 
0% 

51% 
7% 

123% 

Beginning Net Position 115,317,395 109,530,711 5,786,684 5% 115,317,395 - 0% 
Change in Net Position 179,390 (474,052) 653,442 138% (772,718) 952,108 123% 
Ending Net Position 115,496,785 109,056,659 6,440,126 6% 114,544,677 952,108 1% 

LACSD Total 
Fund Balances 
-00 Operating Fund 
-10 Capital Improvemnt 
-20 Rate Stabilztn Fund 
Total Pooled Cash 

-50 New Facilities Fund 
160 Supplemental Wtr 
161, 270 Debt Reserve 
271 Bond Proceeds 
Assessment Districts 
Total Restricted Cash 
Total Cash 

SEP - 21 YTD SEP -20 YTD PY Var % FY 21/22 Bgt Bgt Var % 
3,474,754 2,765,319 709,435 26% 2,682,486 792,268 30% 

21,809,647 20,782,539 1,027,108 5% 1,394,871 20,414,776 1464% 
3,046,209 2,946,169 100,041 3% 2,497,433 548,776 22% 

28,330,611 26,494,027 1,836,584 7% 6,574,790 21,755,821 331% 

237,386 152,757 84,629 55% 305,517 (68,131) -22% 
11,929,329 12,509,813 (580,484) -5% 3,574,788 8,354,541 234% 

- - - 100% - - 100% 
0 4 (4) -97% - 0 100% 

2,002,341 1,990,041 12,301 1% 1,656,518 345,823 21% 
14,169,056 14,652,614 (483,558) -3% 5,536,823 8,632,233 156% 
42,499,667 41,146,641 1,353,026 3% 12,111,613 30,388,054 251% 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District Cash Flow Statement 
Preliminary Fiscal Year 2021-22 

Water Wastewater DLP RF YTD 2019-20 
Change in Net Position (Net Income) 402,776 (213,369) (5,013) (5,004) 179,390
  Depreciation & Amortization 375,593 512,137 10,742 3,975 902,447
  Asset Disposal - - - - -
Net Cash from Income Statement 778,369 298,768 5,729 (1,029) 1,081,837

   Customer Accounts Receivable 506,485 (1,066,277) 19,091 19,808 (520,893)
   Other Receivables (160) 1,650 20 40 1,550
   Prepaid Expenses (184,398) (342,454) - - (526,852)
   Prepaid Water - - - - -
   Accounts Payable (279,530) (614,495) 1,008 (5,920) (898,938)
   Net Pension Liability - - - - -
   Accrued Liabilities (141,975) 1,012,368 (3,012) (3,759) 863,623
   Deposits & Retentions 15,733 (185,865) - - (170,132)
   Parts Inventory - - - - -
Total Sources (Uses) of Cash (83,846) (1,195,073) 17,108 10,168 (1,251,642) 
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 694,524 (896,306) 22,837 9,139 (169,805) 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
   Additions to Fixed Assets 26,549 (124,412) - - (97,863)
   Construction in Progress (330,298) (189,170) - - (519,468)
   Bond Principal (11,954) (23,204) - - (35,158) 

Contributions to Financing Activities 8,503 16,505 - -
   SRF Loan & Notes Payable - - - (13,803) (13,803)
   Interfund Payable/Receivable - - - - -
   Interest Payable 60,563 117,563 - - 178,125 
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (246,638) (202,718) - (13,803) (488,167) 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
   Interest Receivable 8,413 15,623 - - 24,036 
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 8,413 15,623 - - 24,036 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 456,298 (1,083,401) 22,837 (4,664) (608,929) 
Cash at Beginning of Period 20,720,431 21,813,293 570,291 4,581 43,108,596 
Cash and Equivalents at End of Period 21,176,729 20,729,892 593,128 (82) 42,499,667 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Cash and Investment Report 

as of September 30, 2021 

Summary of Portfolio Assets 

Category Book Value 
Adj Book 

Value Market Value 
Percent of 
Portfolio 

Current 
Quarterly 

Yield 
Checking Account 
LAIF 
Corporate Bonds 
Negotiable CDs 

6,252,770 
28,024,358 

3,000,000 
5,000,000 

6,252,770 
28,024,358 

3,000,000 
5,000,000 

6,252,770 
28,024,358 

2,943,724 
5,123,256 

14.8% 
66.1% 

7.0% 
12.1% 

0.00% 
0.21% 
0.93% 
2.36% 

Total Cash & Investments 42,277,128 42,277,128 42,344,108 100.0% 0.48% 

Summary of Portfolio Liquidity 

Category Book Value 
Percent of 
Portfolio Market Value 

Percent of 
Portfolio Par Value 

Percent 
of 

Portfolio 
On Demand 

Within 2021-22 
Within 2022-23 
Within 2023-24 
Within 2024-25 
Within 2025-26 

34,277,128 

1,250,000 
2,000,000 
1,250,000 

-
3,500,000 

81.1% 

3.0% 
4.7% 
3.0% 
0.0% 
8.3% 

34,277,128 

1,260,137 
2,054,174 
1,309,373 

-
3,443,296 

80.9% 

3.0% 
4.9% 
3.1% 
0.0% 
8.1% 

34,277,128 

1,250,000 
2,000,000 
1,250,000 

-
3,500,000 

81.1% 

3.0% 
4.7% 
3.0% 
0.0% 
8.3% 

Total 42,277,128 100.0% 42,344,108 100.0% 42,277,128 100.0% 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Portfolio Details 

as of Septempber 30, 2021 

Type  Issuer  CUSIP
 Purchase 

Date
 Maturity 

Date  Par Value  Market Value  Book Value  Stated Rate 
Checking Account Union Bank $ 6,252,770 $ 6,252,770 $ 6,252,770 
LAIF LAIF $ 28,024,358 $ 28,024,358 $ 28,024,358 0.26% 
Negotiable CD CF Bank Fairlawn Ohio 15721UDE6 8/15/2019 10/12/2021 $ 250,000 $ 250,130 $ 250,000 1.65% 
Negotiable CD Pioneer Bank 723605AS0 4/17/2019 10/18/2021 $ 250,000 $ 250,287 $ 250,000 2.40% 
Negotiable CD Wells Fargo Bank 949763NP7 2/14/2018 2/14/2022 $ 250,000 $ 252,325 $ 250,000 2.60% 
Negotiable CD Merrick Bank 59013J7H6 4/18/2019 4/18/2022 $ 250,000 $ 253,240 $ 250,000 2.45% 
Negotiable CD Ally Bank 02007GKC6 6/6/2019 6/6/2022 $ 250,000 $ 254,155 $ 250,000 2.50% 
Negotiable CD TIAA Bank 87270LBY8 4/17/2019 10/17/2022 $ 250,000 $ 256,620 $ 250,000 2.65% 
Negotiable CD Eaglebank 27002YEJ1 4/18/2019 10/18/2022 $ 250,000 $ 256,375 $ 250,000 2.55% 
Negotiable CD Great Southern Bank 39120VSK1 6/28/2019 12/28/2022 $ 250,000 $ 248,628 $ 250,000 2.38% 
Negotiable CD Sallie Mae Bank 795450K53 2/8/2018 2/8/2023 $ 250,000 $ 258,340 $ 250,000 2.65% 
Negotiable CD Goldman Sachs 38148PXW2 2/14/2018 2/14/2023 $ 250,000 $ 258,600 $ 250,000 2.70% 
Negotiable CD BMW Bank North America 05580AWA8 3/31/2020 3/31/2023 $ 250,000 $ 254,563 $ 250,000 1.45% 
Negotiable CD Mainstreet Bank 56065GAE8 4/26/2019 4/26/2023 $ 250,000 $ 259,008 $ 250,000 2.55% 
Negotiable CD Citibank National Association 17312QL98 5/23/2018 5/23/2023 $ 250,000 $ 262,040 $ 250,000 3.20% 
Negotiable CD Medallion Bank 58404DEL1 6/11/2019 12/11/2023 $ 250,000 $ 260,822 $ 250,000 2.40% 
Negotiable CD Morgan Stanley Private Bank 61760AYR4 4/11/2019 4/11/2024 $ 250,000 $ 264,340 $ 250,000 2.80% 
Negotiable CD Comenity Capital Bank 20033AU38 4/15/2019 4/15/2024 $ 250,000 $ 264,398 $ 250,000 2.80% 
Negotiable CD Celtic Bank 15118RUV7 4/17/2020 4/17/2024 $ 250,000 $ 255,565 $ 250,000 2.80% 
Negotiable CD Morgan Stanley NA Bank 61690UHB9 6/6/2019 6/6/2024 $ 250,000 $ 264,248 $ 250,000 2.70% 
Negotiable CD Toyota Financial Services 89235MLE9 7/29/2021 7/29/2026 $ 250,000 $ 249,957 $ 250,000 0.95% 
Negotiable CD UBS Salt Lake City 90348JS92 9/9/2021 9/9/2026 $ 250,000 $ 249,615 $ 250,000 0.95% 
Corporate Bond Citigroup Inc. 17298CKV9 12/8/2020 12/8/2025 $ 1,000,000 $ 964,350 $ 1,000,000 1.00% 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Investment Policy Compliance Report 

as of September 30, 2021 
Investment Type Book Value Market Value LACSD Policy Limit Description of Limit 
Checking 
LAIF 
Negotiable CDs 
Federal Agencies 

6,252,770 
28,024,358 

5,000,000 
3,000,000 

6,252,770 
28,024,358 

5,123,256 
2,943,724 

None 
42,277,128 
12,683,138 
42,277,128 

None 
Up to 100% of portfolio 
Up to 30% of portfolio 

Up to 100% of portfolio 
Total Portfolio 42,277,128 42,344,108 

-

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

 40,000,000

 45,000,000 
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Portfolio Balances vs. LACSD Investment Policy Limits 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: NOVEMBER 09, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: NATALIE POTTER, Human Resources Manager 

CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER’S 3rd QUARTER 
REPORT 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

This is an information item only. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

This is an information item only. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

This report presents a brief overview of Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
(LACSD) Human Resources (HR) Department 3rd Quarter. 

Each area of HR is represented below: 

Summary of Significant Items: 

Employee Relations- The District successfully moved uniform services from Aramark to 
Overall Prudential Supply. This provided better service for staff and savings to the District. 

Recruitment- We are pleased to announce that Bridget Ortiz has been promoted to 
Customer Service Supervisor. Bridget’s great experience in customer solutions, customer 
service, and communication, along with her 14 years of District experience, made her an 
excellent candidate for this position. 
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Training and Development- The District conducted respirator fit training and testing, 
along with our bi-annual training of CPR and First-Aid. 

Risk Management- On a continuous basis, Human Resources monitors federal, state, and 
regional legislation pertaining to the District. We continue to watch the post-COVID 19 
regulatory adjustments along with the following 2021 employment legislation update: 

• AB 361 – As you are aware, on September 16, 2021, the Governor signed into law 
AB 361, enabling local public agencies to meet remotely during proclaimed state 
of emergencies under modified Brown Act requirements. 

• SB 155 – Additionally, the Governor signed SB 155 into law, which extended the 
moratorium on termination of water service to residential customers and small 
businesses in critical infrastructure sectors for nonpayment. The Governor’s 
previous executive orders on the matter were set to expire on September 30, 2021. 
However, SB 155 extends the moratorium until at least December 31, 2021. 

• AB 654 (COVID-19 Exposure Reporting) - AB 654 clarifies AB 685, which was 
passed in 2020 and set forth expansive COVID-19 exposure guidelines and 
reporting requirements. This is effective immediately and will remain in effect 
along with the reporting requirements until January 1, 2023. 

• AB 1033 (California Family Rights Act (“CFRA”) Amendments) - Expands CFRA 
to include employee leave to care for parents-in-law effective January 01, 2022. 

• SB 331 (Silenced No More Act) -This act makes it unlawful for an employer or 
former employer to include in any agreement any provision that prohibits the 
disclosure of information about unlawful acts in the workplace related to an 
employee’s separation from employment with the employer.  Specifically, SB 331 
prohibits the use of non-disclosure agreements to settle workplace-related legal 
claims involving unlawful harassment, discrimination, retaliation, or any other 
conduct that the employee has reasonable cause to believe is unlawful, except for 
limited circumstances. 

• SB 606 (Cal/OSHA Enforcement Expansion) - Extends potential penalties for 
employers by providing expanded scope of enforcement for Cal/OSHA. 

• SB 657 (Electronic Document Transmission) – Allows for the District to distribute 
information, such as workplace postings to employees by email in any instance in 
which an employer is required to physically post the information in addition to our 
obligation to physically display any required postings. 

• SB 807 Expanded Recordkeeping Requirements - Amended the state’s Fair 
Employment Practices Law (at Cal. Govt. Code § 12946) by requiring employers 
to maintain and preserve all of the following for four years (an increase from the 
previous two-year requirement) effective January 01, 2022: 

o Applications, personnel, membership, or employment referral records and 
files (four years from when they were made or received); and 

o Applicants or terminated employees’ personnel files (four years from when 
the employment action occurred). 

HR Manager 3rd Quarter Report Page 2 of 2 
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Staff is continuously analyzing and monitoring developments at all levels and will continue 
to provide updates. 

Employee Benefits and Wellness- This year we applied for the ACWA JPIA Wellness 
Grant Fund and were awarded $1700 to develop a worksite wellness program. As you know 
water makes up a significant portion of the human body. Staff can benefit by increasing 
their water intake which can lead to healthier, more productive, and energized employees 
to conquer daily tasks. We purchased a refillable water bottle station for staff and the 
community at the Blue Jay Administration Building. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

This is an information item only. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

There is no environmental impact. 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

None 

HR Manager 3rd Quarter Report Page 2 of 2 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

DATE:  NOVEMBER 9, 2021 
 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
   Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
 
FROM:  MATT BROOKS, Operations Manager 
     
SUBJECT:  OPERATIONS MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
   
A.   RECOMMENDATION 

 
This is an information item. 
 

B.  REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
  

This is an information item. 
 
C.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
This report is to give an update on water delivered in 2021.   
 

D.  FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This is an information item. 

 
E.  ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

 
This is an information item. 

  
F.   ATTACHMENTS 
 

• 2021 Monthly Report 
• 2020 Monthly Report 
• October 2021 Water Delivered Annual Analysis 
• September 2021 Water Delivered Annual Analysis 
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    ARROWHEAD WOODS MONTHLY DATA
                ACRE FEET 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) (13) (14) (15) (16) (17) 
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JANUARY 0.00 14.30 64.52 0.00 64.52 4.64 1.77 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.52 75.95 62.23 0.00 26.75 -1.05 14.77 
FEBRUARY 0.00 12.49 37.67 21.25 58.92 5.34 1.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 58.92 67.44 52.34 0.00 25.70 0.41 14.69 
MARCH 0.00 14.09 55.59 0.00 55.59 4.39 2.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 55.59 68.16 54.05 0.00 26.11 0.91 13.20 

1ST QUARTER 0.00 40.88 157.78 21.25 179.03 14.37 6.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 179.03 211.55 168.62 0.00 78.56 0.27 42.66 

APRIL 0.00 16.84 45.63 0.00 45.63 3.66 2.42 0.00 13.13 13.13 45.63 74.36 65.08 0.00 27.02 -0.94 10.22 
MAY 0.00 16.99 110.09 0.00 110.09 7.32 6.54 0.00 13.58 13.58 110.09 139.88 125.77 0.00 26.08 0.30 13.81 
JUNE 0.00 15.51 134.39 16.25 150.64 11.62 5.81 0.00 13.10 13.10 150.64 173.44 156.67 0.00 26.38 0.30 16.47 

2ND QUARTER 0.00 49.34 290.11 16.25 306.36 22.60 14.77 0.00 39.81 39.81 306.36 387.68 347.52 0.00 79.48 -0.34 40.50 
SEMI-ANNUAL 0.00 90.22 447.89 37.50 485.39 36.97 20.78 0.00 39.81 39.81 485.39 599.23 516.14 0.00 158.04 -0.07 83.16 

JULY 0.00 15.99 147.54 41.07 188.61 14.32 4.44 0.00 5.39 5.39 188.61 200.11 182.05 0.00 26.39 0.81 17.25 
AUGUST 0.00 16.43 141.86 37.35 179.21 13.81 7.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 179.21 189.45 171.87 0.00 27.20 -2.67 20.25 
SEPTEMBER 0.00 15.84 128.21 37.96 166.17 11.70 7.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 166.17 178.12 159.11 0.00 24.53 -0.10 19.11 

3RD QUARTER 0.00 48.26 417.61 116.38 533.99 39.83 19.87 0.00 5.39 5.39 533.99 567.68 513.03 0.00 78.12 -1.96 56.61 

OCTOBER 0.00 16.53 38.52 14.98 53.50 4.55 1.62 48.73 0.04 48.77 53.50 115.87 100.68 0.00 24.63 3.62 11.57 
NOVEMBER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 28.25 0.00 
DECEMBER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4TH QUARTER 0.00 16.53 38.52 14.98 53.50 4.55 1.62 48.73 0.04 48.77 53.50 115.87 100.68 0.00 52.88 3.62 11.57 
ANNUAL TOTAL 0.00 155.01 904.02 168.86 1072.88 81.35 42.27 48.73 45.24 93.97 1072.88 1282.78 1129.85 0.00 289.04 1.59 151.34 

(a) CLAWA consumption numbers are based upon monthly billing statements provided by CLAWA.  CLAWA reads these meters on or near the 24th of each month , 
so the  numbers may not be an actual representation of water consumed for said calendar month. 
(b) Lake Draw = (1) + (5) 
(c) Delivered to Distribution = (2) + (5) - (6) + (7) +(10) 
(d) Un-Metered Water = ((12) - (13+14)) - (16) 
(e) Storage Volume calculated 8:00 am the 1st of every month. 

* Due to technical issues with our metering system, the METERED WATER (13)  data for January was collected between 02-01-2021 and  02-10-2021. 
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    ARROWHEAD WOODS MONTHLY DATA
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JANUARY 0.00 15.43 24.03 31.20 55.23 4.72 1.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 55.23 67.44 55.99 0.00 26.57 0.23 11.22 
FEBRUARY 0.00 14.64 46.73 0.00 46.73 4.48 2.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 46.73 59.68 48.78 0.00 26.80 0.00 10.90 
MARCH 0.00 15.07 44.08 0.00 44.08 3.51 2.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 44.08 58.23 47.30 0.00 26.80 0.34 10.59 

1ST QUARTER 0.00 45.14 114.84 31.20 146.04 12.71 6.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 146.04 185.35 152.07 0.00 80.17 0.57 32.71 

APRIL 0.00 15.53 56.02 0.00 56.02 4.64 2.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.02 69.71 55.00 0.01 27.14 0.22 14.48 
MAY 0.00 16.25 132.44 0.00 132.44 9.59 7.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 132.44 147.03 128.20 0.00 27.36 -3.07 21.90 
JUNE 0.00 15.24 112.47 37.22 149.69 11.71 6.70 0.00 8.99 8.99 149.69 168.91 149.47 0.00 24.29 0.99 18.45 

2ND QUARTER 0.00 47.02 300.93 37.22 338.15 25.94 17.43 0.00 8.99 8.99 338.15 385.65 332.67 0.01 78.79 -1.86 54.83 
SEMI-ANNUAL 0.00 92.16 415.77 68.42 484.19 38.65 24.31 0.00 8.99 8.99 484.19 571.00 484.74 0.01 158.96 -1.29 87.54 

JULY 0.00 15.66 118.68 58.27 176.95 12.16 6.70 0.00 13.29 13.29 176.95 200.44 183.88 0.00 25.28 1.51 15.05 
AUGUST 0.00 15.07 113.77 65.33 179.10 12.99 5.78 0.00 13.22 13.22 179.10 200.18 181.37 0.00 26.79 1.24 17.57 
SEPTEMBER 0.00 14.27 101.99 59.93 161.92 11.34 5.63 0.00 10.50 10.50 161.92 180.98 164.41 0.00 28.03 0.06 16.51 

3RD QUARTER 0.00 45.00 334.44 183.53 517.97 36.49 18.11 0.00 37.01 37.01 517.97 581.60 529.66 0.00 80.10 2.81 49.13 

OCTOBER 0.00 14.76 91.85 46.27 138.12 11.13 5.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 138.12 147.16 132.27 0.00 28.09 -0.64 15.53 
NOVEMBER 0.00 13.76 69.12 0.00 69.12 5.64 4.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 69.12 81.60 70.04 0.00 27.45 -0.29 11.85 
DECEMBER 0.00 14.25 67.65 0.00 67.65 5.94 1.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 67.65 77.43 65.35 0.00 27.16 -0.41 12.49 

4TH QUARTER 0.00 42.77 228.62 46.27 274.89 22.71 11.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 274.89 306.19 267.66 0.00 82.70 -1.34 39.87 
ANNUAL TOTAL 0.00 179.93 978.83 298.22 1277.05 97.85 53.66 0.00 46.00 46.00 1277.05 1458.79 1282.06 0.01 321.76 0.18 176.54 

(a) CLAWA consumption numbers are based upon monthly billing statements provided by CLAWA.  CLAWA reads these meters on or near the 24th of each month , 
so the  numbers may not be an actual representation of water consumed for said calendar month. 
(b) Lake Draw = (1) + (5) 
(c) Delivered to Distribution = (2) + (5) - (6) + (7) +(10) 
(d) Un-Metered Water = ((12) - (13+14)) - (16) 
(e) Storage Volume calculated 8:00 am the 1st of every month. 

* 0.01 AF transferred from LACSD to DLP for testing purposes while putting interconnection online in April 2020. 
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November 9, 2021 

October 2021 Water Delivered Annual Analysis 

• In October 2021 (115.87AF) consumption is down 21.3% when compared to October 2020 (147.16 
AF). Through the 1st 10 months of 2021 (1282.78 AF) consumption is down 1.4% when compared 
to the 1st 10 months of 2020 (1299.76 AF). These numbers are based off of column (12) on the 
Report, and only counts water delivered to the Distribution System. 

• October 2021 Lake Draw 53.50 = AF vs October 2020 = 138.12 AF. Through the 1st 10 months of 
2021 Lake Draw = 1072.88 AF vs through the 1st 10 months of 2020 = 1140.28 AF. 

• October 2021 Wells To System = 16.53 AF vs October 2020 = 14.76 AF. Through the 1st 10 months 
of 2021 Wells to System = 155.01 AF vs through the 1st 10 months of 2020 = 151.92 AF. 

• Through the 1st 10 months of 2021 total CLAWA purchase = 93.97 AF vs through the 1st 10 
months of 2020 = 46.00 AF. 

• Through the 1st 10 months of 2021 total Recycled Water Delivered to the LACC = 245.80 AF vs 
through the 1st 10 months of 2020 = 265.89 AF. The previously reported number for May 2021 
had a typo, this has been corrected in the current (October) spreadsheet. 
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November 9, 2021 

September 2021 Water Delivered Annual Analysis 

• In September 2021 (178.12 AF) consumption is down 1.6% when compared to September 
2020 (180.98 AF). Through the 1st 9 months of 2021 (1166.91 AF) consumption is up 1.2% 
when compared to the 1st 9 months of 2020 (1152.60 AF). These numbers are based off 
column (12) on the Report, and only counts water delivered to the Distribution System. 

• September 2021 Lake Draw 166.17 = AF vs September 2020 = 161.92 AF. Through the 1st 

9 months of 2021 Lake Draw 1019.38 = AF vs through the 1st 9 months of 2020 = 1002.16 
AF. 

• September 2021 Wells To System 15.84 = AF vs September 2020 = 14.27 AF. Through the 
1st 9 months of 2021 Wells to System =138.48 AF vs through the 1st 9 months of 2020 = 
137.16 AF. 

• Through the 1st 9 months of 2021 total CLAWA purchase = 45.20 AF vs through the 1st 9 
months of 2020 = 46.00 AF. 

• As of October 1st, we are purchasing CLAWA 2 water at the Rim of the World connection. 
We plan to keep this connection active through December. 

• Through the 1st 9 months of 2021 total Recycled Water Delivered to the LACC 209.09 = AF vs 
through the 1st 9 months of 2020 = 239.76 AF. 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

This is an information item only. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

This is an information item only. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Legislative Update 
SB 323 (Caballero): This ACWA sponsored measure sets the statute of limitations to 
challenge water and sewer rates changes to 120 days. This bill provides agencies with an 
expedited, conclusive, and binding determination about the validity of the agency’s action. 
By obtaining a speedy resolution, the agency can act in reliance on the action, without the 
threat of lawsuits years later. 

AB 818 (Bloom): This bill will 1) require premoistened nonwoven disposable wipes 
manufactured on or after July 1, 2022, to be labeled clearly and conspicuously with the 
phrase “Do Not Flush” and a related symbol, 2) prohibit a covered entity from making a 
representation about the flushable attributes, benefits, performance, or efficacy of 
premoistened nonwoven disposable wipes, 3) establish enforcement provisions, including 
authorizing a civil penalty not to exceed $2,500 per day, up to a maximum of $100,000 per 
violation, and 4) create the California Consumer Education and Outreach Program, under 
which covered entities would be required to participate for the purpose of gaining 
understanding of consumer behavior and to conduct a comprehensive multimedia 
education and outreach program in the state. The bill would require covered entities to 
annually report to specified legislative committees and the State Water Resources Control 
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t---------+---11,______----

Surface Water 
Groundwater 

Imported 

2019 2020 
1,106 1,277 

198 180 
47 46 

Oct-2021 
YTD 

Projected 
Nov-Dec 

Total 
2021 

1,073 50 1,123 
156 42 197 

94 80 174 
Total Supply 1,351 1,503 1,323 172 1,494 

Demand 
Demand Mgmt 

1,277 1,507 1,304 222 1,526 
(70) (3) (73) 

Total 1,277 1,507 1,234 219 1,453 

Board on their activities under the program and would require the state board to post the 
reports on its internet website. 

SB 427: This bill will allow a local agency that provides water service to increase the 
penalties for water theft which are currently capped from $100, $200 and $500 for the first, 
second and third offense respectively in a 12-month period to not exceeding $1,000 for a 
first violation, $2,000 for a second violation of the same ordinance within one year, and 
$5,000 for each additional violation of the same ordinance within one year. 

Hydrologic Analysis 
The new water year started on October 1st. In the month of October, 2021, the area received 
4.18” of precipitation. The historic average precipitation for the month of October is 1.63”. 
Lake level is at 5,099.73’, 6.97 feet below full. 

Water Supply and Demand Summary 2021 YTD 

General Managers Report 
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Projected 

Hydrologic Assessm

Precipitation Gage (in) 
Cedar Glen (SE) 
BJ Admin (SW) 
Bernina (W) 
LACC (GV W) 
Lake Arrowhead 1.5 SE, CA 
Fire Sta #1, 5140 (S) 
Fire Sta #4, 5280 (W) 
Precipitation (in) 

ent 
Average 
Annual 

33.06 
34.26 
30.67 
19.72 
39.16 
36.70 
28.46 
33.32 

2017 
PY-3 

Annual 

27.00 
25.55 
15.76 
31.61 

31.5 
24.13 
25.93 

2018 
PY-2 

Annual 
27.76 
28.84 
24.67 
12.37 

29.2 
33.68 
31.35 
26.84 

2019 

Total 
66.26 
57.74 
51.60 
38.61 
68.73 
60.46 
59.59 
57.57 

2020 

Total 
24.52 
23.85 
20.86 
14.69 
27.08 
28.66 
26.57 
23.75 

2021 

Total 
15.44 
14.83 
15.85 

14.3 
16.41 
22.37 
16.48 
14.76 

2022 

Total 
15.4 
14.8 
15.9 
14.3 
16.4 
22.4 
16.5 

14.76 

Atmospheric river 
SWP Table A 64% 20-85% 15-35% 10-75% 10-20% 5% 0% 

Lake Level Analysis 
Lake Level (last day of mo 
Lake Level vs. full 
Evaporation losses 
Lake withdrawals (feet) 
Precipitation (feet) 
GV Tunnel Inflow (AF) 

5101.96 
-4.7 
-4.0 

-2.19 
2.78 
524 

5099.15 
-7.6 
-4.0 

-1.37 
2.16 

1,267 

5097.47 
-9.2 
-4.0 

-1.23 
2.24 
321 

5103.98 
-2.7 
-4.0 
-1.4 
4.7 

1,147 

5103.14 
-3.6 
-4.0 
-1.6 
1.9 

249 

5099 
-7.4 
-4.0 
-1.4 
1.5 

5095 
-11.8 

-4.0 
-1.6 
1.23 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

This is an information item only. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

This is an information item only. 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

None 

General Managers Report 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: November 9, 2020 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: JOHN O’BRIEN, Finance Manager 

CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 COMPREHENSIVE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

To accept, file and authorize the distribution of the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for fiscal year 2020-21. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

The District is required to distribute annual audited financial information to bond 
holders and other parties interested in the finances of the District. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The District is required to have an annual independent audit.  The Contact Partner 
from Van Lant & Fankhanel, LLP will present the audit results. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

None. 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

• Fiscal Year 2020-21 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
PO Box 700, Lake Arrowhead, CA  92352 

(909) 336-7100 

November 9, 2021 

Members of the Board of Directors 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

We are pleased to provide you with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Lake 
Arrowhead Community Services District (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.  The 
purpose of the financial report is to provide the Board of Directors, the customers of the 
District, and other interested parties with reliable information on the finances of the District. 
Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the 
information presented in this report. As management, we assert that, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The District’s financial statements have been audited by Van Lant & Fankhanel, LLP, a firm of 
licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2021, are free of material misstatement.  The independent audit involved 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  The independent 
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 
unmodified opinion that the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021 are fairly presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP).  The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the 
Financial Section of this report. 

GAAP require that management provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A). The District’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the 
independent auditors in the Financial Section of this report. 

In addition to the required components of the Financial Report, the District has elected to 
prepare this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which includes supplementary 
information in this Letter of Transmittal and the Statistical Section.  This Letter of Transmittal 
is intended to discuss the District’s accomplishments and future direction.  It is designed to 
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The Statistical Section 
includes various financial trends and demographic information. 
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DISTRICT OVERVIEW 
Community services districts have the power to provide a wide variety of services, including 
water and wastewater services, fire and police protection, public library services, public 
airports and communication facilities.  Only water and wastewater services are currently 
provided by this District. 

The District was formed March 16, 1978 under the Community Services District Law 
(California Government Code 61000 et al.) for the purpose of purchasing a privately-owned 
water system serving properties in the community of Arrowhead Woods, which surrounds 
Lake Arrowhead. 

Deer Lodge 
Park 

On June 7, 1983, the voters approved the 
annexation of the Lake Arrowhead Sanitation 
District to provide sewer services previously 
governed by the Board of Supervisors of San 
Bernardino County (County) and operated 
under the County’s Special Districts 
Department.  This resulted in the expansion of 
the District to its current boundaries for sewer 
services. The boundaries for water service 
remained the same. 

On April 1, 1985, the District assumed 
ownership and control of the Deer Lake Water Corporation, which provided water to the 
residents of Deer Lodge Park (DLP).  DLP is outside of the District boundaries that use Lake 
Arrowhead as a source for water service (known as Arrowhead Woods Certified Water 
Service Area); therefore, all water sold in DLP is either produced from existing wells within 
the area or purchased from the Crestline-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency, a State Water 
Project contractor, for sale in DLP. 

In 2014, the District took ownership of the Rimforest water system from the City of Big Bear 
Lake Department of Water and Power. This community was within the District’s sewer 
service boundary and roughly contiguous to its water service area but because Rimforest is 
25 miles from the City of Big Bear Lake, it was determined that the citizens would be better 
served if the District took control of the water services in that area. The board of both 
agencies approved a purchase agreement in February 2014.  The issue was on the June 2014 
ballot for consideration by the citizens of the City of Big Bear Lake and was approved. 

Day-to-day management of the water and wastewater systems is delegated to the General 
Manager of the District, who reports directly to the locally elected Board of Directors. 
Reporting to the General Manager are five department heads: Engineering Manager, Field 
Operations Manager, Finance Manager, Human Resources Manager, and Operations 
Manager. 
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The District encompasses about 15 square miles and currently serves approximately 8,900 
water connections (including Deer Lodge Park and Rimforest) and 10,700 wastewater 
customers. The District is located in the San Bernardino Mountains, 23 miles north of the City 
of San Bernardino and approximately 75 miles east of Los Angeles. 

The District’s certificated water service area covers 
approximately 4,900 acres and is coterminous with 
the geographic area known as Arrowhead Woods. 
The topography of the water service area consists of 
mountainous terrain with about 40% of the land 
having slopes greater than 30%.  The surface is 
underlain by dense, fractured and jointed granite. 

The District owns and operates the Bernina Water 
Treatment Plant (WTP) with a 5 million gallon-per-
day (mgd) permitted treatment capacity and the 
Cedar Glen WTP with a 2 mgd permitted treatment 
capacity.  Water is pumped from two intakes in Lake 
Arrowhead:  One at North Bay and one at Emerald 
Bay.  The intake facility located in North Bay conveys 
untreated water to the Bernina WTP for treatment 

and the intake facility at Emerald Bay conveys untreated water to the Cedar Glen WTP. The 
quality of the water produced at the WTPs exceeds the California Department of Public 
Health requirements. Additional water supplies from local groundwater in the Grass Valley 
basin have been developed.  In addition to these five wells, a central ion exchange treatment 
facility was added to remove naturally occurring uranium from the water and to facilitate 
blending of the groundwater with Lake Arrowhead water at the Bernina WTP. Groundwater 
sources provide up to 200 acre-feet per year (AFY) or seven percent of the current demand. 
The District’s water distribution system consists of 23 water storage reservoirs, 6 pressure 
tanks, 22 water pumping stations and approximately 130 miles of water mains. 

The total permitted water treatment capacity is 7 mgd with a current average annual daily 
demand of 1.3 mgd, but because the residential makeup of the District is highly seasonal, 
daily demand can reach 6 mgd during weekends and holidays. At full build-out, the peak 
daily demand is estimated to be 7.5 mgd. System improvements and efficiencies, including 
increased local storage, will allow the District to meet future demands with its existing and 
proposed facilities.  Slow build out of the District’s water service area is not expected to occur 
until sometime after the year 2025. 

The District also owns and operates two wastewater treatment plants, the Willow Creek and 
the Grass Valley Wastewater Treatment Plants (WWTP), with a total combined permitted 
treatment capacity for dry weather average daily flow of 3.75 mgd. Partially treated effluent 
is conveyed from the Willow Creek WWTP to the Grass Valley WWTP for final treatment. 
Treated wastewater is then conveyed through the District’s 10-mile outfall pipeline to 
percolation ponds on a 350-acre facility owned by the District in Hesperia. The wastewater 
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collection system collects wastewater from two drainage basins: the Lake Arrowhead Basin 
and the Grass Valley Basin. The District has approximately 200 miles of sewer pipelines and 
21 lift stations that convey wastewater to one of the two wastewater treatment plants. 

In 2010, the District completed construction on a recycled water treatment system at the 
Grass Valley WWTP along with a distribution pipeline to deliver recycled water to the Lake 
Arrowhead Country Club for golf course turf irrigation.  The project frees up 200 to 300 AFY 
of water supply from Lake Arrowhead that can be used for residential and commercial uses 
in the Arrowhead Woods water service area, a ten to twenty percent increase in local water 
supplies. 

LOCAL ENVIRONMENT 
Lake Arrowhead is an 
unincorporated area 
governed by the County of 
San Bernardino. The District 
provides water and 
wastewater services only. 
San Bernardino County 
provides fire, police, and 
library services in the area. 
The Arrowhead Lake 
Association oversees the 
recreational use of the lake 
and its immediate 
shoreline.  

Tourism is the primary economic generator for the area, hosting approximately 2.4 million 
visitors per year in the San Bernardino National Forest. The population of the District is 
difficult to estimate, especially since the District is in an unincorporated area and a large 
number of residential units are second homes.  As a result, during summer and holidays, the 
population of the area increases significantly.  It is estimated that the permanent population 
of the Lake Arrowhead Census Designated Place is about 15,000 residents with holiday 
weekend populations exceeding 40,000. 

Because the local area is nearly built out, new connections average less than 1% per year (see 
Table 5-2 in the Statistical Section). The District limits the number of new water permits to 
five per month in response to State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Order WR 2006-
0001 (see section below on Water Management). Future development is not anticipated to 
be significant. 

WATER MANAGEMENT 
The state of California received much needed precipitation in 2018 and 2019 after the worst 
drought on record, but due to constrained supplies, the District will continue to maintain 

Lake Arrowhead 
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strict water conservation practices. Although water demand in the Lake Arrowhead 
community increased during 2020-21, consumption was still lower than pre-drought levels. 

The major source of water for the area is Lake Arrowhead. The lake contains approximately 
47,000 acre-feet of high-quality water and has a surface area of approximately 780 acres. 
Additional water is provided by groundwater wells and purchases from the State Water 
Project through an agreement with the Crestline-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency (CLAWA). 

Water Supplies (Acre Feet) 
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In 2006, the SWRCB issued Order No. WR 2006-0001 that absolutely limits the District’s 
withdrawals from Lake Arrowhead to 1,566 AFY. In compliance with the order, the District 
developed supplemental water sources consisting of local wells and a recycled water 
program. The District is continuing to search for additional water supplies. In addition, the 
District entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Arrowhead Lake 
Association establishing a goal to maintain the elevation of Lake Arrowhead at or above 5,100 
feet. Since the enactment of the MOU, the lake level remained above the 5,100 foot target 
until the recent drought. Most of Southern California received more than normal 
precipitation in water year 2019. Lake Arrowhead was no exception and the lake reached its 
full level in March 2019 and has remained above the 5,100 foot target until recently dipping 
just below that target in recent months. 
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CLAWA. In the original agreement, the price of the water was $2,627 per acre-foot with 
increases tied to energy costs. In 2009, the agreement was amended to reduce the minimum 
purchase amount to 550 AFY and deferred the treatment and transportation charges until 
the time of delivery.  The amendment also changed the method of calculating the interest. 
The balance of prepaid water at June 30, 2021 was $2.3 million. 
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Due to constrained supplies, the District will continue its water conservation efforts. After 
the drought ended, allowable irrigation days were increased from two to three days per week 
in 2016-17 which increased demand over the prior year but remained in line with past 
responsible usage. For 2018-19 through 2020-21, irrigation days were maintained at three 
days per week. Current water supplies are expected to meet medium-term demand. The 
District purchased 77 acre-feet of water from CLAWA in 2020-21 compared to 53 acre-feet 
in 2019-20 due to an increase in demand most likely resulting from residents spending more 
time in our resort community as a response to quarantine measures stemming from Covid-
19. 
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Grass Valley Wastewater Treatment Plant 

WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT 
The District must comply with local, state and federal regulations governing the collection, 
treatment, and disposal of the community’s wastewater. The agencies regulating the 
District’s wastewater activities include: The State Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(RWQCB), California Department of Public Health, San Bernardino County Environmental 
Health and the United States Forest Service. The District’s Wastewater system is operated 
under a set of Waste Discharge Requirements (WDR) as part of Regional Board Order No. 
R6V-2009-0037 issued June 10, 2009 by the RWQCB. 

The District developed and implemented a 
Sewer System Management Plan in 2017 to 
improve its spill prevention and inflow and 
infiltration (I&I) reduction programs as required 
by the WDR. The primary goal of the program is 
to prevent all spills from the Collection System. 
Increased activities related to minimizing I&I 
have been budgeted for and additional staff has 
been dedicated to these priorities. The District 
has seen a significant reduction in sanitary 
sewer overflows as a result of these efforts. 

FEES AND CHARGES 
The District’s fees and charges are collected 
through monthly bills, the County tax roll, and 
capacity/connection fees for new or expanded 
usage. Monthly charges include a fixed fee 
based on the average capacity. Variable 
components are based on the actual volume of 
flow. Variable water use charges are structured 
as increasing tiers to reflect the limited local 
low-cost water available and the higher costs 

associated with imported supplemental water. Higher rates associated with higher usage 
provide incentives to foster permanent water conservation measures within the District. A 
rate study was conducted in 2014-15 that verified the District’s rates are in compliance with 
recent court actions. The District is currently undertaking another rate study to determine 
suitable rates for the coming years. 

In 2004, the District adopted a Supplemental Water Supply Fee (Ordinance No. 61) to assist 
with the funding of supplemental water supplies.  This fee was collected annually on the 
County property tax roll.  The fee consists of a fixed annual charge for all water connections 
and a variable water charge based on the previous calendar year’s water usage.  The fee was 
established for 15 years and the fiscal year ended 2019 was the fifteenth and final year of 
the fee. 
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The District also collects capacity/connection fees for new or expanded services that increase 
demand on the water and wastewater systems.  These fees are established by the estimated 
costs of the new facilities required to provide additional services for new demand and the 
costs of repair and maintenance placed on existing facilities. 

GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES 
In 2008, the District executed a grant 
agreement with the SWRCB for a 
Water Recycling Funding Program 
Grant in the amount of $2.2 million to 
help fund construction of the District’s 
Recycled Water Project which 
delivered 263 acre-feet in 2020-21 to 
the Lake Arrowhead Country Club for 
irrigation purposes, thereby reducing 
the total draw on Lake Arrowhead. 

Recycled Water Facilities This project also provides additional 
storage of effluent during the winter, reducing the risk of overflow from the Grass Valley 
WWTP into Grass Valley Creek during rain events. 

The District is currently researching funding for expanding its recycled water program and 
has entered into an MOU with the United States Bureau of Reclamation to explore the 
feasibility of an indirect potable reuse project. The District is also included in the Mojave 
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan, which allows the District to pursue available 
funding for any projects benefitting the entire region. 

In June, 2020, the Self-Generation Incentive Program approved $1,856,000 for the 
installation of a 464-kilowatt battery storage facility at the Grass Valley WWTP. This program 
incentive was established to provide storage rebates for critical facilities in communities with 
a high threat of wildfire. This facility has a dual purpose; to provide emergency power during 
a shutoff event and to reduce overall electricity costs during normal operation. 

In March, 2021, the District was awarded $300,000 by the Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services to enhance the District’s resiliency against power shutoff events. These funds are 
being utilized to purchase emergency generation equipment and a 2-way radio system. 

FINANCIAL PLANNING 
The District continues its focus on maintaining adequate fund balances for the financial 
health of the District. Pooled cash increased in 2020-21 in anticipation of capital 
improvement projects that are scheduled to start in future years. The District maintained 850 
days pooled cash on hand before debt service in 2020-21.  

All the major Operating Funds were fully funded as of June 30, 2021.  The District will 
continue to monitor reserve levels to ensure that continued and future operations are 
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adequately funded in compliance with the District’s Cash Reserve Policy, which guides the 
priorities of operational revenue sources. 

Unrestricted Snapshot of District Liquidity Days Cash Reserves 
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The District remains committed to water conservation efforts to ensure the long-term goal 
of a healthy lake level and to comply with state mandates, but drought related water 
restrictions also reduce revenue.  The District plans to continue reducing its reliance on 
covering fixed costs with variable and restricted income. Increases in service rates were 
adopted effective January 1, 2020, based on the five-year rate study which includes optional 
drought related fees. 

In 2012-13, the District made specific commitments to the SWRCB to reduce I&I into its sewer 
system.  Capital expenditures and personnel costs have been dedicated to these activities 
and will be funded from service rates and property taxes. 

Accounting changes effective in 2014-15 required the District to record its unfunded accrued 
liability for its pension obligations. In 2012-13, the District made a $5.0 million lump sum 
payment to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) to pay down the 
District’s side fund, reducing the District’s future pension expense and cash outlay for this 
benefit. In 2020-21, the District recorded a decrease to its Net Pension Liability of $1,066,024 
in compliance with GASB 68. 

The District’s goal is to maintain the highest level of service at the lowest possible cost and 
to methodically replace aging infrastructure.  Debt service on the 2002 Revenue Bonds was 
completed in 2013-14, which freed up $1.6 million in operating cash for capital 
improvements in the Wastewater Enterprise. The District’s credit rating of AA+ was affirmed 
by Fitch with a stable outlook in November 2020.  The District is committed to maintaining 
proper cash reserves and a pledged revenue coverage that will maintain or exceed this rating 
without putting undue pressure on rates (see Table 3-3 in the Statistical Section). In 2016, 
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the District refinanced its remaining debt into one refunding instrument, saving $4.9 million 
in interest. 

Pledged Revenue Coverage 
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CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
In recent years, the District embarked on an aggressive capital improvement program to 
update aging infrastructure and create more efficient systems.  Funding for these projects 
came from a combination of debt, grants and fees.  Now that these improvements are in 
service, the District has focused its capital improvement program on smaller water and 
wastewater projects with the intent of increasing local water supplies, improving treatment 
processes and reducing leaks and I&I.  The District expended $5.4 million on capital 
improvements in 2020-21.  These improvements included the rehabilitation of sewer lines 
and manholes, a water main replacement and the installation of a battery storage facility.  
The 2021-22 Budget contains funding for continued improvements which include a new 
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corporate yard, water tank improvements, additional groundwater wells, a solar energy 
facility, continued sewer rehabilitation and upgrades to improve wastewater effluent quality. 

ACCOUNTING AND INTERNAL CONTROLS 
The Finance Department is responsible for providing the financial services of the District, 
including all accounting, reporting, financial analysis, treasury, payroll, accounts payable, 
budgeting, billing and collection of charges, taxes, and other revenues. The District’s books 
and records are maintained on an 
enterprise basis and follow the full 
accrual method of accounting. 
Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses when 
incurred. The District manages 
four distinct stand-alone 
enterprise funds: Water 
Enterprise Fund, Wastewater 
Enterprise Fund, Deer Lodge Park 
Enterprise Fund, and Rimforest 
Enterprise Fund. 

Wastewater 

Water 

Deer 
Lodge 
Park 

Rimforest 

The District’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of 
internal controls designed to safeguard the District’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to 
ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with GAAP.  The internal control structure is designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that these objectives are met.  When establishing or reviewing 
controls, management recognizes that the cost to implement a control should not exceed 
the benefits likely to be derived, and that in order to assess cost vs. benefit, estimates and 
judgment on the part of management will be required. All internal control evaluations occur 
within the above framework.  Management believes the current system of internal controls 
adequately safeguards the District’s assets and provides reasonable assurance that 
accounting transactions are properly recorded. 

BUDGETARY CONTROLS 
The Board adopts an annual budget (two one-year budgets every other year) as required by 
California Government Code Section 61110(f).  It is also used as a management control tool 
for each of the District’s enterprise funds.  Comparison information is presented to the Board 
monthly to monitor revenues and expenditures and to provide information regarding any 
major variances from budget.  In addition, monthly comparison reports are provided to all 
department managers to monitor expenditures and to plan the year as it progresses in an 
effort to stay within the adopted budget in accordance with the District’s Purchasing Policy. 
In 2014, the District adopted a new Budget Policy which defines a balanced budget and 
provides guidance in its preparation using conservative assumptions. The District adopted a 
two-year budget for fiscal years 2020-21 and 2021-22. 
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 AWARD FOR EXCELLENCE IN REPORTING 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Lake 
Arrowhead Community Services District for its comprehensive annual financial report for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.  This was the eleventh consecutive year that the District has 
achieved this prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a 
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual 
financial report.  This report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our 
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of 
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its 
eligibility for another certificate. 

We would like to thank the staff of the Finance Department for their hard work in the 
preparation of this report and for the information they provide to management, the Board 
of Directors, and to our outside auditors.  We would also like to thank the Board of Directors 
for their support of our efforts to position the District for long-term financial health which 
benefits all the citizens of the unique community we serve. 

Respectfully submitted, 

John O’Brien 
Finance Manager 

Catherine Cerri 
General Manager 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Blue Jay, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Lake Arrowhead Community Services District (the District), as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for 
California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
21 107



     

       
    

  
   
 

          
   

         
  

      
     

     
    

  
           

    
 

   
     

    
  

        
              

       
          

  
        

   
    

   
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lake 
Arrowhead Community Services District, as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in financial position, and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining financial statements listed in the Supplementary Information section of the table of contents 
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining financial statements listed in the Supplementary 
Information section of the table of contents are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 1, 2021, 
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

November 1, 2021 
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□□□□□□ 

This section of the annual financial report for the Lake Arrowhead Community Services District (District) presents 
discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 

Explanation of the Sections 

This annual report consists of three parts: 

• Introductory: This section is unaudited and includes a Transmittal Letter with background information on 
the District, a copy of the GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, an 
organization chart, and a List of Principal Officers of the District. 

• Financial: This section includes the audited financial report.  The components of the financial report include 
the Independent Auditor’s Report, Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the financial 
statements, and the audited financial statements with notes to the financial statements as well as other 
required supplementary information.  The MD&A as well as other required supplementary information has 
limited audit procedures performed on it in contrast to the financial statements and the notes to the 
financial statements, which are fully audited.  Discussion of the audit procedures is included in the 
Independent Auditor’s Report. 

• Statistical: This section is unaudited and includes selected financial and demographic information relevant 
to the District and its service area. 

Below is a diagram of the components of the annual report. 

Financial Section 

Introductory Statistical 
Section Section 

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) 

Management's Audited Notes to the Required 
Discussion and Financial Financial Supplementary 

Analysis Statements Statements Information 

About the District 

The District was first formed as a water agency in 1978. The wastewater system was acquired from the County of 
San Bernardino in 1983.  The boundaries of the wastewater system extend beyond the boundaries of the water 
system; therefore, some of the customers served by the wastewater system do not receive water from the District. 
In 1985, the District assumed the assets, ownership and control of the Deer Lake Water Corporation, a private water 
company serving the 200 customers in Deer Lodge Park, and formed the Deer Lodge Park Water system assessment 
district to provide infrastructure upgrades to meet water quality requirements in Deer Lodge Park. In 2014 the 
District acquired the assets, ownership, and control for the Rimforest Water Service area through an asset sale 
agreement with the City of Big Bear Lake. 

The District is a single proprietary, meaning it operates like a business or enterprise that charges a fee for provided 
services.  As such, the financial statements are presented on a full accrual basis of accounting. The District separates 
the operations, revenues received, and the corresponding expenses into four separate enterprises: Water, 
Wastewater, Deer Lodge Park, and Rimforest. These enterprises are accounted for separately in the financial 
statements due to the nature of how each of these operations were acquired and the arm’s length transactions that 
take place to ensure equity among all rate payers in the District. The distinction between these enterprises is both 
financial and physical but all are within the boundary of the District. 
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Financial Statements of the District 

In this MD&A, the Net Position of the District is described for each of the enterprises: Water, Wastewater, Deer 
Lodge Park, and Rimforest, along with the corresponding Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position.  

The Statement of Net Position indicates the financial position of the District and is broken down into: assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position.  Net position is the difference 
between total assets and deferred outflows of resources less total liabilities and deferred inflows. 

Net position is further broken down into three categories. Those categories and their definition are as follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets: The portion of fixed assets and construction in progress net of the corresponding 
debt.  This does not include debt not associated with capital assets such as compensated absences or interfund 
payables. 

Restricted: This is the portion of non-capital assets, net of corresponding liabilities, which are restricted either by 
legal action, ordinance or outside agencies. Certain restrictions can also be placed on cash by bond covenants or 
debt obligations.  Other restrictions are placed on the use of certain fee revenue such as Connection Fees and the 
Supplemental Water Supply Fee.  Funds appropriated for specific Assessment Districts are also set aside for 
improvements specific to those areas. 

Unrestricted: This is the portion of assets, net of liabilities, that are not restricted either by legal action or outside 
agencies and are not capital related. Unrestricted assets can include pooled cash, receivables, prepaid expenses and 
intangibles net of payables, accruals and debt not related to capital. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reports the operational activity for the current 
year and includes details of operating and non-operating revenues and expenses as well as capital contributions. 
This statement indicates the effect of operations on the change in the Statement of Net Position. 

The Statement of Cash Flows indicates the effect that operations and the change of net position has on the cash 
balances. An audited Cash Flow Statement is included with the District’s Financial Statements. 

Financial Activity of the District 

The District completed 2020-21 with $115,317,395 in net position, an increase of $5,786,684 due to positive 
operating results (see Table A-1).  Total revenues decreased $404,814 compared to the prior year primarily due to a 
decrease in investment income as a result of falling interest rates. This decrease was offset by an increase in charges 
for services of $581,540 as a result of an increase in water consumption, as well as an increase in property taxes of 
$211,872. 

Total expenses increased $342,161 primarily due to an increase in operating expenses, not including depreciation, 
of $209,563 largely as a result of increased costs associated with outside services and wages. These increases were 
partially offset by a decrease in other nonoperating expenses (see Table A-2).  

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $42,859 to $43,108,597, primarily due to positive operating results as 
discussed above as well as less than expected spending related to capital improvement projects (see Table A-3). 
Total Assets, as a whole, increased by almost $3.6 million mainly due to the aforementioned positive operating 
results as well as capital asset additions. 

Deferred outflows of resources increased by $753,979 primarily due to new deferred outflows related to a large 
pension contribution made subsequent to the measurement date, as well as differences between actual and 
expected participant experiences.  More detailed information about pension plans is presented in Note 6 to the 
financial statements. 
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Table A-1 : l ake Arrowhead Community Service.s Di.strict 

Net Po.sit ion 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 Dollar Change 

As.sets 
Current and other assets $ 5 1,5 16,240 $ 49,798,929 $ 1,7 17,3 11 

Capita l assets 89,667,749 87,833,028 1,834,721 

Tota l Assets 141, 183,989 137,631,957 3,552,032 

Deferred Outflows of Re.source.s 6, 134,891 5,380,9 12 753,979 

Liabilit ie.s 
Current liabilities 3,988,074 4,386,2 11 (398, 137) 

Noncurrent liabilities 26,908,535 28,776,408 (1,867,873) 

Tota l Liabilit ies 30,896,609 33, 162,6 19 (2,266,0 10) 

Deferred Inflows of Re.source.s 1, 104,876 3 19,539 785,337 

Net Posit ion 

Net investment in capita l assets 7 1,779,803 69,231,57 1 2,548,232 

Restr icted 14,463, 134 14,946,584 (483,450) 

Unrestr icted 29,074,458 25,352,556 3,721,902 

Tota l Net Posit ion $ 115,317,395 $ 109,53 0,711 $ 5,786,684 

Table A-2: l ake Arrowhead Community Service.s Di.strict 

Change.s in Net Posit ion 

For the Years Ended June 3 0, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 Dollar Ohange 

Revenue.s 

Charges for :services $ 15,929,973 $ 15,348,433 $ 581,540 

Other operat ing income 324,795 325,673 (878) 

Property taxes 3,768,688- 3,556,8 16 2 11,872 

Other nonoperating revenues 2 13,609 1,410,957 (1, 197,348) 

Tota l Revenues 20,237,065 20,641,879 (404,8 14) 

Long term liabilities decreased by $1.9 million primarily due to principal payments on existing obligations, as well as 
a decrease to net pension liability.  More detailed information about long term liabilities is presented in Note 5 to 
the financial statements. 

Net investments in capital assets increased $2.5 million due to capital asset additions, partially offset by depreciation 
expense. 
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Expense.s 

Operating expenses 12,290, 120 12,080,557 209,563 

Depreciat ion 3,627,788 3,505,809 12 1,979 

Interest expense 736,442 8 16,976 (80,534) 

Other nonoperat ing expenses 66, 118 (25,035) 9 1, 153 

Tota l Expenses 16,720,468 16,378,307 342, 16 1 

Income (los.s) Before capit al 
Contributions and Transfers 3,5 16,597 4,263,572 (746,975) 

capit al Contributions 2,270,087 302,603 2,2 18,379 

Change in Net Posit ion 5,786,684 4,566, 175 1,47 1,404 

Net Posit ion at Beginning of Year 109,530,7 11 104,964,536 4,566, 175 

Net Posit ion at End of Year $ 115,3 17,395 $ 109,530,7 11 5,786,684 

Td!Jh: A·3: l ok1: A, 10\,·lu:diJ 0.111m11.111il v St:1\·i-.:0 Oi)lt il.t 
Pnol?rl .=inrl RP.ttr ilrTPtl ( A.<h 

Hine 30, 2011 

!With companlil\•e totals for June ~u, zu:iu) 

W.ltc r Wastcw.itcr OU' Rimforc'it Tot,112021 Tat .ll 2020 
Unrc-.)tricic-d PO'Olc-d Cosh s 8,3 14.4~4 s 20.133,70 1 S 1~G.9 lG s 4.~31 s 2.3,G09,?12 ~23.097,4?·3 

Rc-rtrictc-d Cc.sh 
f d Li li. it::::tSo. Dtp u:.ib 99,0 15 ?7.819 14,157 190~932 163.0SO 
\\' i'l t f't ::..1r,pty 11,.=o fi.,:i•" 11,.\0fi, 'lM 11.11 1, .u~ 

As!.e!.;; 'rlen! d istrict 1,601,'!13 399,.?H 2,000, 93l 1,9 8-5, '! l -5 

L>-::>t reserve • 
Total ~et -bicted Cash 12,405,973 1,679,532 '113,375 1'1,-198, S.3: t.1,963,2S9 

iota, 1-'aoled ar,d 
He stricte d Cc;sh 201720/132 21~13,299 i 570,291 111S81 "31108159/ ·l: 113,065173.S~ ~ ~ i 
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!e 8-1: Lake Arr,owh,ead Uamm11.miity Servi:oe.s D'i&triict 

Net Pi®'.S:iititan 

Water l:!1i11teri11mi.se f11m,d 

H ll lil,e 3•0,, 2021 a 111,d 20 20 

2021 .211!),211!) 

As.sets 

Current and other assets $ 25,803,721 s 2 ;975,690 

Capit al assets 38,928,136 

ota l Assets 64,731,857 

l)eferred 011tfl1mvs of Re-so11m:ie-s 2,562,6.38 2, 77,5 1 

LJiia b:i I il:1te-s 

Cur rent li abilit ies 9 0,773 ,079,255 

Noncurrent liabilit ies 0,001, 67 10,652,563 

ota I Li a bi I it ies 10,902,240 11,73 ,818 

l)eferred llilifllows iof Resa11rnes 97, 97 ,597 

Net Piosirt1i'am 

N,et investment i n capit al assets 32,860 ,556 33,5 6,,180 

Restr i cted 2, 32,8-04 1.2;93 ,226 

Lll n restri cted 0,601,698 8,6,38,77 

ota l N,et Posit i on $, 5,5,,895,,058 $, 5,5,ilitS9,18iO 

Do!lllar 10h.rnge 

$ 828,031 

(880,228) 

(52, 97 ) 

.385,097 

(1 78,482) 

(6,51,0 % 1 

(829,5781 

.356,6 0 

(6,55,6,24) 

(501, 22 ) 

,962;92 

$ 8'05,.,878 

Financial Activity of the District’s Enterprise Funds 

Water Enterprise Fund 

The net position of the Water Enterprise increased $805,878 from 2020-21 due to positive operating results (see 
Table B-1). Net investment in capital assets decreased $655,624 as the result of a decrease in construction activity 
as well as the retirement of assets past their useful life. Restricted net position decreased $501,422 due to the 
ending of the assessment of the supplemental water supply fee.  Unrestricted net position (that which can be used 
to finance day-to-day operations) increased $1,962,924. 

Total revenues decreased $85,236 primarily due to the reduction of investment income due to falling interest rates.  
This was partially offset by an increase in charges for services of $376,129 as a result of rate increases in water 
consumption. Total expenses, exclusive of depreciation, decreased $236,555 primarily due to operational cost 
saving within some of the smaller operating units. (see Table B-2). Net operating transfers resulted in a decrease to 
net position of $12,456 in the current year. 
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Table 8-2 : l ak e Arrowhead Community Service.s District 

Change.s in Net Posit ion 

W ater Enterprise Fund 

For t he Years Ende d June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 Dollar Change 

Revenue.s 

Charges for services $ 7,504,594 $ 7,128,465 $ 376,129 

Other operat ing income 196,163 185,167 10,996 

Nonoperat ing revenues 86,60 1 558,962 (472,36 1) 

Tota l Revenues 7,787,358 7,872,594 (85,236) 

Expense.s 

Depreciation 1,609,689 1,650,008 (40,3 19) 

Operations 2,100,8 19 1,959,574 14 1,245 

Administration 1,641,985 1,496,2 13 145,772 

Distribution Field Operations 935,037 1,047,367 (112,330) 

Other operat ing expenses 658,078 630,3 13 27,765 

Interest expense 253,600 289,492 (35,892) 

Nonoperat ing expenses 63, 120 (6,875) 69,995 

Tota l Expenses 7,262,328 7,066,092 196,236 

Income (Loss) be fore capit al 

Contribut ions and Transfers 525,000 80 6,502 (28 1,472) 

Capita l Contributions 293,334 200,744 92,590 

Tra ns fers (ln)/ Out 12,456 298, 159 (285,703) 

Change in Net Posit ion 80 5,878 709,087 96,791 

Net Posit ion at Beginning of Year 55,089, 180 54,380,093 709,087 

Net Posit ion at End of Year $ 55,895,058 $ 55,089, 180 80 5,878 

Water Enterprise Fund (Continued) 

Wastewater Enterprise Fund 

The net position of the Wastewater Enterprise increased $4,908,158 from 2019-20 due to positive operating results 
(See Table C-1). Net investment in capital assets increased $3,209,514 as the result of an increase in construction 
activity for wastewater collection and treatment plant projects which is offset by depreciation. Restricted net 
position increased $13,502 and unrestricted net position (that which can be used to finance day-to-day operations) 
increased $1,685,142 due to positive operating results discussed below. 

Wastewater revenue is mostly derived from fixed fees.  Total revenues decreased $307,581 primarily due to a 
decrease in investment income due to falling interest rates.  This decrease was offset by an increase in charges for 
services of $187,278 as a result of rate increases effective January 1, 2020, as well as an increase in property tax 
revenue of $211,872. Total expenses, exclusive of depreciation, increased $114,864 primarily due to increases 
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able C-1 : l ake Arrowhead Community Service.s Dist rict 

Net Posit ion 

Wost ewater Enterprise Fund 

lune 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 Dollar Change 

As.sets 
Current and other assets $ 25,052,864 $ 24,142,567 $ 9 10,297 

Capita l assets 49,244,346 46,470,829 2,773,5 17 

Tota l Assets 74,297,2 10 70,6 13,396 3,683,8 14 

Deferred Outflows of Re.source.s 3,485,567 3,098,962 386,605 

Liabilit ies 

Current liabilit ies 3,024,767 3,2 12,06 1 (187,294) 

Noncurrent liabilit ies 16,755,064 17,82 1,734 (1,066,670) 

Tota l Liabilit ies 19,779,831 2 1,033,795 (1,253,964) 

Deferred Inflows of Re.source.s 585,58 1 169,356 416,225 

Net Posit ion 

Net investment in capita l assets 37,466,105 34,256,59 1 3,209,5 14 

Restricted 1,6 16,955 1,603,453 13,502 

Unrestricted 18,334,305 16,649, 163 1,685, 142 

Tota l Net Posit ion $ 57,417,365 $ 52,509,207 $ 4,908,158 

experienced in wages, pension costs and outside services (see Table C-2). Operating transfers increased net position 
by $12,456 in the current year. 
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Table C-2 : l ake Arrowhead Community Service.s District 

Change.s in Net Posit ion 

W a.stewater Enterprise Fund 

For t he Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 Dollar Change 

Revenue.s 

Charges for services $ 7,970,2 12 $ 7,782,934 $ 187,278 

Other operating income 112,932 120,742 (7,8 10) 

Property taxes 3,768,688 3,556,8 16 2 11,872 

Nonoperat ing revenues 13 1,600 830,52 1 (698,92 1) 

Tota l Revenues 11,983,432 12,29 1,0 13 (307,58 1) 

Expenses 

Deprec iation 1,959,231 1,80 1,094 158,137 

Operations 2,866,644 2,787,859 78,785 

Administration 1,886,445 1,8 12,726 73,7 19 

Collect ions Field Operations 1,357,189 1,371,025 (13,836) 

Other operat ing expenses 498,429 503,109 (4,680 ) 

Interest expense 477,968 5 18,250 (40,282) 

Nonoperat ing expenses 2,998 (18, 160) 2 1, 158 

Tota l Expenses 9,048,904 8,775,903 273,001 

Income (Loss) before capit al 

Contribut ions and Transfers 2,934,528 3,5 15,110 (580 ,582) 

Capita l Contributions 1,961,174 86,280 1,874,894 

Tra ns fers (ln)/ Out (12,456) (298, 159) 285,703 

Change in Net Posit ion 4,908,158 3,899,549 1,008,609 

Net Posit ion at Beginning of Year 52,509,207 48,609,658 3,899,549 

Net Posit ion at End of Year $ 57,417,365 $ 52,509,207 4,908, 158 

Wastewater Enterprise Fund (Continued) 

Deer Lodge Park Enterprise Fund 

The net position of the Deer Lodge Park Enterprise increased $11,875 from 2019-20 due to positive operating results 
(See Table D-1).  Restricted net position was increased by $4,470 and unrestricted net position (that which can be 
used to finance day-to-day operations) increased $50,373. 

Total revenues increased $3,423 primarily due to an increase in charges for services of $16,880 as a result of rate 
increases effective January 1, 2020 and increased water consumption, but was offset by a decrease in investment 
income as a result of falling interest rates. Total expenses, exclusive of depreciation, decreased $6,923 primarily due 
to due to cost savings within some of the smaller operating units. (see Table D-2). 
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Table D-1 : l ake Arrowhead Community Service.s District 

Net Posit ion 

Deer lodge Park Enterprise Fund 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 Dollar Change 

As.sets 

Current and other assets $ 604,2 12 $ 578,267 $ 25,945 

Capita l assets 1, 112,830 1, 155,798 (42,968) 

Tota l Assets 1,7 17,042 1,734,065 (17,023) 

Deferred Outflows of Resource.s 43,343 34,80 3 8,540 

Liabilit ies 

Current liabilit ies 8,403 25,955 (17,552) 

Noncurrent liabilit ies 76,002 86,662 (10,660) 

Tota l Liabilit ies 84,405 112,6 17 (28,2 12) 

Deferred Inflows of Re.sour,ces 11,049 3, 195 7,854 

Net Posit ion 

Net investment in capita l assets 1,112,830 1,155,798 (42,968) 

Restricted 413,375 408,905 4,470 

Unrestricted 138,726 88,353 50,373 

Tota l Net Posit ion s 1,664,931 s 1,653,056 s 11,875 

Table 0-2: Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Changes in N et Position 

Deer l odge Park Enterprise Fund 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 a nd 2020 

2021 2020 Dollar Change 

Revenue.s 

Charges for s,rvices s 187,9 88 s 171,108 16,880 

Other operatin& income 9,042 10,084 (1,0 42) 

Nonoperating revenues 1,157 13,572 (12,415) 

Tota l Revenues 198,187 194,764 3,423 

Deer Lodge Park Enterprise Fund (Continued) 
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Expense.s 

Deprec iat ion 42,968 38,807 4,16 1 

Operat ions 55,960 65,025 (9,065) 

Adm in istrat ion 43,335 38,8 11 4,524 

Ot her operat ing expenses 59,628 6 1,146 (1,5 18) 

Interest expense 864 (864) 

Tota l Expenses 201,891 204,653 (2,762) 

Income (Lo&s) before capit al 

Cont r ibutions and Transfers (3,704) (9,889) 6,185 

Capita l Contr i but ions 15,579 15,579 

Transfers ( ln)/ Out 

Change in Net Posit ion 11,875 5,690 6,185 

Net Posit ion at Beginning of Year 1,653,056 1,647,366 5,690 

Net Posit ion at End of Year 1,664,931 1,653,056 11,875 

Table E-1: Lake Arrow head Community Servicei Dht rict 
Net Posit ion 

Rim forcst Entc rp ri.sc r und 

ll JnP :In,. 1011 a nd ,n,n 

1071 1010 OnlJ;u C:h.::i r,eP 

As.sets 
OJrren : e n::1 o h er o !.sets ~ :i:i,443 ~ 102,4()'j ~ (4G,9 G2) 

Capital asse:s 382,437 398, 037 (15,600) 

Tota I Assets. 437,880 500,442 (62,562) 

Deterred Outt1ow .s of Resource.s 43.343 69,606 (26,263) 

Liabilit fe.s 
OJ11 t"ll. lidlJil ilit'::t 54,131 68,940 (14,809) 
Noncurren: liab il itie~ 76,002 2 1S, '149 (139,4<7) 

Total Liabilit ies 130,133 284,389 (154,256) 

Deferred lnflo\V.s of Re.source.s 11.049 6,391 4,658 
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Deer Lodge Park Enterprise Fund (Continued) 

Rimforest Enterprise Fund 

The net position of the Rimforest Enterprise increased $60,773 from 2019-20 due to positive operating results (See 
Table E-1).  Net investment in capital assets increased $37,310 due to a decrease in notes payable for the purchase 
of the Rimforest system. Unrestricted net position (that which can be used to finance day-to-day operations) 
increased $23,463 due to positive operating results discussed below. 

Total revenues decreased $15,420 primarily due to a decrease in investment income due to falling interest rates.  
Total expenses, exclusive of depreciation, decreased $124,344 primarily due to cost savings within the smaller 
operating units (see Table E-2). 
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Net P10-siti[on 

Net i nvestment i n ca pit al assets 3 40,312 303,002 37,310 

Restri cted 

Un restr i cted (271 ) (2.3,7.3 I 23, 63 

Tot al Net Posit i on 340,@41 279,268 60,773, 

Tabl!e E-2: Lake A rrowhea.d Co mm11J nirty Servr.oes Di,str ict 

,changes in N ert P,ositicm 

Rimforest Ente r1pri;se F,11J nd 

for t h e Years Ended f 11Jne 30, 20 21 and 20 20 

20 2 1 20 20 Dollla,r Change 

Reven11Jes 

Charges for servi ces $ 267,179 $ 265,926 1,253 

other operat i ng i ncom e 6,6,58 9,680 (3,0 22 ) 

Non operat i ng revenues (5,7 9 ) 7,902 (13,651 ) 

Tot al R,evenu,es 268,0 88 28 3,508 (15,420) 

Expenses 

Depreci at i on 15,900 15,900 

Operat i ons 24,622 45,271 (20,64 9 ) 

Administ rat i on 6:0,523 9 5,189 (34,666 ) 

Ot her operat i ng expenses 101,39 6 1 6:6,929 (65,533 ) 

Interest expens,e 4,874 8,370 (3,496) 

Total Expens,es 207,3 15 331,659 (124,344) 

tnoom e ILo.s.-s ► before Capiitall 

Contr1b11Jt :i'on.s and Tran.sfe rs 60 ,773 ( 8,1 51) 108,92 4 

Ca pit a I Contri but i ons. 

Trans ers (l n)/Out 

,ohange i'n N et Po.S'iitfon 60,773 8,1 51) 108;9 2 

N et Po,s•iit:i.on ait Reginn i'ng o f Year 279,268 327,419 ( 8,151 ) 

N et Po,s•iitfon art Ern d o f Yea,r $ 340,041 $ 279,.268 60 ,773 

Rimforest Enterprise (Continued) 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

In 2020-21, net capital assets increased $1,834,721 due to an increase in capital improvement projects and the 
purchase of new equipment. Construction in progress represents expenditures for projects that are continuing and 
have not yet been completed as of June 30, 2021.  In 2020-21, the District completed $2,977,817 in capital 
improvements.  The major additions to capital assets included the replacement of sewer lines and meters, the 
replacement of water lines and the rehabilitation of manholes. There were also various improvements to the 
treatment plants, projects to reduce inflow and infiltration into the collection system, and other facility 
improvements.  There are currently no other plans for infrastructure related debt and the District will continue on a 

 
34 120



 
 

     
          

   

  
       

  
      

  

 

  
        

   
     

    
   

    
   

Table F-1: Lake Arrowhead Community Services Dist rict 

Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

June 30, 2021 

(with comparative totals for June 30, 2020) 

Water Wastewater OLP Rimforest To al 2021 Tota l 2020 

Land s 52,336 s 221,320 s 58,249 s s 331,905 s 326,269 

Construction in progress 1,006,126 4,850,307 895 s 5,857,328 s 3,560,109 

Buildings and improvements 36,369,374 42,37 ,781 1,05 ,581 381,542 $ 80,180,278 $81,391, 90 

Equipment 611,410 1,797,939 s 2,409,349 s 1,656,170 

Intangible assets 888,889 s 888,889 s 898,990 

Tota l $38,928,136 $49,244,346 $1,112,830 $382,437 $ 89,667,749 $ 87,833,028 

Table F-2 : Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

June 30, 2021 

(with comparative totals for June 30, 2020) 

Water Wastewater OLP Rimforest Tota l 2021 Tota l 2020 

Accrued Compensated Absence.s S 120,920 $ 186,060 S S S 306,980 $ 281,071 

Notes payable 42,125 

Net pens ion l iability 3,420,074 4,028,087 76,002 76,002 7,600,165 8,666,189 

2016 Refunding Revenue Bonds 6,460,473 12,540,917 19,001,390 19,787,023 

Tota l Noncurren Liabi lit ies $10,00 ,467 $16,755,06 s 76,002 $ 76,002 $ 26,908,535 $ 28,776,408 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

pay‐as‐you‐go  basis  for  necessary  improvements.    Table  F‐1  below  summarizes  the  capital  assets  by  category. 
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the financial statements. 

Noncurrent Liabilities 

At June 30, 2021, the District had $26,908,535 in noncurrent liabilities, compared to $28,776,408 at June 30, 2020, 
a net decrease of $1,867,873 primarily due  to  the  reduction of $785,633 in the balance on the 2016 Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, as well as a $1,066,024 decrease in net pension liability (see Table F‐2).  Additional information on 
the District’s long‐term debt can be found in Note 5 of the financial statements. 

In 2016‐17, the District refinanced the outstanding 2009 Certificates of Participation and the SRF Loan with 2016 
Refunding Revenue Bonds. The District must satisfy bond covenants which require that the net revenues of the 
Water and Wastewater Enterprises (excluding depreciation) must be at least 120% of the annual debt service on the 
2016 Refunding Revenue Bonds. The District satisfied these covenants in fiscal year 2020‐2021.  These covenants 
are tested each year and are presented in the statistical section in Table 3‐3. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Water conservation measures remained in place during 2020‐21.  That being said, with the quarantine measures put 
in place related to COVID‐19, the District saw a significant increase in consumption. As a result, the District saw an 
overall  increase  in  consumption  of  approximately  9% compared  to  the  prior  year.  This  increased  level  of  
consumption is  expected to continue for  the near  future. The District  implemented a  five‐year  rate  structure  in  
response to an  independent rate study with 2020 being  the  fifth  year  of the  five‐year plan. Updates to the rate  
structure are currently being discussed and explored.  

At the same time, the District continues its focus on cost control, maintaining controllable operating costs at less 
than 4% lower than fiscal year 2019‐20 after adjusting for water purchases and GASB 68 adjustments. Controllable 
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operating expenses were 8% below budget. Assumptions for 2021-22 budgeted expenses are projected to increase 
less than 4% in most categories. 

Water Enterprise Factors 

Fixed meter fees and increases in consumption have helped to keep this enterprise cash flow positive during the 
past fiscal year. Cash reserves at the end of fiscal year 2021 are sufficient to fund the medium-term capital 
improvement plan. Nominal rate increases are expected to continue. 

This enterprise relies mostly on surface water from Lake Arrowhead. Groundwater sources continued production 
throughout the dry weather months. The District is actively searching for additional sources of supply and is 
projecting slow population growth through 2022 and beyond. 

Wastewater Enterprise Factors 

The financial stability of the Wastewater Enterprise is supported by a fixed residential rate structure and allocations 
from the county property tax assessment. Property tax income increased in 2020-21 by 6% and is expected to 
increase in 2021-22. This enterprise is fully funded and will only require inflationary rate increases. 

Deer Lodge Park Factors 

Deer Lodge Park relies on groundwater wells and imported water for its supply. With only 215 accounts supporting 
this operation, cash flow remains a concern. A rate increase was put into effect in fiscal year 2016 as part of a five-
year rate plan and future rate increases are currently being explored. 

Rimforest Enterprise 

Rimforest consumption for 2020-21 increased by 4.7%. A rate increase was put into effect in both July 2016 and 
2017 and future rate increases are currently being explored. Debt service payments for the purchase of this system 
in 2014 will continue until fiscal year 2022. 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you 
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the District’s Finance Manager at 
PO Box 700, Lake Arrowhead, CA  92352. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2021 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Water Wastewater Funds Total 
ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Investments $ 8,314,454 $ 20,133,761 $ 161,497 $ 28,609,712 
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance): 

Current Services 1,295,796 1,098,246 80,715 2,474,757 
Taxes - 191,471 - 191,471 
Other 22,406 800 - 23,206 
Interest 14,385 26,716 - 41,101 
Grants - 1,856,000 - 1,856,000 

Inventory 224,791 37,790 - 262,581 
Prepaids 2,410,356 28,548 4,068 2,442,972 
Interfund Receivables 1,052,923 - - 1,052,923 
Restricted Cash and Investments 12,405,978 1,679,532 413,375 14,498,885 
Restricted Accounts Receivable 62,632 - - 62,632 

Total Current Assets 25,803,721 25,052,864 659,655 51,516,240 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 1,058,462 5,071,627 59,143 6,189,232 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 37,869,674 44,172,719 1,436,124 83,478,517 

Total Capital Assets 38,928,136 49,244,346 1,495,267 89,667,749 

Total Noncurrent Assets 38,928,136 49,244,346 1,495,267 89,667,749 

Total Assets 64,731,857 74,297,210 2,154,922 141,183,989 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 1,950,445 2,297,191 86,686 4,334,322 
Deferred Amount on Refunding 612,193 1,188,376 - 1,800,569 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,562,638 3,485,567 86,686 6,134,891 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 150,056 313,585 13,638 477,279 
Accrued Liabilities 148,546 301,435 6,771 456,752 
Customer Deposits Payable 35,806 62,577 - 98,383 
Interest Payable 60,563 117,563 - 178,126 
Unearned Revenue - 298,362 - 298,362 
Interfund Payables - 1,052,923 - 1,052,923 
Compensated Absences - Current 286,502 452,622 - 739,124 
Notes Payable - Current - - 42,125 42,125 
Bonds Payable - Current 219,300 425,700 - 645,000 

Total Current Liabilities 900,773 3,024,767 62,534 3,988,074 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Compensated Absences 120,920 186,060 - 306,980 
Bonds Payable 6,460,473 12,540,917 - 19,001,390 
Net Pension Liability 3,420,074 4,028,087 152,004 7,600,165 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 10,001,467 16,755,064 152,004 26,908,535 

Total Liabilities 10,902,240 19,779,831 214,538 30,896,609 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 497,197 585,581 22,098 1,104,876 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 32,860,556 37,466,105 1,453,142 71,779,803 
Restricted: 

Assessment Districts - 1,601,713 399,218 2,000,931 
Capital Improvements 12,432,804 15,242 14,157 12,462,203 

Unrestricted 10,601,698 18,334,305 138,455 29,074,458 

Total Net Position $ 55,895,058 $ 57,417,365 $ 2,004,972 $ 115,317,395 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Total 
Nonmajor 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for Services 
Other Income 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operations 
Depreciation 
Administration 
Collection Maintenance 
Distribution Maintenance 
Water Purchases 
Physical Maintenance 
Engineering 
Water Conservation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Property Taxes 
Rental Income 
Other Revenue 
Investment Income 
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets 
Interest Expense 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions 
and Transfers 

Capital Contributions 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 

Net Position - End of Year 

Water 

$ 7,504,594 
196,163 

7,700,757 

2,100,819 
1,609,689 
1,641,985 

-
935,067 
109,775 
110,182 
177,984 
260,137 

6,945,638 

755,119 

-
-

1,305 
85,296 

(63,120) 
(253,600) 

(230,119) 

525,000 

293,334 
-

(12,456) 

805,878 

55,089,180 

$ 55,895,058 

Wastewater Funds Total 

$ 7,970,212 
112,932 

$ 455,167 
15,700 

$ 15,929,973 
324,795 

8,083,144 470,867 16,254,768 

2,866,644 
1,959,231 
1,886,445 
1,357,189 

-
-

223,856 
274,573 

-

80,582 
58,868 

103,858 
-

52,674 
93,411 
5,305 
9,634 

-

5,048,045 
3,627,788 
3,632,288 
1,357,189 

987,741 
203,186 
339,343 
462,191 
260,137 

8,567,938 404,332 15,917,908 

(484,794) 66,535 336,860 

3,768,688 
157,045 

-
(25,445) 
(2,998) 

(477,968) 

-
-
1 

(4,593) 
-

(4,874) 

3,768,688 
157,045 

1,306 
55,258 

(66,118) 
(736,442) 

3,419,322 (9,466) 3,179,737 

2,934,528 57,069 3,516,597 

1,961,174 
12,456 

-

15,579 
-
-

2,270,087 
12,456 

(12,456) 

4,908,158 72,648 5,786,684 

52,509,207 1,932,324 109,530,711 

$ 57,417,365 $ 2,004,972 $ 115,317,395 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Nonmajor 
Water Wastewater Funds Total 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from Customers $ 7,668,988 $ 8,037,610 $ 462,529 $ 16,169,127 
Payments to Employees for Services (3,922,638) (4,845,173) (255,963) (9,023,774) 
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (2,048,794) (2,675,650) (169,542) (4,893,986) 
Receipts from Other Revenues 1,305 298,362 1 299,668 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 1,698,861 815,149 37,025 2,551,035 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash Received from Other Funds 201,153 - - 201,153 
Cash Paid to Other Funds - (183,871) (17,282) (201,153) 
Property Taxes Received - 3,769,528 - 3,769,528 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital and 
Related Financing Activities 201,153 3,585,657 (17,282) 3,769,528 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (811,273) (4,764,226) (300) (5,575,799) 
Interest Paid (270,038) (509,880) (5,738) (785,656) 
Capital Contributions (Payments) 293,334 105,174 15,579 414,087 
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 6,235 40,935 - 47,170 
Principal Paid on Notes Payable - - (52,910) (52,910) 
Principal Paid on Bonds Payable (210,800) (409,200) - (620,000) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and 
Related Financing Activities (992,542) (5,537,197) (43,369) (6,573,108) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Rental Payments Received - 157,045 - 157,045 
Interest Received 115,153 28,399 (4,593) 138,959 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 115,153 185,444 (4,593) 296,004 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,022,625 (950,947) (28,219) 43,459 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of the Year 19,697,807 22,764,240 603,691 43,065,738 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year $ 20,720,432 $ 21,813,293 $ 575,472 $ 43,109,197 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Operating Income (Loss) $ 755,119 $ (484,794) $ 66,535 $ 336,860 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 1,609,689 1,959,231 58,868 3,627,788 
Other Revenues 1,305 - 1 1,306 
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities: 

Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable (33,019) (45,109) (8,338) (86,466) 
Decrease (Increase) in Inventory (21,505) (341) - (21,846) 
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses 18,108 (14,477) 536 4,167 
Decrease (Increase) in Deferred Outflows - Pensions (419,108) (452,626) 17,723 (854,011) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (222,024) (456,624) 1,351 (677,297) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities 16,688 107,222 (4,781) 119,129 
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue - 298,362 - 298,362 
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 28,807 53,498 - 82,305 
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability (396,049) (563,193) (106,782) (1,066,024) 
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows - Pensions 356,600 416,225 12,512 785,337 
Increase (Decrease) in Deposits Payable 1,250 (425) - 825 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 1,695,861 $ 816,949 $ 37,625 $ 2,550,435 

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities 

Amortization Related to Long-term Debt $ 47,815 $ 92,818 $ - $ 140,633 
Amortization of Deferred Amount on Refunding (34,011) (66,021) - (100,032) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 

The Lake Arrowhead Community Services District (the “District”) was organized in March 1978 under 
the Community Services District Law (California Government Code Section 61000). The District is 
governed by a Board of Directors made up of 5 members elected by the qualified voters of the District. 
The purpose of the District is to finance, construct, operate and maintain a water system and wastewater 
system to serve properties within the District’s boundaries. 

The criteria used in determining the scope of the reporting entity are based on the provisions of GASB 
Cod. Sec. 2100 “Defining the Financial Reporting Entity”. The District is the primary government unit. 
Component units are those entities which are financially accountable to the primary government, either 
because the District appoints a voting majority of the component units’ board, or because the 
component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose a financial burden on the District. The District 
has no component units. 

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

As a governmental agency, the District is subject to accounting and reporting standards established by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). As the majority of revenues consist of water 
and sewer sales and related services, the District reports its activities in enterprise funds. The District 
uses the accrual basis of accounting. The financial activities of the District are accounted for using the 
economic resources measurement focus. Under this method, all assets and liabilities associated with 
its operations are included on the statement of net position; revenues are recorded when earned and 
become measurable; and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred. 

The accounts of the District are organized into four enterprise funds. The District maintains enterprise 
funds for the Lake Arrowhead Water System (Water), Lake Arrowhead Sewage System (Wastewater), 
Deer Lodge Park Water System (Deer Lodge Park) and Rimforest Water System (Rimforest). 

Water Fund 

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the transmission, distribution, and 
treatment of water for the District’s water customers. 

Wastewater Fund 

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the treatment and disposal of wastewater 
for the District’s wastewater customers. 

Nonmajor Deer Lodge Park Fund 

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the purchase of water or pumping activities 
from wells in the area, and the transmission and distribution to the customers in Deer Lodge Park. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 

Nonmajor Rimforest Water System 

This fund is used to account for the activities associated with the storage and distribution of water to 
the residents and businesses in the community of Rimforest. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources and disclosures at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Revenues and Expenses 

Revenues and expenses are distinguished between operating and non-operating items. Operating 
revenues generally result from providing services in connection with the District’s principal ongoing 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the District are fees in connection with providing water 
and sewer services to customers. 

Operating expenses include the costs of providing water and sewer services, administrative expenses, 
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all short-term debt securities 
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The District invests 
funds with the State of California Pooled Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Due to the high liquidity 
of this investment, the funds are classified as cash equivalents. 

Investments 

Investments are stated at their fair value, which represents the quoted or stated market value. 
Investments that are not traded on a market, such as investments in external pools, are valued based 
on the stated fair value as represented by the external pool. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Receivables are reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical experience and 
management’s evaluation of outstanding receivables. The allowance for doubtful receivables totaled 
$14,907 at June 30, 2021. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 

Property Taxes and Assessments 

Property taxes are assessed and collected each fiscal year according to the following property tax 
calendar: 

Lien Date: January 1 
Levy Date: July 1 
Due Date: November 1 1st Installment 

February 1 2nd Installment 
Delinquent Date: December 10 1st Installment 

April 10 2nd Installment 

Inventory 

Inventory consists primarily of materials used in the construction and maintenance of capital assets, 
and is valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets purchased or acquired with a cost exceeding $5,000 and an estimated useful life of more 
than one year are reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets received prior to the 
implementation of GASB 72 were recorded at fair value on the date of donation. Donated capital assets 
received subsequent to the implementation of GASB 72 are recorded at acquisition value as of the date 
received. 

Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset 
are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. 
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Intangible assets 99 years 
Buildings and improvements 25 – 60 years 

  Equipment  3  –  30  years  

Depreciation totaled $3,627,788 for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Compensated Absences 

Accumulated and unpaid vacation and sick leave is accrued when incurred and included in current and 
noncurrent liabilities.  The balance as of June 30, 2021 is $1,046,104. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents consumption of net position that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The District reports deferred outflows as a result of the 
District’s implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, 
which qualify for reporting in this category. In addition, the District reports deferred outflows relating to 
the 2016 Refunding Revenue Bonds. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District reports deferred inflows as a result of 
the District’s implementation of GASB Statement No. 68. 

Net Position 

The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as net position. Net position is classified as 
either net investment in capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted. Net investment in capital assets, 
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding principal of 
related debt. Restricted net position reflects the carrying value of assets less related liabilities that 
have external constraints placed on them by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of 
other governments, or through constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net 
position represents the remaining fund equity balance. 

Net Position Flow Assumption 

Sometimes the District will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g. restricted 
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as 
restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the statement of net position, a flow assumption 
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the District’s 
policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position. 

Pension Plan 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related 
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions 
to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  
Investments are reported at fair value. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2021 are classified in the accompanying statement of net position 
as follows: 

Cash and Investments $ 28,609,712 
Restricted Cash and Investments 14,498,885 
Total Cash and Investments $ 43,108,597 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2021 consist of the following: 

Cash on Hand $ 700 
Deposits with Financial Institutions 6,998,562 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 28,003,949 
Corporate Bonds 2,949,278 
Certificate of Deposits 5,156,108 
Total Cash and Investments $ 43,108,597 

Investments Authorized by the District’s Investment Policy 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District’s investment policy, 
which is in accordance with the California Government Code. This table does not address 
investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt 
agreements of the District, rather than the general provision of the California Government Code or 
the District’s investment policy: 

Maximum 
Authorized Maximum Allowable Quality 

Investment Type Maturity Percentage Requirements 
Local Agency Bonds 5 years 10% None 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None 
State Obligations 5 years 10% None 
California Local Agency Obligations 5 years None None 
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None 
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 30% None 
Commercial Paper 270 days 10% A1 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposits 5 years 30% None 
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 10% AAA 
Mutual Funds 5 years 15% AAA 
Money Market Mutual Funds 5 years 15% AAA 
Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years None None 
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% AAA 
International Bank Obligations 5 years 30% AA 
California Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) N/A None None 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS – Continued 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its 
fair value to changes in market rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to 
interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer-term investments and by 
timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to 
maturing evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including investments 
held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows 
the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity as of June 30, 2021: 

Remaining Maturity (in Months) 
12 Months 13 to 24 25-60 

Investment Type or Less Months Months Fair Value 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit $ 1,768,683 $ 2,064,370 $ 1,323,055 $ 5,156,108 
Corporate Bonds - - 2,949,278 2,949,278 
LAIF 28,003,949 - ‐ 28,003,949 

Total $ 29,772,632 $ 2,064,370 $ 4,272,333 $ 36,109,335 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) 
the California Government Code, the District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual 
rating as of year-end for each investment type. 

Rating as of Year End 
Total Minimum 

Investment Type Investment Legal Rating A BBB Unrated 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit $ 5,156,108 N/A $ - $ - $ 5,156,108 
Corporate Bonds 2,949,278 A 1,985,828 963,450 -
LAIF 28,003,949 N/A - - 28,003,949 

Total $ 36,109,335 $ 1,985,828 $ 963,450 $ 33,160,057 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS – Continued 

Fair Value of Investments 

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. 

Level 1 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets. 

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly and fair value is determined through the use of models or other 
valuation methodologies including: 

 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
 Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are inactive; inputs other 

than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
 Matrix pricing models, used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark 

quoted prices; 
 Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation 

or other means. 

Level 3 – Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. These unobservable inputs reflect the District’s own assumptions about the inputs 
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions about risk). These 
unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the circumstances and 
may include the District’s own data. 

The District has the following recurring fair value measurements at year-end: 

 Negotiable Certificates of Deposit of $5,156,108 are valued using a matrix pricing model (Level 2 
inputs). 

 Corporate Bonds of $2,949,278 are valued using a matrix pricing model (Level 2 inputs). 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the District contains no limitation on the amount that can be invested in any 
one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no investments in 
any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total District investments (other than U.S. Treasury 
securities, mutual funds and external investment pools). 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS – Continued 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.   

The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following 
provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure 
deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). 

The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total 
amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure 
District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured 
public deposits. 

As of June 30, 2021, none of the District’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal 
depository insurance limits were held in uncollateralized accounts. At June 30, 2021, no District 
investments were held by the same broker-dealer (counter party) that was used by the District to buy 
the securities.  

Investment in State Investment Pool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by 
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The 
fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements 
at the amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the 
entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for 
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an 
amortized cost basis. 

3) INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES & TRANSFERS 

The interfund receivable in the Water Fund of $1,052,923 is payable from the Wastewater fund. The 
receivable is the result of an interfund loan from restricted funds in the Water fund to the Wastewater 
fund for payment of the CalPERS side fund. This amount is to be repaid over a 15-year period with 
an interest rate of LAIF plus 1%. 

The Water fund transferred capital assets with a book value of $12,456 to the Wastewater fund.  
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

4) CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets consist of the following at June 30, 2021: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated: 
Land $ 326,269 $ 5,635 $ - $ 331,904 
Construction in Progress 3,560,109 5,275,036 (2,977,817) 5,857,328 
Subtotal 3,886,378 5,280,671 (2,977,817) 6,189,232 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Intangible Assets 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 
Buildings and Improvements 139,252,062 2,918,100 - 142,170,162 
Equipment 7,606,487 281,800 (469,300) 7,418,987 
Subtotal 147,858,549 3,199,900 (469,300) 150,589,149 

Less Accumulated Depreciation: 
Intangible Assets (101,010) (10,101) - (111,111) 
Buildings and Improvements (57,860,572) (3,319,318) - (61,179,890) 
Equipment (5,950,317) (298,369) 429,055 (5,819,631) 
Subtotal (63,911,899) (3,627,788) 429,055 (67,110,632) 

Net Capital Assets Being Depreciated 83,946,650 (427,888) (40,245) 83,478,517 
Net Capital Assets $ 87,833,028 $ 4,852,783 $ (3,018,062) $ 89,667,749 

5) LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2021: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year 

Bonds Payable: 
2016 Refunding Revenue Bonds $ 17,735,000 $ - $ 620,000 $ 17,115,000 $ 645,000 

Unamortized Premium 2,672,023 - 140,633 2,531,390 -
Total Bonds Payable 20,407,023 - 760,633 19,646,390 645,000 

Notes Payable from Direct Borrowings: 
Rimforest Water System 95,035 - 52,910 42,125 42,125 

Net Pension Liability 8,666,189 - 1,066,024 7,600,165 -
Compensated Absences 963,799 765,034 682,729 1,046,104 739,124

  Total $ 30,132,046 $ 765,034 $ 2,562,296 $ 28,334,784 $ 1,426,249 

2016 Refunding Revenue Bonds 

On August 31, 2016, the District issued $20,390,000 Water and Wastewater Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2016 (Bonds). The Bonds were issued to provide funds to defease and on an advance 
basis the District’s $17,580,000 outstanding Certificates of Participation, Series 2009 (2009 COPs), (ii) 
prepay on a current basis a loan from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and (iii) pay 
the costs of issuing the Bonds. The 2009 COPs were issued to acquire and construct improvements 
to the water and wastewater systems. The SWRCB loan was used for a recycled water system project. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

5) LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued 

The principal amount of the Bonds, plus a premium of $3,234,554 and $1,805,903 in released funds 
relating to the 2009 COPs, were allocated as follows: $20,045,746 was deposited with an escrow 
agent, $5,150,911 was used as a prepayment on the SWRCB Loan, and $233,800 was allocated for 
costs of issuance. As a result, the 2009 COPs are considered to be defeased and the liability for the 
2009 COPs has been removed from these financial statements. 

In October of 2019, the 2009 COPs were called for prepayment; all debt related to this issue has been 
refunded. 

The Bonds are secured by system net revenues (defined below) received from the District’s water and 
wastewater system. The District has covenanted in the Indenture that it will, at all times while any of 
the Bonds remain outstanding, set rates, fees and charges to the maximum extent permitted by law 
and manage the operation of the system for each fiscal year so as to yield system revenues at least 
sufficient to pay the following amounts during such fiscal year: 

(i) All current Operation and Maintenance Costs. 

(ii) The Bonds and the payments for the other parity debt and the payment of the subordinate 
obligations as they become due and payable. 

(iii) All payments required for compliance with the terms of the Bonds, and of any supplemental 
indenture. 

(iv) All payments to meet any other obligations of the District which are charges, liens or encumbrances 
upon, or payable from, the system net revenues. 

System net revenues are defined as system revenues received from the District's water and wastewater 
system, less operation and maintenance costs of the water and wastewater system. System revenues 
are defined as all gross income and revenue received or receivable by the District from the ownership 
or operation of the System. The “System” means the whole and each and every part of the District's 
water and wastewater system. 

100% of the system revenues are pledged to repayment of the bonds; system revenues approximate 
$7.7 and $8.0 million per year for the water and wastewater systems, respectively. For the 2020-21 
fiscal year, system net revenues were approximately $3,800,000, while total principal and interest 
payments on the Bonds totaled approximately $1.4 million. 

The Bond Indenture contains a provision that in an event of default, outstanding amounts may become 
immediately due if the District is unable to make payment. The bond payments, including principal and 
interest, are due on October 1 and April 1 of each fiscal year. Interest rates range from 2% to 5%. The 
following represents the future debt service requirements for the 2016 Revenue Refunding Bonds: 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

5) LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total 

2022 $ 645,000 $ 696,375 $ 1,341,375 

2023 675,000 663,375 1,338,375 

2024 715,000 628,625 1,343,625 

2025 755,000 591,875 1,346,875 

2026 785,000 557,300 1,342,300 

2027 815,000 525,300 1,340,300 

2028 845,000 492,100 1,337,100 

2029 885,000 457,500 1,342,500 

2030 920,000 421,400 1,341,400 

2031 535,000 392,300 927,300 

2032 1,040,000 360,800 1,400,800 

2033 1,080,000 318,400 1,398,400 

2034 1,120,000 274,400 1,394,400 

2035 1,165,000 228,700 1,393,700 

2036 1,210,000 181,200 1,391,200 

2037 1,255,000 131,900 1,386,900 

2038 1,310,000 80,600 1,390,600 

2039 1,360,000 27,200 1,387,200 

Total $ 17,115,000 $ 7,029,350 $ 24,144,350 

Notes Payable (Direct Borrowings) – Rimforest Water System 

During the year ended June 30, 2015 the District entered into an asset sale agreement with the City of 
Big Bear Lake for the purchase of the Rimforest Water System, payable in monthly installments of 
$6,789 through October 1, 2015 and $4,815 thereafter, through March 1, 2022, including interest at 
6.85%.  The future debt service requirements are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest Total 

2022 $ 42,125 $ 1,212 $ 43,337 

Total $ 42,125 $ 1,212 $ 43,337 

Although the District is subject to a legal debt margin of approximately $495 million, there is currently 
no outstanding debt subject to this limit. 

6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

General Information about the Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

Plan Description – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued 

the District’s Miscellaneous Pension Plan, a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension 
plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit 
provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and District resolution. CalPERS issues 
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit 
provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found at 
https://www.calpers.ca.gov. 

Benefits Provided – The Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). A full description 
of the pension plan benefit provisions, assumptions for funding purposes but not accounting 
purposes, and membership information is listed in the June 30, 2019 Annual Actuarial Valuation 
Report. Details of the benefits provided can be obtained in Appendix B of the June 30, 2019 actuarial 
valuation report. This report is a publicly available valuation report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ 
website under Forms and Publications. 

The Plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows: 
Miscellaneous 

Prior to On or after On or after 

Hire date July 1, 2012 July 1, 2012 January 1, 2013 

Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 2% @ 55 2% @ 62 

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 

Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life 

Retirement age 50 - 55 50 - 63 52 - 67 

Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2% to 2.5% 2% 2% 

Required employee contribution rates 8.00% 7.00% 6.75% 

Required employer contribution rates 11.742% + $620,737 10.484% + $2,797 7.732% + $13,890 

Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that 
the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the 
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding 
contributions for the Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. 
The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued 
liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate 
and the contribution rate of employees. The District remits the required employee contribution on 
behalf of the employees. 

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage 
of payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for 
contributions toward the unfunded liability. The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly basis. The 
District’s required contribution for the unfunded liability was $637,424 in fiscal year 2021. The 
District’s contributions to the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2021 were $2,710,136. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related 
to Pensions 

As of June 30, 2021, the District reported $7,600,165 net pension liability for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability. 

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total 
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 using standard update procedures.  
The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined.   

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2019 and 2020 was as 
follows: 

Proportion - June 30, 2019 0.08457% 
Proportion - June 30, 2020 0.06985% 
Change - Increase (Decrease) -0.01472% 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $1,575,432. At June 
30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 
Differences between actual and expected experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Change in employer's proportion 
Difference between the employer's contributions 

and the employer's proportionate share of contributions 
Net differences between projected and actual 
earnings on plan investments 

Total 

$ 2,710,136 
391,659 

-
-

1,006,752 

225,775 

$ 4,334,322 

$ 

$ 

-
-

54,215 
1,050,661 

-

-

1,104,876 

$2,710,136 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2022 $ 32,107 
2023 209,136 
2024 169,786 
2025 108,281 
2026 -

Thereafter -

Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuations were 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Miscellaneous Plan 
Valuation date June 30, 2019 
Measurement date June 30, 2020 
Actuarial cost method entry-age normal 
Actuarial assumptions: 
Discount rate 7.15% 
Inflation 2.50% 
Projected salary increase (1) 
Investment rate of return 7.15% 
Mortality rate table (2) 

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment 
(2) Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds. 

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of 
mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-
retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement 
using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table, 
please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from 
December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

Long-term Expected Rate of Return - The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was determined using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of 
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using 
historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were 
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block 
approach. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued 

Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits 
was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single 
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the 
one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set 
equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed 
administrative expenses. The expected real rates of return by asset class are as followed: 

Assumed 
Asset Real Return Real Return 

Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10 (1) Years 11+ (2) 
Global Equity 50% 4.80% 5.98% 
Fixed Income 28% 1.00% 2.62% 
Inflation Assets - 0.77% 1.81% 
Private Equity 8% 6.30% 7.23% 
Real Assets 13% 3.75% 4.93% 
Liquidity 1% - -0.92% 

(1) An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period. 
(2) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period. 

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 7.15%. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from 
plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from 
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those 
assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate – The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the 
Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share 
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage 
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

Discount Rate -1% Current Rate Discount Rate +1% 
6.15% 7.15% 8.15% 

Net Pension Liability $ 12,445,764 $ 7,600,165 $ 3,596,398 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

6) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – Continued 

Payable to the Pension Plan – At June 30, 2021, the District reported no amounts payable for 
outstanding contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

7) RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District participates 
in the liability insurance program organized by the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority 
(CSRMA). CSRMA is a Joint Powers Authority consisting of 60 member agencies created to provide 
a self-insurance program to wastewater agencies in the State of California. CSRMA provides liability, 
property and workers’ compensation insurance for approximately 60 wastewater agencies for losses 
in excess of the member districts’ specified self-insurance retention levels. Individual claims (and 
aggregate public liability and property claims) in excess of specified levels are covered by excess 
insurance policies purchased from commercial carriers. 

CSRMA is governed by a board composed of members from participating districts. The Board controls 
the operations of CSRMA, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, 
independent of any influence by the members beyond their representation on the Board. Each 
member shares surpluses and deficiencies proportionately to its participation in CSRMA. Premiums 
paid to CSRMA include retrospective adjustments based on actual experience during the period of 
coverage. Settled claims have been immaterial and no claims liabilities have been reported in these 
financial statements as of June 30, 2021. 

8) RESTRICTED ASSETS AT YEAR-END 

Funding Source Asset Restricted For Amount 

Water Fund: 
Connection Fees Restricted Cash and Investments New Facilities $ 63,210 
Customer Deposits Restricted Cash and Investments Repayments to Customers 35,806 
Supplemental Water Fee Restricted Cash and Investments New Water Supply 12,306,962 
Supplemental Water Fee Restricted Accounts Receivable New Water Supply 62,632 

$ 12,468,610 
Wastewater Fund: 

Bond Proceeds Restricted Cash and Investments Debt Reserve $ -
Connection Fees Restricted Cash and Investments New Facilities 15,242 
Customer Deposits Restricted Cash and Investments Repayments to Customers 62,577 
Assessments Restricted Cash and Investments Assessment Dist. #5 161,125 
Assessments Restricted Cash and Investments Assessment Dist. #6 244,616 
Assessments Restricted Cash and Investments Assessment Dist. #8 1,195,972 

$ 1,679,532 
Nonmajor Funds: 

Assessments Restricted Cash and Investments Assessment Dist. #94-1 $ 399,218 
Connection Fees Restricted Cash and Investments New Facilities 14,157 

$ 413,375 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

9) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Construction Commitments - The District has active construction projects as of June 30, 2021.  The 
outstanding commitments with contractors at year-end are approximately $6,866,223. 

State Water Resources Control Board 

In 2006, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) issued Order No. WR 2006-0001, limiting 
the District’s withdrawal from Lake Arrowhead to 1,566 acre feet per year beginning in 2008. In addition, 
the District entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Arrowhead Lake Association, which 
has a stated goal to maintain the elevation of Lake Arrowhead at or above 5,100 feet.  The District has 
subsequently developed alternative sources of supply. In 2013, the SWRCB issued Order No. R6V-
2013-0022 which combined and superseded two previous orders related to wastewater discharge 
during large storm events. The District has committed specific personnel and funding to reduce inflow 
and infiltration into the sewer collection system and subsequently avoid emergency discharges in the 
future. 

Agreement with Crestline-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency and San Bernardino Valley Municipal 
Water District 

On July 7, 2005, the District entered into an agreement (Agreement) to purchase water from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (SBVMWD). The water will be treated, and transported 
through the Crestline-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency (CLAWA) to District customers.  The Agreement 
will supply up to 1,500 acre feet of water to be delivered over 15 years. To accept delivery, the District 
constructed a pipeline, a 1 million-gallon reservoir at a turnout built by CLAWA and funded by the 
District. The agreement calls for minimum purchases of 640 acre feet in each of the first two calendar 
years following completion of the Water Delivery Facilities described above and at least 560 acre feet 
of water in each subsequent year, up to an aggregate total of 7,600acre feet. The amount of prepaid 
water purchased from CLAWA as of June 30, 2021 was $2,313,794. 

10) LEASES 

The District, as lessor, leases office space available at the District Headquarters under operating leases. 
The following is a schedule of the related future minimum lease income under the leases: 

Years Ending 
June 30 

2022 $ 57,396 
2023 50,947 
2024 50,947 
2025 50,947 
2026 -

Thereafter -
Total $ 210,237 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 

11) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued the following Statements, which may affect 
the District’s financial reporting requirements in the future: 

GASB 87 – Leases: This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that 
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources 
based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on 
the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. The requirements 
of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. 

GASB 91 – Conduit Debt Obligations: This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about 
their conduit debt obligations, organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal 
amount of the issuers’ conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that 
recognize liabilities related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose 
information about the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2022. 

GASB 92 – Omnibus 2020: The requirements of this Statement will enhance comparability in the application of 
accounting and financial reporting requirements and will improve the consistency of authoritative literature. 
More comparable reporting will improve the usefulness of information for users of state and local government 
financial statements. The requirements of this Statement will take effect for financial statements starting with 
the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2022. 

GASB 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements: The requirements of this Statement will 
improve financial reporting by establishing a definition for SBITAs and providing uniform guidance for 
accounting and financial reporting for transactions that meet that definition. That definition and uniform guidance 
will result in greater consistency in practice. Establishing the capitalization criteria for implementation costs also 
will reduce diversity and improve comparability in financial reporting by governments. This Statement also will 
enhance the relevance and reliability of a government’s financial statements by requiring a government to report 
a subscription asset and subscription liability for a SBITA and to disclose essential information about the 
arrangement. The disclosures will allow users to understand the scale and important aspects of a government’s 
SBITA activities and evaluate a government’s obligations and assets resulting from SBITAs. The requirements 
of this Statement will take effect for financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30, 2023 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Required Supplementary Information  

June 30, 2021 

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Last 10 Years* 

Measurement Date 

Proportion of 
the Net Pension 

Liability 

Proportionate 
Share of Net 

Pension Liability 
Covered 
Payroll 

Proportionate 
Share of the Net 
Pension Liability 
as a % of Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position as 
a % of the Total 
Pension Liability 

2020 0.06985% $ 7,600,165 $ 4,538,789 167.45% 79.13% 

2019 0.08457% 8,666,189 4,162,630 208.19% 74.60% 

2018 0.08570% 8,258,177 4,069,426 202.93% 73.54% 

2017 0.08461% 8,391,067 3,976,704 211.01% 72.42% 

2016 0.08350% 7,225,198 3,816,473 189.32% 73.12% 

2015 0.08163% 5,603,215 3,814,308 146.90% 78.04% 

2014 0.06684% 4,159,969 3,647,502 114.05% 83.03% 

*Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation; therefore, 10 years of information are not yet available. 

Notes to the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Benefit Changes: None 

Changes in Assumptions: In 2017, the accounting discount rate changed from 7.65% to 7.15%. 
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 Contributions  in 
 Relation  to  the  Contributions 

 Contractually  Actuarially  Contribution  as  a  %  of 
 Required  Determined  Deficiency/  Covered  Covered 

 Fiscal  Year  Contributions  Contributions  (Excess)  Payroll  Payroll 

 2021  $  1,010,136 $  (2,710,136)  $  (1,700,000)  $  4,595,730  21.98%  

 2020  958,291 (2,658,291)  (1,700,000)  4,538,789  21.11%  

 2019  829,270 (1,129,270)  (300,000)  4,162,630  19.92%  

 2018  724,870 (724,870)  - 4,069,426  17.81%  

 2017  644,527 (644,527)  - 3,976,704  16.21%  

 2016  568,383 (568,383)  - 3,816,473  14.89%  

 2015  510,548 (510,548)  - 3,814,308  13.39%  

  

  

  

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Required Supplementary Information  

June 30, 2021  

Schedule of Plan Contributions 
Last 10 Years* 

*Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, 10 years of information are not yet available. 

Notes to the Schedule of Plan Contributions 

Valuation Date: 6/30/13, 6/30/14, 6/30/15, 6/30/16, 6/30/17, 6/30/18, 6/30/19 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Combining Statement of Net Position 

Nonmajor Funds 
June 30, 2021 

Deer Lodge 
Park Rimforest Total 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Investments 
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance): 

Current Services 
Prepaids 
Restricted Cash and Investments 

$ 156,916 

32,565 
1,356 

413,375 

$ 4,581 

48,150 
2,712 

-

$ 161,497 

80,715 
4,068 

413,375 

Total Current Assets 604,212 55,443 659,655 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated - 59,143 59,143 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 1,112,830 323,294 1,436,124 

Total Capital Assets 1,112,830 382,437 1,495,267 

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,112,830 382,437 1,495,267 

Total Assets 1,717,042 437,880 2,154,922 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 43,343 43,343 86,686 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 5,391 8,247 13,638 
Accrued Liabilities 3,012 3,759 6,771 
Notes Payable - Current - 42,125 42,125 

Total Current Liabilities 8,403 54,131 62,534 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Net Pension Liability 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

76,002 

76,002 

84,405 

76,002 

76,002 

130,133 

152,004 

152,004 

214,538 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 11,049 11,049 22,098 

NET POSITION 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted: 

Assessment Districts 
Capital Improvements 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Position $ 

1,112,830 

399,218 
14,157 

138,726 

1,664,931 $ 

340,312 

-
-

(271) 

340,041 $ 

1,453,142 

399,218 
14,157 

138,455 

2,004,972 
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 Deer Lodge 
 Park  Rimforest  Total 

 OPERATING REVENUES 
 Charges for Services $  187,988 $  267,179 $  455,167 

 Other Income  9,042  6,658  15,700 

 470,867  Total Operating Revenues 

 OPERATING EXPENSES 

 197,030  273,837 

 Operations  55,960  24,622 80,582  
 Depreciation  42,968 15,900   58,868 

 Administration  43,335  60,523  103,858 
 Distribution Maintenance  21,175  31,499  52,674 

 Water Purchases  32,338  61,073  93,411 
 Physical Maintenance  1,765 3,540  5,305  

 Engineering 

 Total Operating Expenses 

 Operating Income (Loss) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)  

 4,350 

 201,891 

 (4,861) 

 5,284 

 202,441 

 71,396 

 9,634 

 404,332 

 66,535 

Other Revenue  -  1  1 
 Investment Income 1,157   (5,750)  (4,593) 

 Interest Expense 

 Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

 Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions 

-

 1,157 

 (4,874) 

 (10,623) 

 (4,874) 

 (9,466) 

 and Transfers  (3,704)  60,773  57,069 

 Capital Contributions 

 Change in Net Position 

 15,579 

 11,875 

-

 60,773 

 15,579 

 72,648 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 

 Net Position - End of Year 

 1,653,056 

$  1,664,931 

 279,268 

$  340,041 

 1,932,324 

$  2,004,972 

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Nonmajor Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 
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 Deer Lodge 
 Park  Rimforest  Total 

 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
 Receipts from Customers $  194,182 $  268,347 $  462,529 

Payments to Employees for Services  (104,735)  (151,228)  (255,963) 
 Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services  (64,761)  (104,781)  (169,542) 

 Receipts from Other Revenues 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED

-

 24,686 

 1 

 12,339 

 1 

 37,025 

 FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 Cash Paid to Other Funds 

 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital 
and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

 (17,282) 

 (17,282) 

-

-

 (17,282) 

 (17,282) 

 FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets -  (300)  (300) 

 Interest Paid  (864)  (4,874)  (5,738) 
 Capital Contributions  15,579 -  15,579 

 Principal Paid on Notes Payable 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital 
and Related Financing Activities

 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

-

 14,715 

 (52,910) 

 (58,084) 

 (52,910) 

 (43,369) 

 Interest Received 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

 Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 1,157 

 1,157 

 23,276 

 (5,750) 

 (5,750) 

 (51,495) 

 (4,593) 

 (4,593) 

 (28,219) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of the Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to  

 547,015 

$  570,291 

 56,676 

$  5,181 

 603,691 

$  575,472 

 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
 Operating Income (Loss) $  (4,861) $  71,396 $  66,535 

 Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
 Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

 Depreciation  42,968  15,900  58,868 
 Other Revenues -  1  1 

 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities: 
 Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable  (2,848)  (5,490)  (8,338) 

 Decrease (Increase) in Prepaids  179  357  536 
Decrease (Increase) in Deferred Outflows - Pensions  (8,540)  26,263  17,723 

 Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable  824  527 1,351  
 Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities  (230)  (4,551)  (4,781) 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability  (10,060)  (96,722)  (106,782) 
 Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows - Pensions 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

 7,854 

$  25,286 

 4,658 

$  12,339 

 12,512 

$  37,625 

 

 

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Nonmajor Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Year ended June 30, 2021 

Statistical Section 

This section of Lake Arrowhead Community Services District’s comprehensive annual financial 
report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in 
the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about 
the District’s overall financial health. 

Contents Page 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information related to the District’s net position and 
the effect that operations have had on the financial health of the District over time.......... 69 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information related to certain revenue streams, namely 
property taxes and the Supplemental Water Supply Fee ...................................................... 72 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information related to the District’s current debt and its 
affordability............................................................................................................................. 77 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules place the District in the broader context of its community and provide 
indicators about external impacts on the financial health of the District.............................. 79 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain information specific to the District relating to its infrastructure, 
service activities and employees ............................................................................................ 84 

Sources are derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports unless otherwise noted. 
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Lake Arrowhead Communi
Net Positi

Fiscal Year En

2012(1) 

Business-type activities: 
Net investment in capital assets 54,014,955 
Restricted for assessment districts 2,162,014 
Restricted for bond reserve funds 1,892,257 
Restricted for capital improvement 10,379,921 
Unrestricted 15,604,539 

ty Services District 
on 

ded 

2013 

54,100,074 
2,100,936 
1,909,801 

10,147,133 
19,160,689 

2014 

60,534,904 
3,954,596 

175,771 
10,519,859 
15,929,988 

2015 

60,337,264 
2,037,593 
1,969,752 

11,594,886 
8,671,697 

Table 1-1 

2016 

61,924,620 
1,885,332 
1,984,540 
9,054,919 

14,924,026 

89,773,437 

2021 

71,779,803 
2,000,931 

-
12,462,203 
29,074,458 

115,317,395 

Total Net Position 84,053,686 87,418,633 91,115,118 84,611,192 

2017 2018 2019 
Business-type activities: 

Net investment in capital assets 60,869,927 67,353,059 67,885,377 
Restricted for assessment districts 1,902,252 1,934,246 1,951,580 
Restricted for bond reserve funds - - -
Restricted for capital improvement 10,617,055 12,013,060 13,654,415 
Unrestricted 21,114,527 18,098,955 21,473,164 

Total Net Position 94,503,760 99,399,320 104,964,536 

2020 

69,231,571 
1,986,726 

-
12,959,858 
25,352,556 

109,530,711 

(1) Data conformed for presentation purposes 
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Table 1-2 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Change in Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Operating Revenues 

Water $ 4,913,832 $ 5,852,874 $ 5,945,851 $ 5,645,566 $ 5,727,019 $ 6,368,734 $ 6,598,878 $ 6,862,948 $ 7,313,632 $ 7,700,757 

Wastewater 6,336,516 6,802,870 6,834,262 6,613,689 7,187,699 7,183,975 7,400,987 7,659,510 7,903,676 8,083,144 

Deer Lodge Park 145,477 137,146 133,559 132,705 127,012 146,509 154,372 167,814 181,192 197,030 

Rimforest - - - 187,086 260,315 266,834 271,741 271,692 275,606 273,837 

Total Operating Revenues 11,395,825 12,792,890 12,913,672 12,579,046 13,302,045 13,966,052 14,425,978 14,961,964 15,674,106 16,254,768 

Operating Expenses 
Water 5,934,101 5,867,596 6,064,879 6,117,702 5,847,706 6,446,426 6,331,756 6,611,289 6,783,475 6,945,638 
Wastewater 7,003,711 7,209,050 7,253,525 7,304,250 7,393,682 7,491,678 7,594,907 7,947,926 8,275,813 8,567,938 
Deer Lodge Park 222,644 158,797 203,591 192,127 168,094 155,278 195,325 182,379 203,789 201,891 

Rimforest - - - 120,808 134,198 196,811 174,475 225,451 323,289 202,441 

Total Operating Expenses 13,160,456 13,235,443 13,521,995 13,734,887 13,543,680 14,290,193 14,296,463 14,967,045 15,586,366 15,917,908 

Operating Income(Loss) (1,764,631) (442,553) (608,323) (1,155,841) (241,635) (324,141) 129,515 (5,081) 87,740 336,860 

Non-Operating Revenues(Expenses) 

Property taxes 2,839,647 2,927,627 3,045,151 2,995,515 3,080,874 3,214,460 3,304,724 3,455,273 3,556,816 3,768,688 

Rental Income - - 65,809 161,165 243,780 205,258 237,383 166,116 257,000 157,045 

Other Revenues 90,526 8,265 169,715 39,327 17,487 5,861 4,566 5,986 4,101 1,306 

Investment Income 156,960 73,167 72,203 55,074 150,933 278,211 416,802 1,020,063 1,149,856 55,258 

Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of  Assets 34,554 (476,477) (46,711) 11,825 (160,658) 17,275 (416,253) (443,813) 25,035 (66,118) 

Interest Expense (1,599,032) (1,495,684) (1,373,196) (1,166,345) (1,117,904) (811,537) (842,535) (851,707) (816,976) (736,442) 

Capital Contributions 3,259,160 2,770,602 2,371,837 2,336,711 3,189,368 2,144,936 2,061,358 2,218,379 302,603 2,270,087 

Total Non-Operating Revenues(Expenses) 4,781,815 3,807,500 4,304,808 4,433,272 5,403,880 5,054,464 4,766,045 5,570,297 4,478,435 5,449,824 

Changes in net position: 3,017,184 3,364,947 3,696,485 3,277,431 5,162,245 4,730,323 4,895,560 5,565,216 4,566,175 5,786,684 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 81,036,502 84,053,686 87,418,633 81,333,761 84,611,192 89,773,437 94,503,760 99,399,320 104,964,536 109,530,711 

Prior Period Adjustments - - (9,781,357) - - - - - - -

Net Position - End of Year 84,053,686 87,418,633 81,333,761 84,611,192 89,773,437 94,503,760 99,399,320 104,964,536 109,530,711 115,317,395 

 
70 156



M
ill

io
ns

 $
 

Cash Balance Trend 
35

Unrestricted Restricted  30
 25
 20
 15
 10

 5 
 -

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
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Table 1-3 

                    Lake Arrowhead Community Services District
               Cash Balance Trend by Type

               Fiscal Year Ended 

Unrestricted 
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

13,063,739 15,484,562 12,378,349 14,768,252 16,303,491 
Restricted 14,270,911 9,369,227 10,179,063 11,487,008 12,860,875 

Total District Cash Balance 27,334,650 24,853,789 22,557,412 26,255,260 29,164,366 

Unrestricted 
2107 2018 2019 2020 2021 

20,973,040 21,085,779 24,741,914 28,097,479 28,609,712 
Restricted 12,465,580 14,034,914 15,586,555 14,968,259 14,498,885 

Total District Cash Balance 33,438,620 35,120,693 40,328,469 43,065,738 43,108,597 
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Property Tax Trend 
3.9  5,200Property Tax Revenue 

Property Values  5,000 
3.7 -

 4,800 

3.5  4,600

 4,400 3.3
 4,200 

3.1  4,000

 3,800 2.9

 3,600 
2.7

 3,400 

2.5  3,200 
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Table 2-1 

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Property Tax Revenues 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year Annual % 
Ended Amount Change 
2011 2,910,094 -4% 
2012 2,839,647 -2% 
2013 2,927,627 3% 
2014 3,045,151 4% 
2015 2,995,515 -2% 
2016 3,080,874 3% 
2017 3,214,460 4% 
2018 3,304,724 3% 
2019 3,455,273 5% 
2020 3,556,816 3% 
2021 3,768,688 6% 

Note:  Includes penalties and interest. 
Source:  District records 
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Property Tax Collec�on Status 
4,000,000 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Current Year Col lec�ons Subsequent Col lec�ons Currentl y Del i nquent 

-

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,500,000 

2,000,000 

2,500,000 

3,000,000 

3,500,000 

Table 2-2 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

General Tax Levy and Collection 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy 

Fiscal 
Year Taxes 

Ended Levied 
Amount Percentage 

Collected of Levy 

Total 
Subsequent Collections Percentage 
Collections to Date of Levy 

2012(1) 2,878,797 2,695,987 94% 181,186 2,877,173 99.9% 
2013 2,870,110 2,769,444 96% 99,809 2,869,253 100.0% 
2014 2,901,637 2,789,042 96% 11,296 2,800,338 96.5% 
2015 2,938,588 2,868,335 98% 18,007 2,886,342 98.2% 
2016 3,033,031 2,958,430 98% 26,502 2,984,932 98.4% 
2017 3,139,184 3,077,919 98% 26,732 3,104,651 98.9% 
2018 3,220,215 3,197,243 99% 22,972 3,220,215 100.0% 
2019 3,340,144 3,319,133 99% 21,011 3,340,144 100.0% 
2020 3,475,406 3,437,108 99% 36,327 3,473,435 99.9% 
2021 3,602,457 3,522,136 98% - 3,522,136 97.8% 

Source:  County of San Bernardino Auditor/Controller's Office 

(1) SB 2557 reduced the District's apportionment by $33,819.33 in FY 2011/2012. 
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Table 2-3 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Assessed Value of Property(1) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Change in 

Secured Property Unsecured Property Assessed 
Fiscal Year Ended Assessed Value Assessed Value Total Assessed Value Value Tax Rate % 

2012 3,892,881,084 11,086,089 3,903,967,173 -2% 0.0737 
2013 3,919,624,303 10,882,954 3,930,507,257 1% 0.0730 
2014 3,955,665,801 10,493,611 3,966,159,412 1% 0.0732 
2015 4,027,201,877 11,108,711 4,038,310,588 2% 0.0728 
2016 4,136,934,833 10,786,287 4,147,721,120 3% 0.0731 
2017 4,268,693,392 9,821,056 4,278,514,448 3% 0.0734 
2018 4,408,577,144 9,206,337 4,417,783,481 3% 0.0729 
2019 4,577,553,382 8,525,230 4,586,078,612 4% 0.0728 
2020 4,766,246,024 8,397,686 4,774,643,710 4% 0.0728 
2021 4,941,207,956 7,343,427 4,948,551,383 4% 0.0728 

Table 2-4 
   General Tax Rates (Per $100 of assessed valuation) 

Direct and Overlapping Governments 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

San Bernardino Lake Arrowhead 
County General Community Service Crestline-Lake Arrowhead Water 

Fiscal Year Ended Rate (1) District (2) Agency Debt Service (3) Total % 
2012 0.926 0.0737 0.0528 1.0525 
2013 0.927 0.0730 0.0551 1.0551 
2014 0.927 0.0732 0.0560 1.0562 
2015 0.927 0.0728 0.0725 1.0723 
2016 0.927 0.0731 0.0728 1.0729 
2017 0.927 0.0734 0.0728 1.0732 
2018 0.927 0.0729 0.0870 1.0869 
2019 0.927 0.0728 0.0870 1.0868 
2020 0.927 0.0728 0.0870 1.0868 
2021 0.927 0.0728 0.0870 1.0868 

(1) Source: County of San Bernardino Auditor/Controller's Office 
(2) Calculated based on Tax Levy in Table 2-2 and Assessed Values in Table 2-3 
(3) Crestline-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency - Applies to approximately 350 LACSD customers 
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Table 2-5 

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Principal Tax Payers 

2020-21 
Percentage 

of Total 
Assessed Assessed Taxes 

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation Assessed 
Lake Arrowhead Village Retail Owner Shopping Center 
RLAHI LLC Lake Arrowhead Resort 
Private 
Private 
Private 
Private 
Private 
Lake Arrowhead Country Club 
Private 
Private 

Hotel 
Residence 
Residence 
Residence 
Residence 
Residence 
Country Club 
Residence 
Residence 

49,862,277 
22,519,786 

7,220,027 
7,044,297 
6,795,550 
6,548,532 
6,301,918 
6,135,472 
6,096,836 
5,565,006 

124,089,701 

1.01% 
0.46% 
0.15% 
0.14% 
0.14% 
0.13% 
0.13% 
0.12% 
0.12% 
0.11% 
2.51% 

36,300 
16,394 

5,256 
5,128 
4,947 
4,767 
4,588 
4,467 
4,438 
4,051 

90,337 

2011-12 

Taxpayer Type of Business 
Assessed 
Valuation 

Percentage 
of Total 

Assessed 
Valuation 

Taxes 
Assessed 

Lake Arrowhead Investors, LLC Shopping Center 51,087,900 1.28% 34,689 
Blue Jay Investors LLC Shopping Center 29,363,934 0.74% 19,938 
Fulton Village Green Investors LLC Hotel 20,595,147 0.52% 13,984 
Private Residence 7,566,322 0.19% 5,138 
Private Residence 7,228,039 0.18% 4,908 
Private Residence 6,837,566 0.17% 4,643 
Private Residence 6,273,122 0.16% 4,259 
Private Residence 6,248,576 0.16% 4,243 
Private Residence 6,128,000 0.15% 4,161 
Private Residence 5,856,200 0.15% 3,976 

147,184,806 3.70% 99,939 

Source:  San Bernardino County Assessor 

The purpose of this table is to demonstrate the low concentration of risk from the loss of property tax revenue as a result of nonpayment 
of property taxes by one of the top ten taxpayers. 
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Table 2-6 

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Supplemental Water Fee - Billings and Collections 

Last Ten Fiscal Years(1) 

Fiscal Year Tax Roll Receivable 
Ended Fee Amount Billings Collections Balance 
2012(2) 

2013(2) 

2014(2) 

2015(2) 

2016(2) 

2017(2) 

2018(2) 

2019(2) 

2020(1) 

2021 

2,936,059 2,763,174 2,985,359 
2,563,527 2,462,426 2,566,014 
1,899,905 1,873,203 1,946,290 
1,900,661 1,869,424 1,904,248 
2,850,673 2,728,058 2,888,816 
1,906,707 1,874,714 1,944,387 
1,900,913 1,868,165 1,910,715 
1,903,180 1,870,432 1,900,787 

- - 58,088 
- - 14,286 

256,590 
254,103 
207,718 
204,131 
165,988 
128,308 
118,506 
120,899 

62,811 
48,525 

3.50 

3.00 

2.50 

2.00 

1.50 

1.00 

0.50 

0.00 

Supplemental Water Fee Collection Activity 
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Fee Amount Tax Roll Billings Collections 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

(1) The Supplemental Water Fee began in FYE 2005 and ended in FYE 2019 
(2) The Board of Directors approved a reduction in the fee 
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Table 3-1 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Ratios on Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Debt to Debt Per 
Assessed Service 

Value Connection 

DLP Special Total 
Fiscal Year Revenue 2016 Revenue COP Series Assessment Rimforest Oustanding 

Ended Bonds Bonds 2009 Bonds Bonds SRF Loan Acquisition Note Debt 
2012 3,025,586 21,378,885 6,223,393 30,627,864 0.78% 1,603 
2013 1,615,000 20,582,821 5,947,870 28,145,691 0.72% 1,472 
2014 19,597,136 5,665,183 25,262,319 0.64% 1,320 
2015 18,566,451 5,375,146 317,394 24,258,991 0.60% 1,266 
2016 17,480,765 5,077,569 273,949 22,832,283 0.55% 1,190 
2017 22,518,921 233,698 22,752,619 0.53% 1,185 
2018 21,838,288 190,598 22,028,886 0.50% 1,146 
2019 21,132,655 144,449 21,277,104 0.46% 1,104 
2020 20,407,023 95,035 20,502,058 0.43% 1,046 
2021 19,646,390 42,125 19,688,515 0.40% 1,003 

See Table 2-3 Assessed Value of Property and Table 5-2 Service Connection Statistics. 

Note: Debt is net of related premiums, discounts and adjustments. 

Table 3-2 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Assessed Valuations:
     Assessed Value $ 4,948,551,383 
     Add back:  exempt real property -
Total assessed value $ 4,948,551,383 

Legal debt margin:
     Debt limitation - 10% of total assessed value $ 494,855,138 
     Debt applicable to limitation: -
Legal debt margin $ 494,855,138 

The Legal Debt Margin applies to General Obligation Bonds which are required by law not to exceed 10% of the total 
assessed valuation. The District has revenue bonds and does not have any debt to which the Legal Debt Margin would 
apply. 
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Table 3-3 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Pledged Revenue Coverage 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Gross Revenues 
Water Fund 
Wastewater Fund 
Combined Total 

8,041,212 
9,575,203 

17,616,415 

8,581,744 
9,857,685 

18,439,429 

6,592,146 
11,861,669 
18,453,815 

7,772,886 
10,110,636 
17,883,522 

8,989,286 
10,444,000 
19,433,286 

8,558,618 
10,838,940 
19,397,558 

8,826,280 
10,752,255 
19,578,535 

9,047,597 
11,884,944 
20,932,541 

8,080,214 
12,398,057 
20,478,271 

8,086,927 
13,948,139 
22,035,066 

Operating Expenses 
Water Fund 
Less:  Depreciation 
Net Water Fund Operating Exp 
Wastewater Fund 
Less:  Depreciation 
Net Wastewater Fund Op Exp 
Combined Total 

5,984,441 
(1,693,675) 
4,290,766 
7,003,711 

(1,660,314) 
5,343,397 
9,634,163 

6,097,572 
(1,845,627) 
4,251,945 
7,507,655 

(1,780,385) 
5,727,270 
9,979,215 

6,103,265 
(1,784,358) 
4,318,907 
7,263,916 

(1,545,643) 
5,718,273 

10,037,180 

6,151,811 
(1,772,211) 
4,379,600 
7,311,885 

(1,728,448) 
5,583,437 
9,963,037 

5,883,461 
(1,624,454) 
4,259,007 
7,393,683 

(1,745,826) 
5,647,857 
9,906,864 

5,828,876 
(1,559,476) 
4,269,400 
8,145,741 

(1,723,193) 
6,422,548 

10,691,948 

6,403,719 
(1,574,196) 
4,829,523 
7,600,894 

(1,794,011) 
5,806,883 

10,636,406 

6,654,489 
(1,447,578) 
5,206,911 
7,988,295 

(1,777,475) 
6,210,820 

11,417,731 

7,371,214 
(1,650,008) 
5,721,206 
8,497,780 

(1,801,094) 
6,696,686 

12,417,892 

7,308,050 
(1,609,689) 
5,698,361 
9,071,762 

(1,959,231) 
7,112,531 

12,810,892 

Net Revenues 
Water Fund 
Wastewater Fund 
Combined Total 

3,750,446 
4,231,806 
7,982,252 

4,329,799 
4,130,415 
8,460,214 

2,273,239 
6,143,396 
8,416,635 

3,393,286 
4,527,199 
7,920,485 

4,730,279 
4,796,143 
9,526,422 

4,289,218 
4,416,392 
8,705,610 

3,996,757 
4,945,372 
8,942,129 

3,840,686 
5,674,124 
9,514,810 

2,359,008 
5,701,371 
8,060,379 

2,388,566 
6,835,608 
9,224,174 

Senior and Parity Debt Service 
2002 Bonds 
2009 Bonds(1) 

SRF Loan(1) 

2016 Revenue Bonds(2) 

Combined Total 

1,695,685 
2,006,919 

437,331 

4,139,935 

1,692,148 
2,000,631 

437,331 

4,130,110 

1,686,060 
1,986,406 

437,331 

4,109,798 

1,980,781 
437,331 

2,418,112 

1,982,656 
437,331 

2,419,987 
1,403,504 
1,403,504 

1,348,198 
1,348,198 

1,349,050 
1,349,050 

1,343,125 
1,343,125 

1,348,000 
1,348,000 

Debt Service Coverage 
Combined Debt(3) 1.93 2.05 2.05 3.28 3.94 6.20 6.63 7.05 6.00 6.84 

(1)  2009 Bonds and SRF Loan were refunded with 2016 Revenue Bond Funds. 
(2)  Due to the timing of the 2016 Revenue Bonds, only one debt service payment became due for 2016/2017.  Subsequent years will reflect two annual payments. 
(3)  Combined Net Revenues divided by Combined Total Debt Service must be at least 1.20.  Debt service includes interest expense. 
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Table 4-1 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Principal Water Users By  Consumption 2020-21 
Potable Total % of 

Customer Type 
Recycled 

Water (CCF) 
Water 

Billed (CCF) 
Water in 
Acre Feet 

Potable 
Water 

Lake Arrowhead Country Club Country Club/Golf Course 114,458 3,023 269.70 0.6% 
Lake Arrowhead Resort Hotel - 9,104 20.90 1.8% 
UCLA Conference Center Conference Center - 9,064 20.81 1.7% 
Lake Arrowhead Village Shopping Center - 8,039 18.46 1.6% 
Rim of the World Unified School District Education - 6,823 15.66 1.3% 
Mountains Community Hospital Hospital - 3,023 6.94 0.6% 
Lake Arrowhead Chalet HOA Residential - 2,962 6.80 0.6% 
Lakeside Resort, LLC Mobile Home Park - 2,254 5.17 0.4% 
Arrowhead Lake Association Recreational Land Mgmt - 1,614 3.71 0.3% 
Private Owner Residential - 1,576 3.62 0.3% 
Total Principal Water Users 114,458 47,482 371.76 9.2% 
Other Water Users 518,432 1,190.16 100.0% 
Total Water Used Arrowhead Woods 114,458 565,914 1,561.92 

2011-12 
Potable Total % of 

Customer Type of Business 
Recycled 

Water (CCF) 
Water 

Billed (CCF) 
Water in 
Acre Feet 

Potable 
Water 

Lake Arrowhead Country Club Country Club/Golf Course - 87,197 200.18 22.2% 
Lake Arrowhead Resort Hotel - 16,026 36.79 4.1% 
Lake Arrowhead Village Shopping Center - 12,508 28.71 3.2% 
UCLA Conference Center Conference Center - 10,386 23.84 2.6% 
Rim of the World School Dist Education - 6,842 15.71 1.7% 
Lake Arrowhead Chalets HOA Residential - 3,229 7.41 0.8% 
Mountains Community Hospital                             Hospital - 2,309 5.30 0.6% 
North Bay at Lake Arrowhead HOA Residential 2,124 4.88 0.5% 
Lakeside Trailer Park                                    Residential - 2,067 4.75 0.5% 
Saddleback Inn Hotel - 1,731 3.97 0.4% 
Total Principal Water Users - 144,419 331.54 36.8% 
Other Water Users 392,262 900.51 100.0% 
Total Water Used Arrowhead Woods - 536,681 1,232.05 

Source:  District Records 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District Table 4-2 
Principal Water Users By  Revenue 

2020-21 

Customer Type Water Revenue 
% of Op 
Revenue 

Lake Arrowhead Village 
UCLA Conference Center 
Lake Arrowhead Chalets HOA 
Lakeside Resort LLC 
Rim of the World Unified School District 
Lakeside at the Resort HOA 
Lake Arrowhead Resort 
Mountains Community Hospital 
North Bay at Lake Arrowhead HOA 
Lake Arrowhead Country Club 
Total Principal Water Ratepayers 
All Other Water Ratepayers 
Total Water Sales Arrowhead Woods 

Shopping Center 
Conference Center 
Residential 
Mobile Home Park 
Education 
Residential 
Hotel 
Hospital 
Residential 
Country Club/Golf Course 

$ 109,068 
75,482 
60,806 
58,968 
55,624 
53,058 
52,404 
38,757 
34,997 
25,953 

$ 565,116 
6,907,225 

$ 7,472,341 

1.6% 
1.1% 
0.9% 
0.9% 
0.8% 
0.8% 
0.8% 
0.6% 
0.5% 
0.4% 
8.2% 

100.0% 

2011-12 

Customer Type Water Revenue 
% of Op 
Revenue 

Lake Arrowhead Village 
Lake Arrowhead Resort 
UCLA Conference Center 
Lakeside Trailer Park 
Rim of the World School Dist 
Lake Arrowhead Chalets HOA 
North Bay at Lake Arrwhead HOA 
Lakeside at The Resort HOA 
Lake Arrowhead Village HOA 
Mountains Community Hospital 
Total Principal Rate Payers 
All Other Rate Payers 
Total Water Sales Arrowhead Woods 

Source:  District Records 

Shopping Center 
Hotel 
Conference Center 
Residential 
Education 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Residential 
Hospital 

$ 90,886 
79,960 
51,816 
39,835 
37,254 
37,121 
35,104 
27,192 
19,968 
17,221 

$ 436,357 
4,357,329 

$ 4,793,686 

2.1% 
1.8% 
1.2% 
0.9% 
0.9% 
0.9% 
0.8% 
0.6% 
0.5% 
0.4% 

10.0% 
100.0% 
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Table 4-3 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Principal Wastewater Users By  Revenue 
2020-21 

Customer Type of Business 
Wastewater 

Revenue 
% of Op 
Revenue 

Rim of the World Unified School District 
Lake Arrowhead Resort 
Lake Arrowhead Village 
UCLA Conference Center 
Blue Jay Investors, LLC 
Lakeside Resort 
Mountains Community Hospital                             
Lakeside at the Resort HOA 
Arrowhead Lake Association 
Lake Arrowhead Country Club 
Total Principal Customers 
Other Customers 
Total Wastewater Revenue 

2011-12 

Education 
Hotel 
Shopping Center 
Conference Center 
Shopping Center 
Mobile Home Park 
Hospital 
Residential 
Recreational Land Mgmt 
Country Club/Golf Course 

$ 121,960 
73,107 
69,150 
67,652 
37,863 
25,262 
24,422 
22,603 
19,519 
18,944 

$ 480,482 
7,118,057 

$ 7,598,539 

25.4% 
15.2% 
14.4% 
14.1% 

7.9% 
5.3% 
5.1% 
4.7% 
4.1% 
3.9% 

100.0% 
93.7% 

Wastewater % of Op 
Customer Type of Business Revenue Revenue 
Rim of the World Unified School Dist Education $ 125,067 25.7% 
Lake Arrowhead Resort Hotel 85,777 17.6% 
Lake Arrowhead Village Shopping Center 61,601 12.7% 
Blue Jay Investors, Llc Shopping Center 57,773 11.9% 
UCLA Conference Center Conference Center 51,527 10.6% 
Lakeside Trailer Park Residential 37,548 7.7% 
Calvary Chapel Of Costa Mesa Church 19,097 3.9% 
Lakeside at The Resort HOA Residential 17,375 3.6% 
Rangi GVD-Guffey Gas Station 17,153 3.5% 
Arrowhead Lake Association Recreational Land Mgmt 13,470 2.8% 
Total Principal Customers $ 486,388 100.0% 
Other Customers 5,771,731 92.2% 
Total Wastewater Revenue $ 6,258,119 

Source:  District Records 
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Table 4-4 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

Estimated   
Population (1) 

San Bernardino 
County 

Population         
(in thousands) 

(2) 

San Bernardino 
County Total 

Personal 
Income               

(in thousands) 
(3) 

San 
Bernardino 
County Per 

Capita 
Personal 

Income(3) 

School 
Enrollment 

(4) 

San Bernardino 
County 

Unemployment 
Rate (5) 

2012 12,041 2,064 66,752 32,072 4,015 11.9% 
2013 11,853 2,069 68,387 32,747 3,889 10.1% 
2014 11,668 2,084 69,488 32,892 3,826 9.0% 
2015 11,486 2,104 75,403 35,431 3,587 7.1% 
2016 11,307 2,139 78,831 36,835 3,478 6.6% 
2017 11,314 2,160 83,217 38,648 3,404 6.1% 
2018 11,321 2,175 87,550 40,316 3,348 4.4% 
2019 11,355 2,180 91,658 42,043 3,149 4.1% 
2020 12,424 2,208 3,106 11.4% 
2021 12,485 2,180 2,844 8.1%

 (1) Estimated full time residents based on 2010 census.  Fiscal years 2011 through 2017 have been
  restated as a result of estimates being provided by the U.S. Census Bureau.  Growth for 2018 and forward
  is based upon an increase in new connections.

      Peak holiday weekend population is estimated to be approximately 40,000. 
(2)  Source:  California Department of Finance , E-1:  State/County Population Estimates with Annual Percent
        Change, as of January 1st. 
(3)  Source:  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis: Regional Economic Accounts for San
       Bernardino County. Statistics are available through 2018. 
(4)  Source:  Rim of the World Unified School District 
(5)  Source:  www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov - Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information
        Division.  Rates are annual averages. 

 
82 168

www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov


Table 4-5 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Principal Employers 

2021 
Percent of 

Number of Total 
Employer Employees Employment 

Rim of the World School District 491 12.92% 
Mountains Community Hospital 251 6.61% 
UCLA Conference Center 214 5.63% 
Stater Brothers Markets 116 3.05% 
Jensen's Markets 79 2.08% 
Coldwell Banker Sky Ridge Realty 65 1.71% 
Lake Arrowhead Country Club 90 2.37% 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 56 1.47% 
Lake Arrowhead Fire District 44 1.16% 
Re/Max Lakeside Realty 38 1.00% 
Wheeler Steffen Sotheby's Realty 19 0.50% 

Per www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov, the total number of jobs in Lake Arrowhead CDP as of October 
2021 is 3,900. 

2012 
Percent of 

Number of Total 
Employer Employees Employment 

Rim of the World School District 365 28% 
Lake Arrowhead Resort 180 14% 
Mountains Community Hospital 175 13% 
Stater Brothers Markets 95 7% 
Jensen's Markets 90 7% 
Lake Arrowhead Fire District 70 5% 
UCLA Conference Center 65 5% 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 50 4% 
Southern California Edison 35 3% 
US Forest Service 30 2% 
Southern California Gas 24 2% 

Source: Lake Arrowhead Chamber of Commerce 
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Table 5-1 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Deer Lodge 
Fiscal Year Park & 

Ended Water Wastewater Rimforest Total % Change 
2012 3,709,594 5,397,635 23,510 9,130,739 (13%) 
2013 501,351 482,794 - 984,145 (89%) 
2014 601,111 6,359,382 - 6,960,493 607% 
2015 1,179,580 888,576 476,984 2,545,140 (63%) 
2016 915,785 2,641,091 - 3,556,876 40% 
2017 816,495 1,384,820 3,955 2,205,270 (38%) 
2018 6,803,018 1,851,125 39,712 8,693,855 294% 
2019 945,451 2,656,980 15,478 3,617,909 (58%) 
2020 1,125,775 2,979,149 72,064 4,176,988 15% 
2021 811,273 4,764,226 300 5,575,799 33% 
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Table 5-2 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

Service Connection Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Arrowhead Woods (Water) 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
New 

Connections 
Abandoned 
Connections 

Fire 
Protection 

Total 
Connections 

% 
Change 

2012 4 (1) 3 8,286 0.07% 
2013 4 (4) 5 8,291 0.06% 
2014 5 6 8,302 0.13% 
2015 6 (1) 6 8,313 0.13% 
2016 8 (1) 7 8,327 0.17% 
2017 7 (2) 10 8,342 0.18% 
2018 5 9 8,356 0.17% 
2019 13 12 8,381 0.30% 
2020 8 8 8,397 0.19% 
2021 8 12 8,417 0.24% 

Average 7 

Wastewater 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
New 

Connections 
Abandoned 
Connections 

Total 
Connections % Change 

2012 6 (1) 10,615 0.05% 
2013 2 10,617 0.02% 
2014 5 10,622 0.05% 
2015 15 10,637 0.14% 
2016 8 (1) 10,644 0.07% 
2017 14 (3) 10,655 0.10% 
2018 9 (3) 10,661 0.06% 
2019 10 10,671 0.09% 
2020 15 (5) 10,681 0.09% 
2021 10 10,691 0.09% 

Average 9 

Deer Lodge Park 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
New 

Connections 
Abandoned 
Connections 

Fire 
Protection 

Total 
Connections 

% 
Change 

2012 208 0.00% 
2013 208 0.00% 
2014 1 1 210 0.96% 
2015 210 0.00% 
2016 210 0.00% 
2017 1 211 0.48% 
2018 1 1 213 0.95% 
2019 2 215 0.94% 
2020 4 2 221 2.79% 
2021 1 1 223 0.90% 

Average 2 

Rimforest 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
New 

Connections 
Abandoned 
Connections 

Fire 
Protection 

Total 
Connections 

% 
Change 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 298 4 302 (1) 

2016 1 (3) 300 -0.66% 
2017 300 0.00% 
2018 300 0.00% 
2019 300 0.00% 
2020 300 0.00% 
2021 300 0.00% 

Average 1 

Note: One connection may serve more than one dwelling unit and multiple meters may serve one parcel. 
(1)The Rimforest water system was acquired on 10/1/2014. 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District Table 5-3 
Operating and Capital Indicators 

at June 30, 2021 
Date of Incorporation March 16, 1978 
Annexation of Sewer System June 7, 1983 
Deer Lodge Park Assessment District Formation April 1, 1995 
Rimforest Water System Acquisition October 1, 2014 
Form of Government Board/Manager 
Number of employees 56 
Area in square miles 15 
Altitude 5,000 - 6,000 feet elevation 
Number of Connections by Classification: 
Arrowhead Woods Water: Residential 7,738 

Residential Irrigation 64 
Commercial/Institutional 142 
Commercial/Institutional Irrigation 8 
Fire Protection Services 465 
Total 8,417 

Deer Lodge Park Water: Residential 186 
Institutional 7 
Fire Protection Services 30 
Total 223 

Rimforest Water: Residential 260 
Commercial 36 
Fire Protection Services 4 
Total 300 

Wastewater: Residential 10,430 
Commercial/Institutional 261 
Total 10,691 

Facilities and Services: 
Water System: Wells 5 

Treatment plants 3 
Capacity 7.25 mgd 
Average daily demand 2.3 mgd 
Peak holiday weekend demand 6 mgd 
Miles of pipeline 125 
Source of supply:        Lake Arrowhead, local groundwater and imported 

Deer Lodge Park Water: Wells 2 
Capacity .072 mgd 
Average daily demand .10 mgd 
Miles of pipeline 6 
Source of supply  Local groundwater and imported 

Rimforest Water: Average daily demand 0.053 
Miles of pipeline 3.85 
Source of supply Imported water 

Sewer System: Treatment plants 2 
Capacity 3.7 mgd 
Average daily demand 1.493 mgd 
Peak holiday weekend demand 2.4 mgd 
Miles of pipeline 209 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District Table 5-4 
Wastewater Treatment 
Last Ten Calendar Years 

Fiscal Year Ended (1) 

Total gallons of 
wastewater treated 

(million gallons) 
2012 419 
2013 367 
2014 353 
2015 382 
2016 362 
2017 410 
2018 304 
2019 467 
2020 444 
2021 374 

(1) All reports submitted to Lahontan Regional Water Quality
    Control Board for treatment are based on the calendar year. 

Annual Wastewater Treatment 
Million Gallons 

2020 

2018 

2016 

2014 

2012 

- 100  200  300  400  500 
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Table 5-5 

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Water Production and Sales in Arrowhead Woods 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

Total Water 
Delivered to the 

Distribution 
System (AF) 

Total Water 
Sales (AF) 

Unaccounted 
Water  (AF) 

Infrastructure 
Leakage Index 

(ILI)* 
Recycled 

Water (AF) 

Raw Water 
Transferred 
to GV Lake 

(AF) 

Average 
Acre Foot 
Use Per 

Connection 

 1,600 

2012 1,658.60 1,232.00 426.55      N/A  195.30 - 0.15 
2013 1,697.28 1,327.20 364.31 1.85 240.51 - 0.16 
2014 1,616.13 1,285.29 322.18 1.69 230.36 - 0.15 
2015 1,385.74 1,127.48 277.34 2.08 252.13 - 0.14 
2016 1,276.70 974.67 223.74 1.93 188.07 - 0.12 
2017 1,477.64 1,159.70 315.08 1.43 237.11 - 0.14 
2018 1,343.86 1,153.66 203.58 0.92 236.10 - 0.14 
2019 1,296.21 1,142.33 205.35 0.68 199.34 - 0.14 
2020 1,360.77 1,193.13 185.98 0.65 241.47 - 0.14 
2021 1,487.02 1,313.46 172.16 0.86 262.76 - 0.16 

* ILI is Ratio of Current Annual Real Losses (CARL) to Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL); good for operational 
benchmarking for real loss control.  Data became available beginning in 2012-13.
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Table 5-6 

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Operational Activity Analysis 

2020-21 
Cost per 

Activity Annual Cost Acre-Feet Acre-Foot 
Surface Water Pumping 178,403 1,278 139.60 
Surface Water Treatment 75,202 1,278 58.84 
Unrecycled Backwash 6,422 46 139.60 
Groundwater Pumping 28,403 178 159.57 
Groundwater Treatment/Labor/R&M 235,356 178 1,322.22 
Groundwater Water Rights 10,101 178 56.75 
Water Distribution Pumping 330,993 1,487 222.59 
Water Purchase 109,775 77 1,425.65 
Water Ops Labor, Expense 1,152,796 1,487 775.25 
Recycled Water 227,608 263 865.43 
Distribution Maintenance 1,072,249 1,487 721.08 
Water Conservation 260,137 1,487 174.94 
Overhead & Admin Water 1,840,567 1,487 1,237.77 
Sewage Collection 2,013,107 1,363 1,476.97 
Sewage Treatment 602,620 1,363 442.13 
Effluent Disposal 18,678 1,363 13.70 
Wastewater Ops Labor, Expense 1,772,413 1,363 1,300.38 
Overhead & Admin Wastewater 2,161,017 1,363 1,585.49 

2011-12 
Cost per 

Activity Annual Cost Acre-Feet Acre-Foot 
Surface Water Pumping 185,728 2,732 67.98 
Surface Water Treatment 55,920 2,732 20.47 
Unrecycled Backwash 7,314 108 67.98 
Groundwater Pumping - - -
Groundwater Treatment/Labor/R&M - - -
Groundwater Water Rights - - -
Water Distribution Pumping 197,509 2,407 82.06 
Water Purchase - - -
Water Ops Labor, Expense 738,707 2,407 306.90 
Recycled Water - - -
Distribution Maintenance 663,425 2,407 275.62 
Water Conservation 157,686 2,407 65.51 
Overhead & Admin Water 960,736 2,407 399.14 
Sewage Collection 1,191,156 1,465 813.08 
Sewage Treatment 285,744 1,465 195.05 
Effluent Disposal 19,765 1,465 13.49 
Wastewater Ops Labor, Exp 956,306 1,465 652.77 
Overhead & Admin Wastewater 1,439,522 1,465 982.61 

Source: District records 
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Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Full-time and Part-time District Employees by Function 

Table  5-7 

Full-Time and Part-Time Employees as of June 30th 

Function 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Administration (1) 

Engineering 
Field Operations 
Operations 

15.25 
3.5 
17 
13 

12.25 
3.5 
13 
15 

13.25 
3.5 

15.5 
19.5 

14.25 
3.5 
15 

17.5 

14.5 
3.5 
16 

19.5 

14.5 
3.5 
18 

20.5 

14.5 
3.5 
17 

20.5 

14.25 
3.5 
17 

20.5 

14.25 
3.5 
17 

20.5 

14.25 
3.5 
17 

20.5 

Total Filled Positions 
Total Board 
Approved Positions 
(Budgeted) 

48.75 

56 

43.75 

53.75 

51.75 

53.25 

50.25 

54.25 

53.50 

53.50 

56.50 

56.50 

55.50 

55.50 

55.25 

55.50 

55.25 

55.50 

55.25 

55.50 

(1) Administration consists of  Finance, Human Resources, Customer Service, Water 
Conservation, Meter Reading and Board Administration 

Source:  District Records 
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  Vendor  Total 
 1  Advanced Communication Systems  $97,600 

 
 

LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: MATT BROOKS, Operations Manager 

CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 2-
WAY RADIO EQUIPMENT FOR PROCUREMENT 
PROJECT NO. J103 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

That the Board of Directors approves the purchase of fifty-five (55) new mobile 
radios, sixty-two (62) new hand-held radios, one (1) new repeater, and necessary 
components from Advanced Communication Systems, for their low responsive and 
responsible bid of $97,600 which includes taxes, delivery, and installation of the 
equipment. 

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

The radio system can be used during normal business operations, however the main 
reason for its implementation is for use during emergencies such as fires, 
earthquakes, or extended power outages where landline and/or cell communications 
are not available. These radios, components, and installation qualify as eligible 
purchases for power resiliency equipment under the Cal OES Community Power 
Resiliency Allocation to Special Districts Program Grant and will be purchased 
using the funds received under the FY 2020-21. Grant monies must be used by 
March 31, 2022. 

On September 23, 2021, District staff advertised for bids for the provision of fifty-
five (55) new mobile radios, sixty-two (62) new hand-held radios, one (1) new 
repeater, and necessary components.  On October 7, 2021, the District received the 
following bid: 

The Engineer’s cost estimate is $100,000. 
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C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

On March 12, 2021, the District received notice that it had been approved for the 
Cal OES Community Power Resiliency Allocation to Special Districts Program 
Grant in the amount of $300,000. Funds may be used for the procurement of: 

• Generators and generator connections for essential facilities 
• Generator fuel and fuel storage 
• Redundant emergency communications (e.g., battery-powered 

radios) 
• Portable vehicle-mounted charging stations 
• Portable battery-powered and rechargeable radio repeater and 

transmission equipment. 

At the September 28, 2021 regularly scheduled Board Meeting the Board approved 
the purchase of two new generators; one for the new Corporation Yard and one for 
Bernina/North Bay Pump Station.  This was the first purchase of grant-eligible 
items approved by the Board at a cost of $163,725.44. 

This Action Item will be the second grant-eligible purchase at a cost of $97,688.  
The combined total of grant-eligible purchases so far, including this second 
purchase, will be $261,413.44. This leaves a remaining balance of $38,586.26 
available to spend on future eligible purchases. As previously mentioned, these 
grant funds must be expended prior to March 31, 2022. District staff is currently 
evaluating District needs to find the best use for the remaining available funds. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

This radio equipment is the second purchase utilizing the funds received under the 
FY 2020-21 Community Power Resiliency Allocation to Special Districts Program 
by Cal OES. Fiscal impact for this purchase will be $97,600 which includes taxes, 
delivery, and installation of the equipment. After this purchase, there will be 
$38,586.26 remaining from the original $300,000 grant balance. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

None.  This action does not fall under CEQA requirements. 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

• None 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: APPROVE A CONTRACT TO CONDUCT A COMPENSATION 
STUDY 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to enter into 
a contract with Regional Government Services (RGS) to provide a Compensation Study 
for all staff classifications in the District for not to exceed $25,800.  

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

All of the firms exhibited extensive experience and understanding of the project but RGS 
provided the most competitive price. RGS will only bill the actual hours worked up to the 
not to exceed amount of $25,800. Because the cost to prepare a compensation study for the 
entire District will only add $6,600 to the entire project, it is recommended to move forward 
with a study that covers the entire District. 

Firm MSCEU Only UWUA Entire District 
Koff & Assoc $22,605 $11,550 $34,155 
RGS $19,200 $ 6,600 $25,800 
RSG $21,400 $11,900 $33,300 
Average $21,068 $10,017 $31,085 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Section 4.2.1 of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the District and the 
Managers, Supervisors and Confidential Employees Unit dated October 1, 2018 through 
September 30, 2022 requires the District to utilize a third-party vendor to conduct a salary 
survey six months prior to the end of the MOU. District staff prepared a Request for 
Proposals for a compensation study and sent it to eight firms that provide this service. Three 
firms responded with a proposal. 
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RGS is a joint powers authority specializing in public-sector administration and consulting 
services. Their agency is governed by several member agencies with the mission to provide 
quality, innovative, cost-effective services exclusively to public agencies. The goal of a 
compensation study is to enhance staff attraction, retention and growth to deliver excellent 
public service. The last compensation study conducted by the District was in 2008. 

This study will analyze the full compensation of each employee classification, including 
benefits. The consultant will identify comparable agencies and will evaluate whether the 
District’s compensation and benefits package is competitive and/or appropriate for current 
and future operational demands. This will result in a prioritized list of recommendations. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

The fiscal impact for this item would be $19,200 for a study of the MSCEU only or $25,800 
to complete the study for the entire District. There is sufficient budget under the 
Administration Outside Services line item to cover this cost. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

This item does not qualify as a project under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA). 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

Proposal from Regional Government Services 

Compensation Study 
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October 24, 2021 

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
Attn: Catherine Cerri, General Manager 
27307 State Hwy 189, Suite 101 
Lake Arrowhead, CA 92352 
(909)336-7100 
ccerri@lakearrowheadcsd.com 

RE: PROPOSAL TO THE LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
TO PROVIDE A COMPENSATION STUDY 

Dear Ms. Cerri, 

Regional Government Services Authority (RGS) is pleased to submit this Proposal to the Lake 
Arrowhead Community Services District (District) in response to the Request for Proposals (RFP) 
to provide a Compensation Study.  RGS is a unique, fee-supported, joint powers authority 
specializing in public-sector administration and consulting services. Since 2002, RGS has 
exclusively served over 200 public agencies across the western United States and employs 
experienced public-sector professionals. 

I am confident that you will find RGS’ approach is responsive to each of the District’s objectives 
and needs. The plan provides for tools and support to meet or exceed the goals listed in the 
District’s scope of services. RGS has a solid and respected reputation with the public agencies we 
serve for timely, cost efficient delivery and effective implementation. As a public agency, we fully 
understand the needs and requirements of public agencies.  This proposal will remain valid for a 
60-day period from the date this proposal is opened.  

The RGS team appreciates the opportunity to be of service to Lake Arrowhead Community 
Services District! 

Sincerely, 

Patty Howard 
Lead Advisor 
REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 

P.O.  BOX 1350  |     CARM EL VALLEY,  CA 93924  |     844 .587 .7300   |  WWW.RGS.CA. GOV 
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STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 

Regional Government Services (RGS) was formed in 2001 by a city and a regional planning and 
services agency to help local governments meet three challenges: decreasing revenues, increasing 
demands (and costs) for services, and loss of experienced staff.  Government leaders knew that 
these challenges were likely to continue, so agencies would have to work together – uniting not 
only their voices but their resources to advocate and become more efficient.  The idea behind the 
creation of RGS was to form an agency, which would help local governments share expertise and 
improve efficiencies.  A need was emerging for some way to help agencies get the expertise and 
experience needed, without each agency having to hire full-time staff when the need might be less 
than full-time.  Agencies could, in effect, share expertise through a third party. 

Today, RGS is a solvent organization governed by several member agencies, all with the common 
goal expressed in the JPA’s mission statement: To provide quality, innovative, cost-effective 
services exclusively to public agencies. RGS has now served over 298 cities, special districts, 
joint powers authorities, and other local governments and non-profits that support local 
governments. RGS currently has 130 professional Advisors and 14 RGS Administrative staff. 

RGS developed a highly flexible platform of administrative support and programs that could serve 
the diverse needs of cities, special districts, counties, and other joint powers authorities.  Flexibility 
was vital because the needs of partner agencies varied and because RGS services were 100 percent 
fee-based.  Thus, RGS costs needed to be able to ramp up or down quickly as demand changed.  

The highest value RGS can bring is to share our experiences with our clients, constantly refining 
Best Practices to provide quality expertise to the benefit of all our partner clients. The RGS staff 
prides itself on its ability to deliver accurate, professional products and services within reasonable 
timelines.  We meet deadlines and provide clear, honest, and effective communications, all of 
which help to promote good relations with stakeholders at all phases of a project. 

Since 2015, RGS advisor teams have completed several hundred classification and compensation 
and multiple staffing projection studies for agencies throughout the State of California, including 
municipalities, county organizations, water and wastewater districts, special districts, a municipal 
insurance agency, transportation agencies, waste management agencies, and joint powers 
authorities.  These studies have ranged from organization-wide comprehensive classification and 
compensation studies and staffing projections as part of an organizational development assessment 
or redesign.  Most of our partner agencies have intended to design and implement traditional 
organizational hierarchies, and we respect the policy of each agency in offering classification and 
compensation services while offering creative and effective solutions to enhance staff attraction, 
retention, and growth and the delivery of excellent public service. 

In addition to our specific classification and compensation studies, RGS regularly provides 
organizational assessment studies in which alternative models of staffing, structure, and service 
delivery are explored. 

1-1 
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STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 

Regional Government Services (RGS) takes a holistic approach to a classification and 
compensation study since each agency is unique in its work culture, services, and community. 
RGS will take these factors into consideration when analyzing and making recommendations. The 
methods of how the study will be approached and analyzed are addressed fully in Section 6. Project 
Approach. 
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KEY PERSONNEL 

RGS is a virtual government agency that has developed a unique network of geographically 
distributed Advisors who work through various remote access technologies and onsite at partner 
agency offices to deliver services to partner agencies. This model allows us to reduce overhead 
and expands our ability to provide high-quality services throughout the state.   

The team we have assembled to assist the District has outstanding relevant experiences, talents, 
and accomplishments in a range of public-sector operations. In addition to their prior public 
sector experience, the team assigned to this project has worked an average of six years as RGS 
team members collaborating on various Human Resources projects. The primary project staff 
resourced for this team are available and prepared to begin immediately, will be available to the 
extent proposed for the duration of the contract, and have extensive experience in staffing 
projections, classification projects, and developing compensation structures and strategies.  RGS 
does not utilize sub-consultants.   

The following organizational chart lists key team members, their job titles, and roles and 
responsibilities. As requested, we have also provided the approximate percentage of the project 
time each Advisor will be assigned. In addition, RGS may add other available and qualified 
Advisors to the team at the Lead Advisor’s discretion as project requirements and priorities 
require. 

Bobbi Bennett, 
Human Resources Services Director 
Provide general oversight of the project

(2%). 

Judy LaPorte, Project Advisor 
Collect compensation data, prepare draft 
salary and benefits worksheets assist with 

the development of study 
recommendations (20%). 

Jo Miller, Technical Specialist 
Provide technical support to RGS

advisors, format final report, worksheets,
and additional documents (3%). 

Patty Howard, Lead Advisor 
Provide day-to-day oversight of the
project; RGS point of contact for the 

District; ensure the timeline is met; draft 
and finalize all documents, worksheets, 

and study reports; present study data and 
recommendation to District staff (40%). 

Karen Blakely, Project Advisor 
Analyze and establish the list of 

comparable agencies; collect 
compensation data; prepare draft salary 
and benefits worksheets to assist with 
developing study recommendations

(35%). 

2-1 
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 Title Hourly Rate  

Chief Operating Officer  $135 to $220 

 Deputy Chief Operating Officer  $130 to $195 

 Senior/Lead Advisor  $125 to $190 

 Advisor  $115 to $160 

 Project Advisor  $105 to $125 

Project Coordinator   $85 to $120 

Technical Specialist   $75 to $115 

~ 

CONSULTANTS' EXPERIENCE 

Summary resumes for the identified key RGS project team may be found in Appendix A.  The 
hourly rate for work performed will be billed at the following hourly rates based on the 
Advisor(s) assigned to the project. 
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REFERENCES 

RGS teams regularly provide services that go beyond contract requirements and partner agency 
expectations. The intent is not only to address the services identified in the contract but also to take 
a holistic approach to ensure our partner agencies have considered all avenues, risks, and 
implementation options. RGS always strives to provide exceptional service without exceeding the 
contract’s financial constraints. 

Our advisors have worked on multiple comprehensive classification and compensation studies for 
public entities at the state, county, and local levels.  We are skilled at crafting, reviewing, and 
analyzing a wide array of public sector organizational classification and compensation structures. 
We are familiar with and have helped many organizations successfully navigate the challenges and 
opportunities that surface in studies.   

Additional references can be provided upon request. 

CENTRAL COAST COMMUNITY ENERGY (CCCE) 

An agency-wide total compensation study of 34 classifications. RGS collected base pay and 
benefit data from the six designated comparator agencies, which included 29 benchmark 
classifications. RGS surveyed the six comparator agencies, collected base pay and benefit data for 
all comparable classes, and recommended salary adjustments based on the external market data 
collected as well as the internal compensation alignment analysis conducted. Salary 
recommendations were made utilizing generally accepted compensation standards to ensure equity 
within class series and families as well as across the various workgroups.  

Mi Ra Park 
Human Resources Manager 
mpark@3ce.org 

Central Coast Community Energy (CCCE) 
70 Garden Court, Suite 300 
Monterey, CA 93940 
(831) 901-3674 

CITY OF SACRAMENTO 

RGS conducted a classification and compensation study of the 19 classifications (42 employees) 
for the Convention Center, a division of the Convention Center and Cultural Services Department. 
RGS conducted job analysis on each position in the Division, identified essential duties, aligned 
positions into job families within classification series and across the classification plan, 
recommended new classification titles, and created new classification specifications for positions 
at various levels of the organization. Based on the updated classification plan, RGS then conducted 
an internal compensation alignment analysis. Salary recommendations were made utilizing 
generally accepted compensation standards to ensure equity within class series and families as well 
as across the various workgroups.   

4-1 
192

mailto:mpark@3ce.org


 
 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  
    

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

REFERENCES 

In addition, RGS has completed multiple classification and compensation studies for various City 
departments since 2019. RGS has partnered with the City’s points of contact, ensured deadlines 
were met, and the projects were completed within budget. 

Sally Ly 
Human Resources Manager 
sly@cityofsacramento.org 

Employment, Classification, and Development 
City of Sacramento 
915 ‘I’ Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 808-8907 

DELTA DIABLO SANITATION DISTRICT 

RGS conducted a 68 classifications study for the District.  RGS conducted job analysis on each 
position in the District, identified essential duties, aligned positions into job families within 
classification series and across the classification plan, recommended new classification titles, and 
created new classification specifications for positions at all levels of the organization. 

Carol Margetich 
Business Services Director 
carolm@deltadiablo.org 

Delta Diablo Sanitation District 
2500 Pittsburg-Antioch Highway 
Antioch, CA 94509 
(925) 756-1935 

4-2 
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PROJECT SCHEDULE

The following is a tentative project timeline that may be modified with mutual agreement between 
LACSD and RGS.  Due to the ambitious completion date LACSD has proposed, staff availability 
and responsiveness will be critical in meeting the study timeline as presented. In addition, the 
success of the data collection process will be dependent on how forthcoming the comparators are 
with the requested information. Meetings with LACSD’s points of contact can be scheduled as 
required.  Biweekly progress reports will be submitted throughout the study process. 

COMPENSATION STUDY RESPONSIBLETENTATIVE DATES 
FOR UWUA CLASSES ONLY PARTY 

1. Kick Off Meetings with the General
Manager and other District points of 
contact to discuss project. 

Weeks of November 15 
– November 22, 2021 

District/RGS 

2. Review of all District compensation- Week of November 29, 
RGS 

related documents. 2021 

3. Develop and finalize the list of 
Weeks of December 6-

comparator agencies, benefit components, District/RGS 
December 13, 2021

and benchmark classes 

Weeks of December
4. Collection of specific salary and benefit 20, 2021 – January 17, RGS 

data for benchmark classes. 2022 

5. Review and analysis of compensation Weeks of January 24 -
RGS 

survey data. January 31, 2022 

6. Develop recommendations for internal
Weeks of February 7 – 

salary alignment, benefits, and other District/RGS 
February 14, 2022 

compensation issues. 

7. Develop a compensation maintenance Weeks of February 21 -
RGS 

plan. February 28, 2022 

8. Draft compensation report and submit to Weeks of March 7 -
RGS 

District for review. March 14, 2022 

9. Feedback from District regarding draft Week of March 21, 
District 

report. 2022 

10. Finalize compensation report and submit 
March 28, 2022 RGS 

to District. 

11. Present study findings and 
recommendations, as needed. 

TBD RGS 
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PROJECT APPROACH 

OVERVIEW OF STUDY 

LACSD is interested in retaining and attracting highly skilled employees.  A compensation study 
can be one way to evaluate if the District is competitive in the job market. 

The goals of the total compensation study are to: 

• Determine the compensation for similar classifications in LACSD’s identified comparable 
agencies. 

• Determine the level of benefits provided by comparable agencies to similar classifications. 
• Evaluate whether LACSD’s compensation and benefits package is competitive to attract 

and retain a quality workforce. 
• Evaluate whether the design of LACSD’s compensation and benefits structure is 

appropriate and efficient for current and future operational demands. 

Regional Government Services (RGS) will take the following steps to complete the compensation 
study. These steps and methodology will remain the same whether the study includes only the 
Managers, Supervisors, and Confidential Employees Unit (MSCEU) or if the study is District-
wide. The RGS Lead Advisor and Project Advisors will be available for phone and email 
consultation and video conference/phone meetings throughout the project. 

REQUEST AND REVIEW KEY ORGANIZATIONAL BACKGROUND MATERIAL 

Once the contract is executed, RGS will request and review key background material and 
documents from the District to understand the District’s current classification and organizational 
structure, policies, and procedures.  Typical materials requested include: 

• Organizational Charts. 
• Existing classification specifications. 
• Current salary schedules. 
• Agreements for terms and conditions of employment, employee contracts. 
• Applicable policies and procedures. 
• Previous compensation studies, both agency-wide and for single classifications. 

ESTABLISH COMPENSATION STUDY COMPONENTS 

Comparable Agencies 

Establishing the list of comparable agencies is critical to the accuracy and validity of the data 
collected during the study. RGS will evaluate agencies included in any previous study as well as 
other agencies using the following factors: 

6-1 
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PROJECT APPROACH 

• Organizational Type and Services Provided: Entities on the list will be reviewed as to 
the type of organization, types of services provided, and how closely they align with 
LACSD. 

• Population Served, Demographics: This will provide insight into the level and types of 
services required and the staffing levels and funding that may be needed to provide those 
services. 

• Agencies Employing Citizens and the Labor Market Climate: RGS will review this in 
combination with the information gained above to obtain an indication of applicant pools, 
the proximity of applicants to potential employers, and the likelihood of attracting 
sufficient qualified applicants from within the immediate market. 

• Personnel, Operational, and Capital Plan Budgets: RGS will review the size of a 
potential comparator’s budgets and current staffing allocations to gain insight into the 
current resources available to provide services. 

• Cost of Living: This factor, which includes the cost of housing, goods, and services, helps 
to further analyze the available labor market, such as mean housing prices and median 
household incomes. 

Compensation Elements 

The compensation elements utilized in the study should assist LACSD in determining the total 
cost of the classifications within the agency and how those costs compare with the agencies 
surveyed. The compensation elements that may be considered include: 

• Base rate of hourly pay 
• Contributions by BOTH employee and employer to the following programs: 

− Pension system, including Social Security 
− Health insurance premium, family coverage level 
− Dental insurance premium, family coverage level 
− Vision insurance premium, family coverage level 

• Vacation leave 
• Sick Leave 
• Holiday Leave (including floating holidays) 
• Management/Administrative leave 
• Longevity pay 
• Certification pay 
• Education incentive 
• Employer contribution to a deferred compensation plan 
• Other forms of cash compensation 

6-2 
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PROJECT APPROACH 

Benchmark Classifications 

RGS will analyze LACSD’s current classification plan and recommend benchmark classifications 
to be used to create the updated compensation plan. Benchmark classifications are usually those 
that are found throughout the comparator agencies. They are most often journey-level 
classifications either within a specific classification series or those that are single classifications. 
RGS will recommend the internal alignment of the remaining LACSD classifications from the data 
obtained for the benchmark classifications. 

WORK PLAN 

RGS will take the following steps to complete the compensation study. 

VIRTUAL KICK-OFF MEETING WITH THE DISTRICT MANAGEMENT 

RGS will virtually meet with the District’s points of contact(s) to explain the methodology, 
objectives, deliverables, and data collection methods to be used during the study. In addition, RGS 
will present a list of compensation elements, and benchmark classifications to the meeting 
participants. 

COMPENSATION STUDY 

Utilizing the analysis identified above, RGS will provide the District with a list of recommended 
agencies to be used in the compensation study. Upon approval of the final list of agencies, RGS 
will identify comparable classifications within each comparator agency and collect and compile 
the compensation data. Comparable classifications will be identified on a “whole job” basis, 
taking duties, reporting structure, and requirements into consideration, and not by title alone. 

COMPENSATION STUDY REPORT 

RGS will compile and incorporate information gathered in the collaborative review process and 
finalize the report. The final report will include, at a minimum, the following: 

 Executive summary – including process followed and methodology used. 

 Compensation Study 

 A list of comparator agencies surveyed as part of the compensation study. 

 A list of classifications surveyed. 
 Statistics for each benchmark classification’s base rate of pay identifying the 

percentage above or below the average and median of market comparators. 

 Statistics for each classification’s total compensation identifying the percentage above 
or below the average and median of market comparators. 

 Assessment of compensation data (salary and benefits). 
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PROJECT APPROACH 

 Prioritized list of recommendations, including any additional funding required to 
implement and any short- and long-term savings that may be realized. 

 Written internal salary alignment guidelines. 
 Recommendations for a process to maintain the classification plan along with tools. 

 Complete compensation survey data. 
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COST PROPOSAL 

At RGS, we bill only actual hours attributable to the project at the rate of the actual Advisor or 
technician. Work will commence upon notification by the District of the project award.   Work is 
performed as agreed and subsequently billed each month based on hours actually worked.  RGS 
Advisors are skilled at prioritizing projects and working within the budget of partner agencies. 
Mileage, if applicable, will be calculated/invoiced using the current IRS rate. 

The total project for the compensation study for the MSCEU classifications only would not exceed 
$19,200. Estimated project costs include: 

COMPENSATION STUDY PHASES 
ESTIMATED 

COST 

1. Meetings/emails/progress reports with District; review all District 
contracts, resolutions, salary tables, benefits information, and previous 
studies. 

$3,250 

2. Establish list of benchmark classes, comparable agencies, and benefit 
elements. $4,100 

3. Collect salary and benefit data from comparable agencies. $3,700 

4. Analyze data and create recommendations for internal salary 
alignment, benefits, and compensation issues. $1,700 

5. Develop a compensation maintenance plan. $1,350 

6. Prepare the compensation study report. $2,900 

7. Present compensation study results and recommendations, as required. $2,200 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST NOT TO EXCEED: $19,200 

The total project for the compensation study for both the MSCEU and UWUA classifications 
would not exceed $25,800. Estimated project costs include: 

COMPENSATION STUDY PHASES 
ESTIMATED 

COST 

1. Meetings/emails/progress reports with District; review all District 
contracts, resolutions, salary tables, benefits information, and previous 
studies. 

$3,250 

2. Establish list of benchmark classes, comparable agencies, and benefit 
elements. $4,600 

3. Collect salary and benefit data from comparable agencies. $7,000 

4. Analyze data and create recommendations for internal salary 
alignment, benefits, and compensation issues. 2,900 

7-1 
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COST PROPOSAL 

COMPENSATION STUDY PHASES 
ESTIMATED 

COST 

5. Develop a compensation maintenance plan. 1,350 

6. Prepare the compensation study report. 4,500 

7. Present compensation study results and recommendations, as required. 2,200 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST NOT TO EXCEED: $25,800 
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Bobbi Bennett, M.A., PHR, IPMA-CP 
Human Resources Services Director 
Since 2000, Ms. Bennett has worked in both city and county government, specifically in human 
resources.  During her career, she has overseen centralized full service Human Resources 
departments that addressed recruitments, classification and compensation, benefits, worker’s 
compensation, performance management, discipline, employee relations, labor relations, labor 
negotiations, and training. Ms. Bennett’s key skill is assisting all levels of an organization evaluate 
and address complex employee and organizational matters to facilitate effective resolutions. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES, JPA, HUMAN RESOURCES SERVICES 
DIRECTOR 
Leads the human resources services teams in providing expert human resource consulting services 
to small municipalities, special districts, and government entities on leave and disability 
management, performance management, policy development, staffing, classification and 
compensation, employee relations, strategic planning, payroll and FLSA compliance, and a broad 
range of other human resource topics and services. 

COUNTY OF ELDORADO, HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT, HUMAN RESOURCES 
MANAGER 
Approximately 1900 employees.  Oversaw and managed daily operations of all areas of Human 
Resources. 

CITY OF POWAY, ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT, HUMAN RESOURCES 
MANAGER 
Approximately 360 employees.  Oversaw and managed daily operations of all areas of Human 
Resources. 

CITY OF CHULA VISTA, HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT, SENIOR HUMAN 
RESOURCES ANALYST 
Approximately 1600 employees.  As a Senior Human Resources Analyst, handled politically 
sensitive requirements, classification reviews, salary surveys in preparation for negotiations, 
served as scribe on the management negotiation team, monitored criminal background checks, and 
served as a trainer.  Performed discipline investigations.  Served as chair of City’s PRIDE and 
Work program. 
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Bobbi Bennett, M.A., PHR, IPMA-CP 
Human Resources Services Director 
Page 2 

CITY OF CHULA VISTA, HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT, HUMAN RESOURCES 
ANALYST 
Official job title changed from Citywide Volunteer Coordinator since the majority of the position 
included human resources tasks and assignments.  Ms. Bennett handled more complex 
recruitments, salary surveys and classification reviews.  Monitored criminal background checks 
and served as a trainer on various topics.  Served as chair of the City’s PRIDE and Work program. 

CITY OF CHULA VISTA, HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT, CITYWIDE 
VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR 
Volunteer program and Human Resources responsibilities included, but were not limited to: 
recruitments, on-boarding, salary surveys and training development.  Monitored criminal 
background checks. 

NATIONAL CONFLICT RESOLUTION CENTER, MEDIATOR 
Volunteer mediator on various court mandated mediations and voluntary mediations. 

EDUCATION 
MA, Counseling Psychology, National University 
MA, Home Economics, San Diego State University 

CERTIFICATIONS 
• Professional in Human Resources • IPMA National Committee to revise 

(PHR), 1998 IPMA Certification training 
• IPMA Professional certification, 2008 presentation, 2009 
• IPMA Certification Trainer, 2009 – • Certified Mediator, 2005 

Current • Certificate in Internal Investigations, 
• CalPelra Labor Academies 2006 

MEMBERSHIPS 
• IPMA, local chapter and national 
• CalPELRA 
• MMANC 
• SHRM 
• CCPA (County and Cities Personnel Association), San Diego.  Past chairperson 
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Patricia J. Howard, M.A. 
Lead Advisor 
Ms. Howard joined Regional Government Services as an Advisor in the Human Resources service 
group in 2016. She provides a broad range of human resources services to municipalities and 
special districts throughout northern California as well as serving as the Lead Advisor on the 
Classification and Compensation team. 

Prior to joining RGS, Ms. Howard had over twenty-eight years of management-level human 
resources experience in local government agencies. Ms. Howard has served in the public sector in 
all areas of human resources management including: Recruitment and selection, classification and 
compensation, employee relations, labor negotiations, and EEO investigations.  She is also a 
seasoned trainer, having developed and presented supervisory and lead worker training, 
harassment and discrimination prevention, and new employee orientations. 

Ms. Howard has a master’s degree in public administration with an emphasis in human resources. 
She holds certificates as a Senior Human Resources Professional from IPMA, a Masters in Labor 
Relations from CALPELRA, and in Mediation Skills and Instruction Techniques for Trainers. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 
Human Resources Lead Advisor 
As a Lead Advisor, Ms. Howard has been assigned to over twelve different partner agencies. She 
has provided human resources services such as: 

• Conducted classification and compensation studies. 
• Reviewed employee’s position description questionnaires. 
• Created draft job specifications. 
• Conducted research regarding comparable classifications within study agencies and/or 

outside agencies. 
• Developed recommendations for setting salaries of new and existing classifications based 

on data gathered. 

KOFF & ASSOCIATES 
Senior Associate 
Ms. Howard served as a human resources consultant with a full-service HR consulting firm 
specializing in public sector management.  Her assignments included: 

• Assisted with classification and compensation studies. 
• Conducted research related to compensation and benefit data of comparable agencies. 
• Analyzed data to ensure reliability and accuracy. 
• Provided data for review by executive staff. 
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Patricia J. Howard 
Lead Advisor 
Page 2 

CITY OF ROCKLIN 
Principal Human Resources Analyst 
Ms. Howard served as the Supervisor of all human resources activities for the city. Some of her 
duties included: 

• Organized, directed, and oversaw the activities of the human resources division. 
• Served as city training coordinator. 
• Supervised professional, technical, and administrative human resources staff. 
• Developed and administered division budget. 
• Participated in labor negotiations as a member of the management negotiating team. 
• Conducted investigations related to allegations of misconduct, harassment, discrimination, 

and violence in the workplace in compliance with local, State and Federal laws and 
guidelines. 

• Conducted classification and compensation studies. 

COUNTY OF EL DORADO 
Principal Personnel Analyst 
Ms. Howard was responsible for supervising and overseeing personnel staff and operations such 
as: 

• Supervised professional, technical, and administrative personnel staff in the areas of 
recruitment and selection, classification and compensation, training and orientation, 
operations support. 

• Coordinated countywide training programs. 
• Prepared and implemented departmental budget. 
• Conducted investigations related to allegations of misconduct, harassment, discrimination, 

and violence in the workplace. 
• Provided HR assistance including contract interpretation. 
• Served as member of management team for contract negotiations with various bargaining 

units. 
• Conducted classification and compensation studies. 
• Analyzed all data to ensure reliability and accuracy. 
• Provided data for review by management staff. 
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Karen Blakely 
Project Advisor 
Ms. Blakely joined Regional Government Services in 2017.  She has over twenty-seven years of 
experience providing professional Human Resources services as a generalist to public agencies. 
She has a depth of knowledge of Human Resources, including, but not limited to budgeting, data 
analysis, negotiations costing, legislative analysis, classification and compensation, and 
recruitment and selection. She is well versed in State and Federal employment laws and 
regulations, legal opinions, and court rulings as they apply to implementing best practices. 

Ms. Blakely achieved the Human Resources Certification from the International Public 
Management Association (IPMA), and certificates in Recruitment and Selection, Classification 
and Compensation, Labor and Employee Relations, Ethics, Prevention of Harassment and 
Violence in the Workplace. 

Ms. Blakely served as an elected Board Member of the Sacramento-Mother Lode IPMA Chapter 
for eight years. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 
Project Advisor 
As an Advisor, Ms. Blakely has led organizational development projects for partner agencies. 
Specific assignments have included: 

• Performed and coordinated complex classification and compensation studies 
• Developed and updated job specifications 
• Created detailed reports from data analysis 
• Performed complex Human Resources services 

CITY OF ROCKLIN 
Principal Management Analyst 
Ms. Blakely performed professional and analytical functions for the City, Finance, and Human 
Resources departments. Her responsibilities included: 

• Oversight of payroll, benefits, classification and compensation, employee relations, and 
policy interpretation 

• Created and maintained the City’s Ten-Year Personnel Budget 
• Provided ten-year costing data in labor negotiations 
• Reviewed new legislation for impacts on Human Resources practices 
• Analyzed CalPERS actuarial reports and presented impacts in annual Council presentations 
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Karen Blakely 
Project Advisor 
Page 2 

COUNTY OF EL DORADO 
Senior Personnel Analyst 
Ms. Blakely supported all aspects of Human Resources and served all thirty-three departments. 
Some specific areas of responsibility included: 

• Policy development and implementation 
• Labor relations including negotiations working closely with County Counsel 
• Analysis of legislation for impact on Human Resources practices 
• Classification 
• Compensation and benefit studies 
• Recruitment and selection 
• Reorganization and reductions in force 
• Employee relations 
• Interface with Payroll in Finance Department 
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Judy LaPorte 
Project Advisor 
Judy LaPorte joined Regional Government Services as an Advisor in the Human Resources service 
group in 2019. Her areas of expertise include human resources, risk management, finance, 
information technology, management, and project oversight. 

Ms. LaPorte has over twenty years of senior level management experience in public sector 
agencies. Prior to joining RGS, Ms. LaPorte served in senior management positions in county, city 
and special district government, and has experience as an executive recruiter for public agencies. 

Ms. LaPorte has a bachelor’s degree in business administration. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 
Project Advisor 
As an Advisor, Ms. LaPorte has led organizational development projects for partner agencies. 
Specific assignments have included: 

• Organizational assessments 
• Reorganization analysis 
• Classification and compensation studies 
• Created detailed reports from data analysis 
• Recruitments 
• Performed complex Human Resources services 

DEBORAH GLASSER LABOR RELATIONS, LLC. 
Labor Relations Specialist 
Ms. LaPorte served as Chief Negotiator for a northern California client resulting in settlement of 
two contracts, on time and within the agency’s budget.  She met with the agency’s Board on a 
regular basis in closed session 

COUNTY OF PLACER 
Assistant Director of Human Resources 
Overseeing a staff of 50, Ms. LaPorte was responsible for assisting in the overall direction and 
management of the Human Resources Department including managing the administrative and 
fiscal operations, benefits, HR Information System, participating in labor negotiations, and 
providing professional assistance to management on personnel matters. 
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Judy LaPorte 
Project Advisor 
Page 2 

COUNTY OF PLACER – SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
Administrative Services Manager 
Ms. LaPorte was responsible for managing the fiscal and human resource function for this the 
Sheriff’s Office of 500 employees with an annual budget of $110 million. 

BOB MURRAY & ASSOCIATES 
Vice President 
Ms. LaPorte conducted executive searches for senior management positions serving cities, 
counties, and special districts. 

CITY OF ROCKLIN 
Director of Administrative Services 
Ms. LaPorte was responsible for overseeing the department comprised of the Finance, Human 
Resources, Risk Management, Information Technology, and Fleet Services divisions. 
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Jolene Miller 
Technical Specialist 
Ms. Miller joined Regional Government Services (RGS) as a Project Technical Specialist in 2015. 
She has been providing expert technical services within RGS, primarily in Training and 
Development and Outreach and Communication, as well as for partner agencies. 

Prior to joining RGS, Ms. Miller had over sixteen years of professional experience in both 
executive assistance and information technology services. 

During her duty in the Navy, Ms. Miller was awarded the Human Sea Service Award for 
meritorious direct participation in operations to help the citizens of East Timor. 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 
Project Technical Specialist 
Ms. Miller has provided professional technical services for the Training and Development Team 
for several years. Recently, in 2020, the RGS training program had to pivot to online training 
exclusively. Ms. Miller spearheaded the technical and logistical initiatives to make the interactive 
trainings successful. Throughout her time with RGS, she has prepared training materials, assisted 
with marketing, maintained databases, administered enrollments and payments, and provided 
technical support to trainers. In addition, Ms. Miller provides technical services to many teams in 
RGS by coordinating and formatting materials to be sent to the public and to partner agencies. 

Ms. Miller’s service to partner agencies has focused on compiling data and records, producing 
documents, coordinating communication, and facilitating groups to implement project plans. 

PACIFIC MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS 
Executive Assistant/ Office Manager 
For over twelve years, Ms. Miller was the Executive Assistant and Office Manager for Pacific 
Municipal Consultants, a firm with 140 employees that served public-sector clients with planning, 
environmental, and municipal services throughout California. Ms. Miller provided professional-
level administrative support for executives of all seven offices. In addition, she managed and 
maintained two corporate digital mailboxes, handling over 200 messages daily as well as the 
marketing mailboxes. She coordinated and managed the workload of a six-member Internal 
Service Provider (ISP) team. Ms. Miller served as the liaison between management and vendors 
for all final document publishing. 
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Jolene Miller 
Technical Specialist 
Page 2 

UNITED STATES NAVY 
Information Systems Technician 
Ms. Miller operated and maintained the Navy’s global satellite telecommunications system, 
mainframe computers, local and wide area networks, and microcomputer systems used in the fleet. 
She managed, planned, and coordinated unit-level security of information systems and integration 
across the fleet, ensuring proper security and control of Communications Security (COMSEC) 
materials, systems, and equipment. She researched and recommended network and data 
communications hardware and software solutions. 

As Help Desk Shift Supervisor, Ms. Miller provided technical assistance for a crew of 3,500 
Sailors and Marines. She also assisted the Information Systems Security Officer in access control 
security. 
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LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: NOVEMBER 9, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 

FROM: CATHERINE CERRI, General Manager 

SUBJECT: LEASE AGREEMENT WITH ARROWHEAD WOODS 
ARCHITECTURAL COMMITTEE 

A. RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the lease agreement between the 
District and Arrowhead Woods Architectural Committee (AWAC).  

B. REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

AWAC is interested in utilizing 318 square feet of existing unoccupied space on the first 
floor of the District’s Administration Building at a rate of $715.50 per month for an initial 
term of one year and four optional renewal periods of one year. 

C. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

AWAC enforces the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions in Arrowhead Woods. There 
will be no tenant improvements and no additional cost to the District. 

D. FISCAL IMPACT 

The initial term will generate $8,586 in lease income. 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

This item does not qualify as a project under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA). 

F. ATTACHMENTS 

Proposed lease agreement 
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LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Lease Agreement ("Lease"), dated for reference purposes only as of 
_____________, is entered into between the LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT, a community service district of California ("Landlord"), and 
Arrowhead Woods Architectural Committee, a California Non-Profit Public Benefit 
Corporation ("Tenant"), (each individually a "Party" and collectively the "Parties"). 

RECITALS 

A. Landlord is the owner of certain real property, including the improvements 
thereon, located at 27307 State Highway 189, Blue Jay, California 92317 (the "Property"). 

B. Tenant desires to lease from Landlord, and Landlord desires to lease to 
Tenant, a portion of the Property as described in more detail in the Lease on the terms and 
conditions set forth herein. 

LEASE 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Premises. Landlord leases to Tenant, and Tenant leases from Landlord the 
specific portion of the Property described in detail in Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, consisting of 318 rentable square feet of interior office 
space, including any and all improvements that are existing or are constructed on the space 
(the "Premises").  Landlord and Tenant agree that if Landlord makes additional space 
available to Tenant and Tenant accepts such space, that space shall automatically be 
included in the Premises and the terms of this Lease shall automatically apply thereto, 
unless otherwise agreed by the Parties. 

2. Common Areas.  Tenant shall have the nonexclusive right to use in common 
with Landlord and other Tenants, subject to all rules and regulations as prescribed by 
Landlord, the Common Areas on the Property.  The term "Common Areas" as used in this 
Lease means all areas and facilities on the Property which are provided and designated 
from time-to-time by Landlord for the nonexclusive general use and convenience of Tenant 
and other tenants of the Property and their respective employees and invitees.  Common 
Areas include, but are not limited to, the lobby areas, walkways, parking area, sidewalks, 
hallways, corridors, restrooms (if not part of the Premises), stairways, elevators, fire stairs, 
service areas, and elevator lobbies.  The Common Areas do not include any roof areas. 
The Common Areas are subject to the exclusive control and management of Landlord or 
Landlord's nominee.  Landlord makes no representations or warranties regarding the safety 
of the Common Areas.  Landlord has the right to restrict access to the Common Areas 
during nonbusiness hours.  Landlord may change the size, shape, location, and extent of 
the Common Areas without Tenant's consent. 

3. Parking.  Tenant has the nonexclusive right to park in unreserved spaces in 
the designated parking areas of the Property as shown in the attached Exhibit B.  Such 
parking is subject to reasonable rules and regulations for parking as may be established by 
Landlord and the number of spaces used by Tenant, its employees and invitees shall in no 
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event exceed 10.  Landlord reserves the right to designate employee parking areas and 
spaces. 

4. Term. 

(a) Initial Term. Unless earlier terminated pursuant to any provisions of 
this Lease, the term of this Lease shall be one (1) year and zero (0) months ("Initial Term"), 
beginning on December 1, 2021 ("Commencement Date") and ending on November 30, 
2022 ("Termination Date").  

(b) [Optional] Renewal Term.  Tenant shall have the option to renew this 
Lease ("Renewal Option") for four (4) additional twelve-month periods ("Renewal Term") 
on the same terms and conditions, provided Tenant gives Landlord written notice of intent 
to renew the Lease at least one hundred and twenty (120) days prior to the end of the Initial 
Term. The Initial Term and Renewal Term may be referred to collectively herein as the 
"Term." Tenant exercise of the Renewal Option shall be ineffective if Tenant is in default 
in any respects under this Lease as of the exercise of the Renewal Option or the 
commencement of the Renewal Term.  If the exercise of the Renewal Option is deemed 
ineffective, the Lease shall expire on the Termination Date of the Initial Term. 

(c) Delay in Possession. Landlord fails to deliver possession of the 
Premises to Tenant on or before the Lease Commencement Date, Landlord shall not be 
subject to any liability for its failure to do so. This failure shall not affect the validity of this 
Lease or the obligations of Tenant under it, but the Lease Term shall commence on the 
date on which Landlord delivers possession of the Premises to Tenant. 

5. Rent. 

(a) Rent. Beginning on the Commencement Date, Tenant shall pay 
$715.50 per month based upon $2.25 per square foot of the Premises ("Base Rent"). 

i. Adjustment of Base Rent. The amount charged per-square-foot 
shall be automatically increased each year on July 1, beginning July 1, 2023, by a 
percentage equal to the percentage increase in the most recent change in the Consumer 
Price Index (as measured by the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario CA, CPI-U, All items), 
released annually by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. In the event the Consumer Price 
Index decreases, no change in rent charged per-square-foot shall be made. If a substantial 
change is made in the Consumer Price Index, or its publication is discontinued or changed 
in such a way as to prevent calculations provided above, then the Consumer Price Index 
will be adjusted to the figure that would have been used had the manner of computing the 
Consumer Price Index in effect at the date of this Lease not been altered. If the Consumer 
Price Index (or a successor or substitute index) is not available, a reliable governmental or 
other nonpartisan publication evaluating the information used in determining the Consumer 
Price Index will be used. 

The Base Rent plus any adjustment pursuant to this Section 5(a)(i) collectively shall 
be referred to as the "Rent".  In the event that Landlord makes additional space available 
for Tenant's use and Tenant accepts such additional space, that space shall automatically 
be included in the Premises, as defined in Section 1 of this Lease, and the monthly Rent 
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shall be increased according to the price per square foot as indicated in this Section 5(a)(i). 

ii. Renewal Term Base Rent.  Should Tenant exercise the 
Renewal Option, monthly Base Rent for the Renewal Term shall be the Base Rent for the 
final month of the immediately preceding term.  The Rent shall continue to be adjusted as 
described in Section 5(a)(i), above. 

(b) Security Deposit.  Concurrent with the execution of this Lease, Tenant 
shall pay to Landlord an amount equal to two months' Base Rent as a security deposit to 
secure the performance and observation of all obligations and convents of Tenant in this 
Agreement.  Landlord may use, apply or retain all or any portion of said security deposit for 
the payment of any rent or other charge in default; to repair any damage to the Premises 
caused by Tenant, its agents, employees, customers, contractors or invitees; to clean the 
Premises upon the termination of Tenant's tenancy or to reimburse or compensate Landlord 
for any liability, loss, cost, expense (including attorneys' fees) or damage which Landlord 
may suffer or incur by reason of Tenant's breach or default of this Lease. If Landlord so 
uses or applies all or any portion of the security deposit, Tenant shall within 10 days after 
written demand therefor deposit monies with Landlord in an amount sufficient to restore 
said deposit to the full amount then required of Tenant hereunder. Landlord shall not be 
required to keep the security deposit separate from its general accounts and Tenant shall 
not be entitled to any interest or other increment earned thereon. If Tenant performs all of 
Tenant's obligations hereunder, the security deposit, or so much thereof as has not 
theretofore been applied by Landlord, shall be returned without payment of interest or other 
increment for its use to Tenant (or, at Landlord's option, to the last assignee, if any, of 
Tenant's interest hereunder) within 30 days after the expiration of the Term hereof. 

(c) Payment Procedures. Tenant shall remit its monthly rent in advance 
by no later than the first day of each month during the Term of this Lease to Landlord at the 
address stated herein. Monthly rent shall be prorated for any partial month. 

(d) Interest on Past Due Obligations. Except as otherwise expressly 
provided in this Lease, any amount due to Landlord that is not paid when due shall bear 
interest from the date due at 10%, or the maximum amount permitted by law. 

(e) Late Charges. Tenant acknowledges that late payment of Rent or any 
sums due under this Lease will cause Landlord to incur costs not contemplated herein, the 
exact amount of which will be extremely difficult to ascertain. Accordingly, if any sum due 
from Tenant is not received by Landlord ten (10) days after such amount is due, then without 
requirement for notice to Tenant, Tenant shall pay a late charge of ten percent (10%) of 
such overdue amount. The Parties agree that such late charge represents a fair and 
reasonable estimate of the costs Landlord will incur by reason of late payment. Acceptance 
of such late charge shall in no event constitute a waiver of Tenant's default, nor prevent 
Landlord from exercising any of the other rights and remedies granted in this Lease. In the 
event that a late charge is payable for three (3) consecutive installments of Rent, then Rent 
shall automatically become due and payable quarterly in advance, rather than monthly. 
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6. Permitted Use. 

(a) Use.  Tenant shall occupy and use the Property only for the purposes 
of professional services, and for no other use or purpose whatsoever without Landlord's 
prior written consent. 

(b) Compliance with Law and Landlord Rules and Regulations.  Tenant 
shall, at all times and at Tenant's expense, comply with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, rules, regulations, and orders, and all covenants and restrictions of record 
regulating the Property and Premises and Tenant's use of the Premises and Common 
Areas, including any rules and regulations prescribed by Landlord for the use of the 
Property and Common Areas.  Tenant shall not use nor permit the use of the Premises or 
Common Areas in any manner that will violate the same or disturb other property owners 
or tenants in the areas surrounding the Premises or Property, including any nuisance, waste 
or illegal act committed thereon. 

(c) Condition of Premises.  Tenant has examined the Premises, including 
any furniture, fixtures, and improvements contained within the Premises and agrees to take 
possession in an "as is" condition.  Tenant acknowledges and agrees that Landlord has 
made no representations, guarantees or warranties regarding the Premises, or its fitness 
for any particular purpose, or regarding the Property or any Common Areas or 
improvements thereon, nor has Landlord made representations, guarantees or warranties 
regarding whether the Premises, Property and Common Areas and improvements thereon 
comply with applicable laws, rules, regulations, orders, or any covenants or restrictions of 
record in effect at the Effective Date of this Lease.  Tenant assumes all responsibility 
regarding the compliance of the Premises for the purposes of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and the California Occupational Safety Health Act, the legal use and 
adaptability of the Premises and compliance with all other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, orders and covenants or record in effect during the Term of this Lease relating 
to the Premises except as otherwise specifically stated in this Lease. 

7. Hazardous Waste and Trash Disposal. Tenant shall not use, generate, store 
or dispose of any Hazardous Materials on the Premises, Property, or Common Areas, or 
permit the contamination of the Premises, Property, or Common Areas by Hazardous 
Materials. For the purpose of this section, "Hazardous Materials" shall include, without 
limitation, substances defined as "hazardous substances," "hazardous materials," "toxic 
substances," hazardous wastes," "extremely hazardous wastes" or "restricted hazardous 
wastes" or stated to be known to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity, under the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, 
42 U.S.C. sections 9601, et seq.; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. 
sections 1801, et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 
sections 6901, et seq.; the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. sections 1317, 
et seq.; sections 25115, 25117, 25122.7, 25140, 25249.5, 25249.8, 25281, 25316 or 25501 
of the California Health & Safety Code; or any substances so defined or stated in any of the 
regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to said laws as they may be 
amended from time to time. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Tenant 
agrees to comply promptly, and at Tenant's sole cost, with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, rules regulations, permits and orders governing the use, management, storage, 
handling, cleanup, removal, disposal and shipping of Hazardous Materials. Tenant shall 
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dispose of all trash and waste generated at the Premises in a trash container at a location 
designated by Landlord. Tenant may keep reasonable amounts of cleaning products, 
printer ink or toner and other chemicals necessary for common office equipment and/or in 
any permitted lunch or coffee rooms, consistent with the permitted use of the Premises. 

8. Tenant's Repair and Maintenance Obligations. 

(a) Obligations. Tenant shall, subject to Section 10 of this Lease, at all 
times during the Lease term keep the Premises in good order, condition and repair, and in 
compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and orders, including any such 
replacement required for this purpose unless otherwise set forth herein; shall provide all 
precautions for safety and protection of persons and property; and shall keep the Premises, 
as well as the Property and Common Areas, free from waste.  Tenant is responsible for all 
nonstructural maintenance, repair, and replacement. Such maintenance, repair and 
replacement obligations apply regardless of whether or not the need for such occurs as a 
result of Tenant's use, any prior use, the elements, or the age of the Property or Premises. 
In the event that during the Term, Tenant fails to maintain the Premises as required by this 
Section, Landlord shall give Tenant notice to do such acts as are reasonably required to so 
maintain the Premises and if Tenant fails to promptly commence such work and diligently 
prosecute it to completion, then Landlord shall have the right to do such acts and expend 
such funds at the expense of Tenant that are reasonably required to perform such work. 
Any amount so expended by Landlord shall be paid by Tenant promptly after demand with 
interest at ten percent (10%) per annum from the date of such work. Landlord shall have 
no liability to Tenant for any damage, inconvenience or interference with the use of the 
Premises by Tenant as a result of performing any such work. 

(b) Emergency Repairs, Waiver. Landlord also has the right, but not the 
obligation, to make emergency repairs and to enter the Premises at any time to do so.  To 
the extent permitted by law, Tenant waives any and all rights to make repairs at Landlord's 
expense under California Civil Code § 1942 allowing repairs by a tenant at the expense of 
landlord. 

(c) Common Areas. In the event that Tenant or its agents, employees, or 
invitees, damage the Common Areas, or violate any of Tenant's obligations or duties under 
this Lease with regard to the Common Areas, including but not limited to not keeping the 
Common Areas free of waste, Tenant shall be responsible for Landlord's reasonable costs 
associated with any required maintenance, repairs, or other actions to address the costs of 
Tenant's violations of its duties or obligations. 

(d) Waiver of Right to Make Repairs at Landlord's Expense. To the extent 
allowed by law, Tenant waives the right to make repairs at Landlord's expense under any 
law, including, but not limited to, Sections 1932, 1933, 1941, and 1942 of the California Civil 
Code. 

9. Surrender.  On the last day of the Term of this Lease, or on the date this 
Lease is earlier terminated, Tenant shall surrender the Premises to Landlord in the same 
or better condition as when received, ordinary wear and tear and damage by casualty 
excepted, clean and free of debris.  Tenant shall remove all trade fixtures, furnishings and 
equipment owned by Tenant and shall repair any damage to the Premises occasioned by 
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the installation or removal of Tenant's trade fixtures, furnishings and equipment.  If the wear 
and tear is caused in whole or in part by the failure to maintain, neglect, fault or omission 
of any duty by Tenant, it's agents, employees, or invitees, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as 
additional rent, the reasonable cost of such maintenance and repairs. Any damage caused 
to the Common Areas by Tenant shall be chargeable to Tenant. 

10. Landlord's Repair and Maintenance Obligations. 

(a) Common Area and Premises Maintenance. Landlord shall maintain 
the foundations, structure, exterior walls, and roof (excluding the interior ceiling) of the 
Common Area and the Premises at Landlord's cost, except to the extent such maintenance 
is necessitated by any act, negligence, or omission of Tenant or Tenant's agents, 
employees, or invitees. Any costs incurred by Landlord pursuant to this Section, including 
interest thereon, shall become due and payable to Landlord together with Tenant's next 
Rent installment. 

(b) Landlord's Right to Undertake Tenant's Obligations. If Tenant fails to 
perform any of Tenant's obligations under any paragraph of this Lease, Landlord may, at 
its option (but shall not be required to), enter upon the Premises after ten (10) days' prior 
written notice to Tenant (except in the case of an emergency, as determined by Landlord, 
in its sole discretion, in which case no notice shall be required), and perform such 
obligations on Tenant's behalf. Any costs incurred by Landlord pursuant to this Section, 
including interest thereon, shall become due and payable to Landlord together with Tenant's 
next Rent installment. 

11. Damage to Premises. 

(a) Insured Casualty.  If the Building and/or Property is damaged by fire or 
other perils covered by Landlord's extended coverage insurance, Landlord shall: 

i. In the event of more than 50% destruction, have 45 days 
thereafter in which to elect, at Landlord's sole option, to repair, reconstruct and restore the 
Premises, and, if Landlord elects to restore, Landlord shall have 270 days from the date of 
destruction in which to complete the restoration, in which event this Agreement shall remain 
in full force and effect.  If Landlord does not elect to restore the Premises, this Agreement 
shall be deemed to have terminated as of the date of the total destruction. 

ii. In the event of a partial destruction of the Building, to an extent 
not exceeding 49% of the full replacement cost thereof, if the damage thereto is such that 
the Building may be repaired, reconstructed or restored within a period of 90 days from the 
date of the happening of such casualty, and Landlord will receive insurance proceeds 
sufficient to cover the cost of such repairs, Landlord shall repair, reconstruct or restore and 
the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.  If one of the three conditions is not 
met, Landlord may terminate the Lease as of the date of destruction, or elect, in its sole 
discretion, to repair, reconstruct or restore. 

(b) Uninsured Casualty.  If the Building and/or Property is totally or partially 
destroyed from a peril not covered by Landlord's extended coverage insurance, Landlord 
shall have the right, but not the obligation, to restore the premises by giving notice to Tenant 
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within 45 days after the happening of such casualty.  Landlord may instead choose to 
terminate the Lease by giving Tenant 45 days' notice from the date of the casualty of 
Landlord's decision to terminate the Lease. 

(c) Release.  Upon any termination of this Lease under any of the 
provisions of this Section 11, the parties shall be released thereby without further obligation 
to the other from the date possession of the Premises is surrendered to Landlord except 
for items which have theretofore accrued and are then unpaid.  In those circumstances 
where Tenant has not been able to continue its then-existing use of the Premises due to 
the damage or destruction, and the Lease is terminated, possession will be deemed to have 
been surrendered as of the date of damage or destruction and any Rent or other sums paid 
by Tenant for any time thereafter shall be promptly refunded to it. 

(d) Force Majeure.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in 
this paragraph, should Landlord be delayed or prevented from repairing or restoring the 
damaged Premises within one year after the occurrence of such damage or destruction by 
reason of acts of God, war, governmental restrictions, inability to procure the necessary 
labor or materials, or other cause beyond the control of Landlord, Landlord shall be relieved 
of its obligation to make such repairs or restoration and Tenant shall be released from its 
obligations under this Agreement as of the end of said one‑year period. 

(e) Extent of Repair.  It is hereby understood that if Landlord is obligated 
to or elects to repair or restore as herein provided, Landlord shall be obligated to make 
repairs or restoration only of those portions of the Building and/or Property and the 
Premises which were originally provided at Landlord's expense, and the repair and 
restoration of items not provided at Landlord's expense shall be the obligation of Tenant. 

(f) Waiver.  The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1932, 
Subsection 2, and Section 1933, subsection 4, are hereby waived by Tenant. 

(g) Eminent Domain.  If the whole of the Premises, or such part thereof as 
shall substantially interfere with Tenant's use and occupancy thereof, shall be taken for any 
public or quasi-public purpose by any lawful power or authority by exercise of the right of 
appropriation, condemnation or eminent domain, or sold to prevent such taking, either party 
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement effective as of the date possession is 
required to be surrendered to said authority.  Tenant shall not assert any claim against 
Landlord or the taking authority for any compensation because of such taking, and Landlord 
shall be entitled to receive the entire amount of any award without deduction for any estate 
or interest of Tenant, provided Tenant may still seek an award for its personal property and 
fixtures as provided in the final sentence of this paragraph.  In the event the amount of 
property or the type of estate taken shall not substantially interfere with the conduct of 
Tenant's business, Landlord shall be entitled to the entire amount of the award without 
deduction for any estate or interest of Tenant, and Landlord at its option may terminate this 
Agreement.  If Landlord does not so elect, Landlord shall promptly proceed within 90 days 
to restore the Premises to substantially their same condition prior to such partial taking, and 
a proportionate allowance shall be made to Tenant for the Rent corresponding to the time 
during which, and to the part of the Premises of which, Tenant shall be so deprived on 
account of such taking and restoration.  Nothing contained in this Section 11 shall be 
deemed to give Landlord any interest in any award made to Tenant for the taking of 
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personal property and fixtures belonging to Tenant or for any Tenant improvements the 
installation of which was paid for by Tenant, and which Tenant has the right to remove. 

(h) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 11, 
Landlord shall not have any obligation whatsoever to repair, reconstruct or restore the 
Premises when the damage resulting from any casualty covered under this Section 11 
occurs during the last 6 months of the term of this Agreement or any Extended Term hereof. 

12. Alterations, Improvements and Additions. 

(a) Alterations, Consent Required. Tenant shall not make any alterations, 
improvements, or additions, including Utility Installations, or hang or paint any signs visible 
from the exterior of the Property, without Landlord's prior written consent. Tenant shall 
provide Landlord with plans and specifications of any proposed alteration, improvement, or 
addition, which Landlord shall approve or deny in Landlord's sole discretion. 

The term "Utility Installations" shall mean installation of carpeting, window 
coverings, air lines, power panels, electrical distribution systems, lighting fixtures, space 
heaters, air conditioning, plumbing, and structural changes. If Landlord authorizes any 
alterations, improvements, additions, or Utility Installations, all such improvements shall be 
Tenant's sole responsibility and shall be installed and removed at Tenant's sole cost and 
expense. Any alterations, improvements or additions must be made in accordance with all 
plans and specifications approved by Landlord, and pursuant to any and all applicable laws, 
rules, and regulations, including applicable governmental permits, building codes, and 
zoning codes. Landlord may require that Tenant use contractor(s) selected by Landlord. 
After completion of any alteration, improvement, or addition, Tenant shall provide Landlord 
with "as-built" plans and specifications. Upon the removal of any improvement, alteration, 
addition or Utility Installations, Tenant shall restore the Property to its prior condition. 
Landlord may require Tenant to provide Landlord, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, a lien 
and completion bond in an amount equal to one and one-half times the estimated cost of 
such improvements. Should Tenant make any alternations, improvements, additions or 
Utility Installations without the prior approval of Landlord, Landlord may require that Tenant 
immediately remove any or all of the same. 

(b) Timing of Work.  All such work done pursuant to this Section shall be 
done at such times and in such manner as Landlord may determine. 

(c) No Warranty. Neither Landlord's approval or supervision of any 
alterations, additions, or improvements or the use of any contractor or equipment, fixtures, 
or equipment selected by Landlord, shall be deemed a warranty as to the design, 
workmanship, or quality of materials or the compliance of the alterations, additions or 
improvements with any governmental requirements. 

(d) Ownership of Improvements.  All alterations, improvements, or 
additions upon the Premises, made by either party, shall, unless otherwise indicated by 
Landlord, become the property of Landlord, and shall remain upon and be surrendered with 
the Premises, as a part thereof, at the end of the Term hereof, except that Landlord may, 
by written notice to Tenant, require Tenant to remove the same installed by Tenant, and 
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Tenant shall repair any damage to the Premises arising from such removal, or at Landlord's 
option, pay to the Landlord the reasonable costs of such removal and repair. 

13. Utilities / Services. 

(a) Subject to any other provisions contained in this Lease and to any rules 
and regulations subsequently adopted by Landlord, Landlord, at its sole cost and expense, 
will provide for Tenant's use garbage bins (to be located outside the Premises) for Tenant's 
use, electricity, water and sewer, and heating, ventilating and air conditioning ("HVAC"), 
required in Landlord's reasonable judgment for the comfortable use and occupation of the 
Premises during the business hours of the property, which shall be 8:00 A.M. to 8:00 P.M. 
Monday through Friday, and 8:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. Saturdays.  No HVAC service will be 
provided on Sundays or holidays.  In addition, Landlord will provide janitorial services for 
the Common Areas, including any common restrooms.  Landlord will not provide janitorial 
services for the Premises, including any restrooms located within the Premises.  Landlord 
will, at Tenant's request, provide afterhours HVAC and lighting to the Premises, provided 
that Tenant pays Landlord a charge for such service as reasonably determined by Landlord. 
Tenant must at all times cooperate fully with Landlord and abide by all the rules and 
regulations that Landlord may prescribe for the proper functioning and protection of the 
HVAC system. 

(b) Tenant may not, without the prior written consent of Landlord, install 
any additional electric outlets or water pipes.  If Tenant requires excess electricity or any 
other resource in excess of what is customarily supplied for use in a professional office 
building, Tenant must first request the consent of Landlord, which Landlord may or may not 
provide in its sole discretion. In the event Landlord gives its consent, Landlord may require 
that a separate metering device be installed in the Premises and/or may apply an additional 
fee for the increased utility costs in connection therewith.  The cost associated with a 
separate metering device, including installation and increased use, are the responsibility of 
Tenant. 

(c) Landlord is not in default or liable for any damages directly or indirectly 
caused from interruption of utilities or services, and in no event shall such interruption of 
services constitute Landlord's default, entitle Tenant to terminate the Lease, or entitle 
Tenant to any abatement of rent.  Tenant shall cooperate with any efforts by Landlord to 
reduce and conserve energy and other resource consumption. 

(d) Tenant shall be solely responsible for providing all telephone, satellite, 
internet or other telecommunications services necessary for Tenant's use of the Premises. 
Any installation of cabling, satellite dishes or other equipment shall be subject to review and 
approval by Landlord pursuant to Section 12(a) and shall be undertaken at the sole cost 
and expense of Tenant. 

14. Release of Claim For Relocation Benefits. Tenant hereby acknowledges and 
agrees that Tenant has no claim or right to relocation benefits or compensation of any kind 
or nature upon termination of this Lease for any reason, even if such termination was made 
by the unilateral election of Landlord in its sole discretion. Tenant expressly waives any 
and all claims or rights to receive relocation benefits or compensation of any kind or nature. 
Tenant acknowledges that Landlord would not enter into this Lease but for this 
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acknowledgment and waiver by Tenant. During any period of repair or reconstruction by 
Landlord during the Term of this Lease that requires Tenant to vacate the Premises, 
Landlord shall be under no obligation to provide alternative space to Tenant, but Tenant 
shall be relieved of the obligation to pay rent during such time that Tenant is unable to utilize 
the Premises. Tenant shall vacate the Property within sixty (60) days' written notice to 
vacate for such purpose and shall be solely responsible for all costs of vacating from and 
relocating to reconstructed or newly constructed space, if any is available. 

15. Insurance 

(a) Workers Compensation Insurance. Tenant shall procure and maintain 
Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by the laws of the State of California. 

(b) Liability Insurance. For the Term of the Lease, Tenant shall obtain and 
keep in full force and effect general liability insurance, insuring Landlord and Tenant against 
any liability arising out of the ownership, use, occupancy or maintenance of the Premises 
and Property, and operation of Tenant's business at the Premises and all areas appurtenant 
thereto when used by Tenant. Such insurance shall be in an amount not less than 
$2,000,000 per occurrence and not less than $3,000,000 annual aggregate. The policy 
shall insure performance by Tenant of the indemnity provisions of this Lease. Such 
insurance shall not limit the liability of Tenant hereunder. Tenant shall provide Landlord a 
copy of this insurance policy upon execution of this Lease. 

(c) Property Insurance. 

i. Prior to Tenant's entry upon the Premises and for the Term of 
the Lease, Tenant shall obtain and keep in full force and effect a policy of insurance 
covering loss or damage to the Premises, in the amount of the full replacement value 
thereof, against all perils included within the classification of fire, extended coverage, 
vandalism, malicious mischief, commonly known as "broadform coverage." Tenant shall 
provide Landlord a copy of this insurance policy upon execution of this Lease. 

ii. Tenant shall also insure its fixtures, equipment and tenant 
improvements on the Premises at its sole cost and expense. 

iii. The limits of said insurance shall not, however, limit the liability 
of Tenant hereunder. 

iv. Any proceeds from such insurance shall be used to repair or 
replace the insured property. 

(d) Restrictions; Endorsements. Tenant shall not do or permit to be done 
anything which shall invalidate the insurance policies during the Term of this Lease. All 
policies of insurance shall be endorsed to: (1) name Landlord (and at Landlord's option, 
any additional parties designated by Landlord) as an additional insured; (2) provide that 
such insurance is primary to any policy of Landlord, which shall not be called upon to 
contribute in any way; and (3) provide that the policy shall not be cancelled, terminated or 
modified without first providing thirty (30) days' prior written notice to Landlord. All policies 
shall be issued by insurance companies acceptable to Landlord and licensed to do business 
in California. 
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(e) Certificates of Insurance. Prior to taking possession of the Premises, 
and at any other time upon Landlord's request, Tenant shall provide Landlord with copies 
of all policies or certificates of insurance for all insurance policies required by this Lease. 

16. Indemnification, Release, Liens. 

(a) Indemnification.  Tenant shall indemnify, defend, reimburse and hold 
harmless Landlord from and against any and all demands, claims, losses, damages or 
liabilities of any kind or nature, including claims for damage to property or persons, including 
wrongful death ("Claim"), arising from or in connection with any act or omission of Tenant, 
including Tenant's active and passive negligence or Tenant's use of the Premises, Common 
Areas, or Property under this Lease, including, without limitation, any activity, work or things 
done, permitted or suffered by Tenant in or about the Premises or elsewhere on the 
Property and any breach or default by Tenant of this Lease.  If any action or proceeding is 
brought against Landlord by reason of any such Claim, Tenant's obligation to defend the 
same shall be done with counsel approved in advance by Landlord. 

(b) Release.  Tenant hereby agrees that Landlord shall not be liable for, 
and hereby waives and releases Landlord from, any injury to Tenant's business or any loss 
of income therefrom or for damage to the goods, wares, merchandise or other property of 
Tenant, Tenant's employees, contractors, agents, invitees, guests, or any other person on 
the Premises, Common Areas, or Property, nor shall Landlord be liable for injury to the 
person of Tenant, Tenant's employees, agents, contractors, guests or invitees caused by 
any reason whatsoever, including without limitation, by fire, steam, electricity, gas, water, 
rain, the breakage, leakage, obstruction or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, 
appliances, plumbing, air conditioning or lighting fixtures on the Premises or Property, or 
from any other cause or condition arising upon the Premises or upon other portions of the 
Property which the Premises are a part, or from other sources or places and regardless of 
whether the cause of such damage or injury or the means of repairing the same is 
inaccessible to Tenant except to the extent such injury or loss is caused by Landlord's sole 
gross negligence or willful misconduct. Landlord shall not be liable for any damages arising 
from any act or neglect of any other Tenants or possessors, if any, of the Premises or 
Property. 

(c) Liens. 

i. Tenant shall keep the Premises free from any liens arising out 
of any work performed, materials furnished or obligations incurred by Tenant.  In the event 
that Tenant shall not within ten (10) days following the imposition of any such lien, cause 
the same to be released of record by payment or posting of a proper bond, Landlord shall 
have, in addition to all other remedies provided herein and at law or in equity, the right to 
cause same to be released by such means as it shall deem proper including, but not limited 
to, payment (from the security deposit referred to in Section 5(b) above or otherwise) of the 
claim giving rise to such lien.  All such sums paid by Landlord and all expenses incurred by 
Landlord in connection therewith shall be considered additional Rent and shall be payable 
to Landlord by Tenant on demand and with interest at the interest rate in Section 5(d). 

ii. Landlord may require, at Landlord's sole option, that Tenant 
cause to be provided to Landlord, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, a completion bond 
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acceptable to Landlord with respect to any improvements, additions, or alterations to the 
Premises.  Landlord shall have the right at all times to post on the Premises any notices 
permitted or required by law, or which Landlord shall deem proper, for the protection of 
Landlord, the Premises, and any other party having an interest therein from mechanics' and 
materialmen's liens, and Tenant shall give Landlord at least fifteen (15) business days' prior 
notice of commencement of any work on the Premises. 

17. Assignment and Subletting. 

(a) Except as otherwise provided below, Tenant shall not convey, assign, 
transfer, mortgage, pledge, sublet or encumber any interest in the Premises during the 
Term of this Lease, nor allow any other person (the employees, agents, servants and 
invitees of Tenant excepted) to occupy or use the Premises, or any portion thereof, without 
Landlord's prior written consent, which may be refused in Landlord's reasonable discretion. 
Any attempted conveyance, assignment, transfer, mortgage, pledge, sublet, or 
encumbrance shall be void where such consent has not been obtained, and the original 
Tenant shall remain responsible for any unpaid rents, fines, fees, or other liabilities arising 
from or related to the Premises. Any such assignment or subletting without advance written 
consent of Landlord shall be void, and shall, at the option of the Landlord, constitute a 
default under the terms of this Lease. 

i. Conditions of Landlord's Consent. Without limiting the other 
instances in which it may be reasonable for Landlord to withhold Landlord's consent to an 
assignment or subletting, Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that it shall be reasonable for 
Landlord to withhold Landlord's consent in the following instances: if the proposed assignee 
does not agree to be bound by and assume the obligations of Tenant under this Lease in 
form and substance satisfactory to Landlord; the use of the Premises by such proposed 
assignee or subtenant would not be a Permitted Use or would violate any exclusivity or 
other arrangement which Landlord has with any other tenant or occupant or any law or 
would increase the occupancy burden of the Building or Project, or would otherwise result 
in an undesirable tenant mix for the Project as determined by Landlord in its sole discretion; 
the proposed assignee or subtenant is not of sound financial condition as determined by 
Landlord in Landlord's sole discretion; the proposed assignee or subtenant does not have 
a good reputation as a tenant of property or a good business reputation; the proposed 
assignee or subtenant is a person with whom Landlord is negotiating to lease space in the 
Project or is a present tenant of the Project; the assignment or subletting would entail any 
Alterations which would lessen the value of the leasehold improvements in the Premises or 
use of any Hazardous Materials or other noxious use or use which may disturb other tenants 
of the Project; or Tenant is in default of any obligation of Tenant under this Lease, or Tenant 
has defaulted under this Lease on two (2) or more occasions during any twelve (12) months 
preceding the date that Tenant shall request consent. Failure by or refusal of Landlord to 
consent to a proposed assignee or subtenant shall not cause a termination of this Lease. 
Upon a termination under Section 17(e), Landlord may lease the Premises to any party, 
including parties with whom Tenant has negotiated an assignment or sublease, without 
incurring any liability to Tenant. At the option of Landlord, a surrender and termination of 
this Lease shall operate as an assignment to Landlord of some or all subleases or 
subtenancies. Landlord shall exercise this option by giving notice of that assignment to 
such subtenants on or before the effective date of the surrender and termination. 
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(b) Bonus Rent. Tenant shall pay to Landlord as Additional Rent under 
the Lease 90% ("Landlord's Share") of the Profit (defined below) on such transaction as 
and when received by Tenant, unless Landlord gives written notice to Tenant and the 
assignee or subtenant that Landlord's Share shall be paid by the assignee or subtenant to 
Landlord directly.  Landlord's Share of the Profit shall be in addition to any Percentage Rent 
which may be applicable to the assignee or subtenant. The "Profit" means (A) all amounts 
paid to Tenant for such assignment or sublease, including "key" money, monthly rent in 
excess of the monthly rent payable under the Lease, and all fees and other consideration 
paid for the assignment or sublease, including fees under any collateral agreements, less 
(B) real estate broker's commissions and costs of construction of tenant improvements 
required under such assignment or sublease directly incurred by Tenant for such 
assignment or sublease.  Tenant is entitled to recover such costs and expenses before 
Tenant is obligated to pay Landlord's Share to Landlord.  The Profit in the case of a 
sublease of less than all the Property is the rent allocable to the subleased space as a 
percentage on a square footage basis.  Tenant shall provide Landlord a written statement 
certifying all amounts to be paid from any assignment or sublease of the Premises within 
thirty (30) days after the transaction documentation is signed, and Landlord may inspect 
Tenant's books and records to verify the accuracy of such statement.  On written request, 
Tenant shall promptly furnish to Landlord copies of all the transaction documentation, all of 
which shall be certified by Tenant to be complete, true and correct.  Landlord's receipt of 
Landlord's Share shall not be a consent to any further assignment or subletting.  The breach 
of Tenant's obligation under this Section 17(b) shall be a material default of the Lease. 

(c) Liability. No assignment or subletting by Tenant, permitted or 
otherwise, shall relieve Tenant of any obligation under this Lease or any guarantor of this 
Lease of any liability under its guaranty or alter the primary liability of the Tenant named 
herein for the payment of Rent or for the performance of any other obligations to be 
performed by Tenant. Landlord may collect rent or other amounts or any portion thereof 
from any assignee, subtenant, or other occupant of the Premises, permitted or otherwise, 
and apply the net rent collected to the Rent payable hereunder, but no such collection shall 
be deemed to be a waiver of this Section 17(c), or the acceptance of the assignee, 
subtenant or occupant as tenant, or a release of Tenant from the further performance by 
Tenant of the obligations of Tenant under this Lease or of any guarantor. Any assignment 
or subletting which conflicts with the provisions hereof shall be void. 

(d) Any dissolution, merger, consolidation, or other reorganization of 
Tenant or sale which results in a change of controlling persons shall be deemed an 
assignment of this Lease. Tenant may assign this Lease to a successor in interest upon 
the sale or other transfer of substantially all of the equity or assets of Tenant, provided 
Tenant first obtains Landlord's written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld 
as long as the permitted use of the Premises does not change and the assignee of this 
Lease provides financial statements that demonstrate its ability to satisfy the obligations of 
Tenant, and provided further Tenant pays to Landlord a lease transfer fee equal to a flat 
amount of $5,000 ("Transfer Fee").  The Transfer Fee shall not apply to a transfer of this 
Lease upon the transfer of a controlling interest in Tenant's business to a member of the 
immediate family of such controlling person, or to a transfer of the controlling interest to an 
inter vivos trust in which such controlling person is the trustee of the trust. 

(e) Landlord's Recapture Right. 
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i. Despite any other provision of this Section 17, Landlord has the 
option, by written notice to Tenant ("Recapture Notice") within 30 days after receiving any 
request for consent to an assignment or sublease, to recapture the Premises or portion 
thereof which are the subject of the request (the "Subject Space") by terminating this Lease 
for the Subject Space or taking an assignment or a sublease of the Subject Space from 
Tenant.  A timely Recapture Notice terminates this Lease for the Subject Space for the 
same term as proposed in Tenant's request for consent or the remainder of the term, at 
Landlord's option, effective as of the date specified in the Transfer Notice.  If Landlord 
declines or fails timely to deliver a Recapture Notice, Landlord shall have no further right 
under this Section 17(e)(i) to the Subject Space unless it becomes available again after 
Transfer by Tenant. 

ii. Consequences of Recapture.  To determine the new Minimum 
Rent under this Lease if Landlord recaptures the Subject Space, the original Minimum Rent 
under the Lease shall be multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the Rentable 
Square Feet of the Premises retained by Tenant after Landlord's recapture and the 
denominator of which is the total Rentable Square Feet of the Premises before Landlord's 
recapture.  Tenant's Share shall be reduced to reflect Tenant's proportionate share based 
on the Rentable Square Feet of the Premises retained by Tenant after Landlord's recapture. 
This Lease as so amended shall continue thereafter in full force and effect. Either party 
may require written confirmation of the amendments to this Lease necessitated by 
Landlord's recapture of the Subject Space.  If Landlord recaptures the Subject Space, 
Landlord shall, at Landlord's sole expense, construct any partitions required to segregate 
the Subject Space from the remaining Premises retained by Tenant.  Tenant shall, however, 
pay for painting, covering or otherwise decorating the surfaces of the partitions facing the 
remaining Premises retained by Tenant. 

18. Defaults and Remedies. 

(a) Defaults.  In addition to those items already designated to be a breach 
or default of this Lease elsewhere in the Lease, the occurrence of any of the following 
events shall be a material breach of this Lease and shall constitute an event of default: 

i. Abandonment, vacation, or surrender of the Premises by 
Tenant without Landlord's prior written consent (failure to occupy and/or operate the 
Premises for ten (10) consecutive days shall be deemed an abandonment and vacation, 
unless at least ten (10) days before failing to occupy or operate the Premises Tenant gives 
Landlord written notice that Tenant intends to continue using the Premises and will continue 
maintaining the Premises while it is vacant, or the dispossession of Tenant from the 
Premises (other than by Landlord by process of law or otherwise). 

ii. The failure by Tenant to make any payment of Rent or any 
reimbursement or payment required to be made by Tenant pursuant to this Lease, as and 
when due, where such failure shall continue for a period of three (3) days after written notice 
thereof from Landlord to Tenant. 

iii. The failure by Tenant to observe or perform any of the 
covenants, conditions or provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Tenant, 
if the failure has continued for a period of ten (10) days after Landlord demands in writing 
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that Tenant cure the failure, provided however, that if the nature of Tenant's default is such 
that more than ten (10) days are reasonably required for its cure, in Landlord's sole 
discretion, Tenant shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant commenced such cure 
within said 10-day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to completion to 
the satisfaction of Landlord, but in no event more than thirty (30) days after such notice. 

iv. The making by Tenant of any general arrangement or 
assignment for the benefit of any creditor, Tenant becoming a "debtor" as defined in 
11 U.S.C. 101; the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially 
all of Tenant's assets or of Tenant's interest in this Lease, where possession is not restored 
to Tenant within 30 days; or the attachment, execution or other judicial seizure of 
substantially all of Tenant's assets located at the Premises or of Tenant's interest in this 
Lease, where such seizure is not discharged within thirty (30) days. 

v. Any financial statement or any representation given to Landlord 
by Tenant, or any assignee, subtenant, other transferee or successor of Tenant or any 
guarantor of this Lease, that proves to be materially false or misleading. 

(b) Remedies.  In the event of any such material breach or default by 
Tenant, Landlord may at any time thereafter, with or without notice or demand, and without 
limiting Landlord in the exercise of any right or remedy which Landlord may have by reason 
of such default or breach, do any of the following: 

i. Terminate the Lease on thirty (30) days' written notice to 
Tenant, in which case Tenant shall immediately surrender possession of the Premises to 
Landlord on the termination date specified by Landlord. In such event, Landlord shall be 
entitled to recover from Tenant all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenant's 
default including, but not limited to: 

(1) the cost of recovering possession of the Premises, 
including all attorneys' fees and court costs incurred, if any; 

(2) the worth at the time of award of any unpaid Rent which 
would have been earned at the time of such termination; 

(3) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the 
unpaid rent which would have been earned after termination until the 
time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that Tenant 
proves could have been reasonably avoided; 

(4) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the 
unpaid Rent for the balance of the Term after the time of award 
exceeds the amount of such rental loss that Tenant proves could be 
reasonably avoided; 

(5) any other amount necessary to compensate Landlord for 
all the detriment proximately caused by Tenant's failure to perform its 
obligation under this Lease or which in the ordinary course of things 
would be likely to result therefrom; 
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(6) the expenses of reletting, including necessary renovation 
and alteration of the Premises, reasonable attorneys' fees, and any 
real estate commission actually paid in connection with such reletting; 
and 

(7) that portion of the leasing commission, if any, paid by 
Landlord for the unexpired Term of this Lease. 

ii. Maintain Tenant's right to possession in which case this Lease 
shall continue in effect whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned or vacated the 
Property. In such event, Landlord shall be entitled to enforce all of Landlord's rights and 
remedies under this Lease, including the right to recover the rent as it becomes due 
hereunder. 

iii. Pursue any other remedy available to Landlord at law or in 
equity. 

(c) If at any time during the Lease Term Tenant fails, refuses, or neglects 
to do any of the things provided to be done by Tenant, Landlord may, after notice (except 
in the event of emergency), do same, but at the expense and for the account of Tenant. 

(d) Default by Landlord. Landlord shall not be in default of this Lease 
unless Landlord fails to perform an obligation required of Landlord within a reasonable time, 
but in no event less than 30 days after written notice by Tenant to Landlord and to the holder 
of any mortgage or deed of trust covering the Premises whose name and address shall 
have theretofore been furnished to Tenant in writing, specifying wherein Landlord has failed 
to perform such obligation; provided, however, that if the nature of Landlord's obligation is 
such that more than 30 days is reasonably required for its performance, then Landlord shall 
not be in default if Landlord commences performance within such 30‑day period and 
thereafter diligently prosecutes the same. 

19. Estoppel Certificate. Within ten (10) days after any written request which 
Landlord may make from time to time, Tenant shall execute and deliver to Landlord a 
certificate together with such financial information relating to Tenant or any guarantor that 
Landlord or any prospective purchaser or lender may reasonably request. Landlord shall 
have the right to amend or otherwise supplement any certificate to include such information 
and provisions as may be reasonably requested by any existing or prospective lender or by 
any prospective purchaser. Landlord and Tenant intend that any certificate may be relied 
upon by any existing or prospective lender or by any prospective purchaser. 

20. Possessory Interest Tax. Tenant hereby recognizes that this Lease may 
create a possessory interest subject to property taxation, and that Tenant may be subject 
to the payment of property taxes levied on such interest. 

21. Severability. If any portion of this Lease is ruled by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

22. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Lease contains all agreements of the 
Parties with respect to the Property. No prior agreement or understanding pertaining to any 
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such matter shall be effective, whether oral or in writing. This Lease may only be modified 
in writing, signed by the Parties. 

23. Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Lease shall 
be in writing and given by personal delivery or by first-class mail to the address and person 
below. Either Party may, by notice to the other, specify a different address for notice 
purposes. Notice given by personal delivery shall be deemed received upon personal 
delivery.  Notice given by mail shall be deemed received three (3) days after deposit in the 
U.S. Mail. 

Landlord: Lake Arrowhead Community Services District 
P.O. Box 700 
Lake Arrowhead, CA  92352 

Attention: Catherine Cerri, General Manager 
ccerri@lakearrowheadcsd.com 

Tenant: Arrowhead Woods Architectural Committee 
P.O. Box 2026 
Lake Arrowhead, CA 92352 

Attention: Stacey Lippert 
info@awac.biz 

24. Waivers.  The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Lease by 
Landlord shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any future breach of that same provision or 
of any other provision of this Lease. Landlord's consent to, or approval of, any act shall not 
be deemed to render unnecessary the obtaining of Landlord's consent to or approval of any 
subsequent act by Tenant. The acceptance of rent by Landlord shall not be deemed to be 
a waiver of any preceding breach by Tenant of any provision of this Lease, other than the 
failure of Tenant to pay the particular rent so accepted, regardless of Landlord's knowledge 
of such preceding breach at the time of acceptance of such rent. 

25. Holding Over. Tenant has no right to retain possession of the Premises or 
any part thereof beyond the expiration or termination of this Lease. If Tenant remains in 
possession of the Premises or any part of the Property after the expiration or termination of 
the Term of this Lease, such occupancy shall be a tenancy from month to month subject to 
all the provisions of this Lease. During any holdover period, the monthly Base Rent shall 
be 120% of the Base Rent that was in effect upon the expiration or termination of the Lease. 
If a third party has right to possession of the Premises during the holdover period, Tenant 
shall indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from any claims, costs, or loses related to such 
third party's right to possession. 

26. Cumulative Remedies. No remedy or election hereunder shall be deemed 
exclusive but shall, wherever possible, be cumulative with all other remedies available at 
law or in equity. 
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27. Binding Effect; Choice of Law. This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the Parties, their personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. 
This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California. Venue shall be in San Bernardino County. 

28. Attorneys' Fees and Costs. If either Party brings an action to enforce the 
Terms of this Lease or declare the rights of the Parties under this Lease, the prevailing 
Party shall be entitled to recover all costs and expenses incurred in such action, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees as fixed by the court or arbitrators. 

29. Right to Enter Property. Landlord and Landlord's agents shall have the right 
to enter the Premises at reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the same, showing 
the same to prospective purchasers, lenders, or Tenants, and making such alterations, 
repairs, improvements or additions to the Premises or Property as Landlord may deem 
necessary or desirable. Landlord may, at any time, place on or about the Property any "For 
Sale" of "For Lease" signs. 

30. Nondiscrimination. Tenant covenants by and for itself, its heirs, executors, 
administrators, and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through it, and this Lease is 
made and accepted upon and subject to the requirement that there shall be no 
discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of persons, on account of race, 
color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, national origin, or ancestry, in the use, occupancy, 
tenure, or enjoyment of the Premises, nor shall the Tenant itself, or any person claiming 
under or through it, establish or permit any such practice or practices of discrimination or 
segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use, or occupancy, of 
employees, contractors or vendors in the Premises. 

31. Quiet Possession. Upon Tenant's payment of the rent for the Premises and 
observing and performing all of the covenants, conditions and provisions to be observed 
and performed under this Lease, Tenant shall be entitled to have quiet possession of the 
Premises for the Term of this Lease subject to all of the provisions of this Lease. 

32. Compliance with Landlord's Rules for Use of Property. Tenant agrees that it 
will abide by, keep and observe all reasonable rules and regulations which Landlord may 
make from time to time for the management of the Property, Premises, and Common Areas, 
including, without limitation, the delivery of supplies, the parking of vehicles and the 
preservation of good order.  Any violation of any such rules and regulations shall be deemed 
a material breach of this Lease. In the event of a conflict between such rules and 
regulations and the terms of this Lease, the terms of this Lease shall prevail. 

33. Signs.  Tenant shall not, without the prior written consent of Landlord, place, 
construct or maintain any sign, advertisement, awning, banner or other decoration on or 
visible from, or otherwise use the exterior of the Premises (including, but not limited to, the 
outer surfaces of the exterior walls and doors of the Premises), any terraces, the roof of the 
building, and the public and Common Areas.  All door signs on the corridor doors of the 
Premises and Property, which lead to the Common Areas, must be installed by Landlord at 
Tenant's expense and cost, and must conform to the standards of the Property as to size, 
style, placement, color and number of included names, and other matters as reasonably 
determined by Landlord.  In the event of the violation of the foregoing by Tenant, Landlord 
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may remove the same without any liability, and may charge the expense incurred with 
respect to such removal to Tenant. 

34. Subordination; Attornment. 

(a) This Lease, at Landlord's option, shall be subject and subordinate to 
any ground lease, mortgage, deed of trust, or any other hypothecation or security device 
now or hereafter placed upon the real property of which the Premises is a part and to any 
and all advances made on the security thereof and to all renewals, modifications, 
consolidations, replacements and extensions thereof.  Notwithstanding such subordination, 
Landlord shall use diligent efforts to obtain from the party holding any such instrument a 
written agreement providing that Tenant's possession of the Premises shall not be disturbed 
if Tenant is not in default and so long as Tenant shall pay the rent and observe and perform 
all of the provisions of this Lease, unless this Lease is otherwise terminated pursuant to its 
terms.  If any mortgagee, trustee or ground landlord shall elect to have this Lease be prior 
to the lien of its mortgage, deed of trust or ground lease, and shall give written notice thereof 
to Tenant, this Lease shall be deemed prior to such mortgage, deed of trust or ground lease 
notwithstanding the relative dates of the documentation or the date of recording thereof. 

(b) Tenant agrees to attorn to a mortgagee, trustee, ground landlord or 
other party who acquires ownership of the Premises by reason of a foreclosure of a 
mortgage, deed of trust or other hypothecation or security device.  In the event of such 
foreclosure, such new owner shall not (i) be liable for any act or omission of any prior 
landlord or for events occurring prior to its acquiring ownership, (ii) be subject to any offsets 
or defenses which Tenant may have against any prior landlord, or (iii) be bound by 
prepayment of more than one month's rent. 

(c) The agreements in this Section 34 shall be effective without the 
execution of any further documents, provided, however, that upon written request from 
Landlord, Tenant agrees to execute any documents reasonably required to separately 
document an attornment, a subordination or to make this Lease prior to the lien of any 
mortgage, deed of trust or ground lease, as the case may be, as set forth in this Section 34.  
Tenant's failure to execute such documents within 10 days after written demand shall 
constitute a material default by Tenant hereunder without further notice to Tenant. 

35. Release of Landlord After Sale.  In the event of a sale or conveyance by the 
Landlord of the Premises, and the assumption of this Lease by the successor in interest to 
Landlord, Landlord shall be released, only with respect to such obligations of Landlord 
hereunder accruing after such sale or conveyance and assumption, from any future liability 
based upon any of the covenants or conditions, expressed or implied, in favor of Tenant, 
and, in such event, Tenant agrees to look solely to the responsibility of the successor in 
interest of Landlord in and to this Lease.  Nothing in this Section 35 shall be construed as 
a limitation of Tenant's rights and interest in the Premises, and any sale or conveyance of 
the Premises shall be subject to this Lease and Tenant's rights and interests hereunder. 

36. Miscellaneous Rules. 

(a) No sidewalks, entrance, passages, courts, elevators, vestibules, 
stairways, corridors or halls shall be obstructed or encumbered by Tenant or used for any 
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purpose other than ingress and egress to and from the Premises or the building on the 
Property. 

(b) No awning or other projection shall be attached to the outside walls or 
windows of the building on the Property without the written consent of Landlord.  No 
curtains, blinds, shades, drapes or screens shall be attached to or hung in, or used in 
connection with any window or door of the Premises, without the prior written consent of 
Landlord.  Such awnings, projections, curtains, blinds, shades, drapes, screens and other 
fixtures must be of a quality, type, design, color, material and general appearance approved 
by the Landlord, and shall be attached in the manner approved by Landlord.  All electrical 
fixtures hung in offices or spaces along the perimeter of the Premises must be of a quality, 
type, design, bulb color, size and general appearance approved by Landlord and must be 
installed by Landlord at Tenant's cost. 

(c) No animal or bird of any kind is allowed in or to be kept in or around 
the Premises and Property. 

(d) No articles shall be put in front of or affixed to any part of the exterior 
of the building on the Property, no placed in public portions thereof without the prior written 
consent of Landlord. 

(e) No additional locks, bolts or mail slots of any kind shall be placed upon 
any of the doors or windows by Tenant, nor shall any change be made in existing locks or 
the mechanism thereof.  Tenant must, upon termination of the Lease, restore to Landlord 
all keys of stores, offices, restrooms, either furnished to, or otherwise procured by Tenant, 
and in the event of loss of any keys so furnished, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the cost 
thereof.  

37. No Third-Party Beneficiaries; No Other Relationship.  There are no intended 
or incidental third-party beneficiaries of this Lease. This Lease is not intended to create 
any joint venture, partnership, association, or other relationship between the Parties except 
for that of Landlord and Tenant, nor shall this Lease be construed to authorize either to act 
as agent for the other. 

38. Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute one and the 
same instrument and a fully executed Lease. 

39. Authority to Execute. The individuals executing this Lease on behalf of each 
Party represent and warrant that they are fully authorized and legally capable of executing 
this Lease on behalf of that respective Party, and binding that Party thereto. 

40. Time of Essence. Time is expressly declared to be of the essence of this 
Lease. 

41. Recording.  This Lease, or a memorandum of this Lease, shall not be 
recorded without the written consent of Landlord. 
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42. Governing Law. This Lease, and all matters relating to this Lease, shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of California, without application of conflicts of laws 
provisions or principles. Venue shall be in the County of San Bernardino. 

43. Incorporation. All exhibits and recitals are incorporated into this Lease. 

44. Successors and Assigns. This Lease shall be binding on each Party's 
successors and assigns. 

45. Termination; Merger. The voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by 
Tenant or a mutual cancellation thereof, or a termination by Landlord shall, at the option of 
Landlord, terminate all or any existing subtenancies or may, at the option of Landlord, 
operate as an assignment to Landlord of any or all of such subtenancies. Unless Landlord, 
by written notice to the holder of any existing subtenancy, makes a written election to the 
contrary within 30 days following the surrender, cancellation or termination of this Lease, 
Landlord shall be deemed to have elected to terminate such subtenancies. 

46. Severability. Should any provision in the Agreement be held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect. 

47. Principles of Interpretation. No inference in favor of or against any party shall 
be drawn from the fact that such party has drafted any part of this Lease. The parties have 
both participated substantially in its negotiation, drafting, and revision, with advice from 
counsel and other advisers. All headings are for convenience only. 

[Signatures to Lease Agreement on Next Page] 
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Signature Page to Lease Agreement 

The Parties hereto have executed this lease on the date stated below: 

Dated: ______________ Tenant 

By: 
Its: 

Dated: _______________ Lake Arrowhead Community 
Services District 

General Manager 
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EXHIBIT A 
to 

Lease Agreement 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
Portion of Suite 103 as highlighted in yellow below. 
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EXHIBIT B 
to 

Lease Agreement 

PARKING AREAS OF PROPERTY 
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	November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Agenda
	1 Consider Reaffirming Resolution No. 2021-11 and Authorizing  Virtual Board and Committee Meetings Pursuant to AB 361. 

	2. Draft September 28, 2021 Board Meeting  Minutes
	3. Consider Accepting Blue Jay Deck Improvements Project #217 as 
 	Complete.


	4. Consider Accepting the Manhole Inflow Reduction 2021 Project 
 	#225 as Complete.

	5. Consider Approving Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Investment Policy.
	6. Consider Adopting Resolution No. 2021-12 Authorizing and  
Directing the General Manager to Sign and File a Financial Assistance Application for a Financing Agreement for the State Water Resource Control Board for Planning, Design and Construction of the Rimforest Planning Project. 
 

	7.a District Engineer’s Report – Capital Improvement Program 
Update Third Quarter 2021 

	7. b Field Operations Manager’s Third Quarter Report
	7.c Finance Manager’s Fiscal Year 2021-22 Financial Statements and Cash and Investment Report for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2021
	7. d Human Resources Manager’s Third Quarter Report
	7.e Field Operations Managers Report
	8. General Manager's Report
	9. Consider Accepting and Filing of the Fiscal Year 2020-21  
   Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

	10. Consider Approving Purchase of 2-Way Radio Equipment 
 	Procurement Project No. J103.

	11. Consider Approving a Contract to Conduct a Compensation Study.  
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	LAKE ARROWHEAD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	MEMORANDUM
	DATE:  NOVEMBER 9, 2021
	TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Lake Arrowhead Community Services District
	A.  RECOMMENDATION
	B.  REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION
	C.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	D.    FISCAL IMPACT
	E.   ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
	F.   ATTACHMENTS
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	LEASE AGREEMENT
	RECITALS
	LEASE
	1. Premises.  Landlord leases to Tenant, and Tenant leases from Landlord the specific portion of the Property described in detail in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, consisting of 318 rentable square feet of interior off...
	2. Common Areas.  Tenant shall have the nonexclusive right to use in common with Landlord and other Tenants, subject to all rules and regulations as prescribed by Landlord, the Common Areas on the Property.  The term "Common Areas" as used in this Lea...
	3. Parking.  Tenant has the nonexclusive right to park in unreserved spaces in the designated parking areas of the Property as shown in the attached Exhibit B.  Such parking is subject to reasonable rules and regulations for parking as may be establis...
	4. Term.
	(a) Initial Term.  Unless earlier terminated pursuant to any provisions of this Lease, the term of this Lease shall be one (1) year and zero (0) months ("Initial Term"), beginning on December 1, 2021 ("Commencement Date") and ending on November 30, 20...
	(b) [Optional] Renewal Term.  Tenant shall have the option to renew this Lease ("Renewal Option") for four (4) additional twelve-month periods ("Renewal Term") on the same terms and conditions, provided Tenant gives Landlord written notice of intent t...
	(c) Delay in Possession.  Landlord fails to deliver possession of the Premises to Tenant on or before the Lease Commencement Date, Landlord shall not be subject to any liability for its failure to do so.  This failure shall not affect the validity of ...

	5. Rent.
	(a) Rent.  Beginning on the Commencement Date, Tenant shall pay $715.50 per month based upon $2.25 per square foot of the Premises ("Base Rent").
	i. Adjustment of Base Rent.  The amount charged per-square-foot shall be automatically increased each year on July 1, beginning July 1, 2023, by a percentage equal to the percentage increase in the most recent change in the Consumer Price Index (as me...
	ii. Renewal Term Base Rent.  Should Tenant exercise the Renewal Option, monthly Base Rent for the Renewal Term shall be the Base Rent for the final month of the immediately preceding term.  The Rent shall continue to be adjusted as described in Sectio...

	(b) Security Deposit.  Concurrent with the execution of this Lease, Tenant shall pay to Landlord an amount equal to two months' Base Rent as a security deposit to secure the performance and observation of all obligations and convents of Tenant in this...
	(c) Payment Procedures.  Tenant shall remit its monthly rent in advance by no later than the first day of each month during the Term of this Lease to Landlord at the address stated herein.  Monthly rent shall be prorated for any partial month.
	(d) Interest on Past Due Obligations.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease, any amount due to Landlord that is not paid when due shall bear interest from the date due at 10%, or the maximum amount permitted by law.
	(e) Late Charges.  Tenant acknowledges that late payment of Rent or any sums due under this Lease will cause Landlord to incur costs not contemplated herein, the exact amount of which will be extremely difficult to ascertain.  Accordingly, if any sum ...

	6. Permitted Use.
	(a) Use.  Tenant shall occupy and use the Property only for the purposes of professional services, and for no other use or purpose whatsoever without Landlord's prior written consent.
	(b) Compliance with Law and Landlord Rules and Regulations.  Tenant shall, at all times and at Tenant's expense, comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, and orders, and all covenants and restrictions of record reg...
	(c) Condition of Premises.  Tenant has examined the Premises, including any furniture, fixtures, and improvements contained within the Premises and agrees to take possession in an "as is" condition.  Tenant acknowledges and agrees that Landlord has ma...

	7. Hazardous Waste and Trash Disposal.  Tenant shall not use, generate, store or dispose of any Hazardous Materials on the Premises, Property, or Common Areas, or permit the contamination of the Premises, Property, or Common Areas by Hazardous Materia...
	8. Tenant's Repair and Maintenance Obligations.
	(a) Obligations.  Tenant shall, subject to Section 10 of this Lease, at all times during the Lease term keep the Premises in good order, condition and repair, and in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and orders, including any suc...
	(b) Emergency Repairs, Waiver.  Landlord also has the right, but not the obligation, to make emergency repairs and to enter the Premises at any time to do so.  To the extent permitted by law, Tenant waives any and all rights to make repairs at Landlor...
	(c) Common Areas.  In the event that Tenant or its agents, employees, or invitees, damage the Common Areas, or violate any of Tenant's obligations or duties under this Lease with regard to the Common Areas, including but not limited to not keeping the...
	(d) Waiver of Right to Make Repairs at Landlord's Expense.  To the extent allowed by law, Tenant waives the right to make repairs at Landlord's expense under any law, including, but not limited to, Sections 1932, 1933, 1941, and 1942 of the California...

	9. Surrender.  On the last day of the Term of this Lease, or on the date this Lease is earlier terminated, Tenant shall surrender the Premises to Landlord in the same or better condition as when received, ordinary wear and tear and damage by casualty ...
	10. Landlord's Repair and Maintenance Obligations.
	(a) Common Area and Premises Maintenance.  Landlord shall maintain the foundations, structure, exterior walls, and roof (excluding the interior ceiling) of the Common Area and the Premises at Landlord's cost, except to the extent such maintenance is n...
	(b) Landlord's Right to Undertake Tenant's Obligations.  If Tenant fails to perform any of Tenant's obligations under any paragraph of this Lease, Landlord may, at its option (but shall not be required to), enter upon the Premises after ten (10) days'...

	11. Damage to Premises.
	(a) Insured Casualty.  If the Building and/or Property is damaged by fire or other perils covered by Landlord's extended coverage insurance, Landlord shall:
	i. In the event of more than 50% destruction, have 45 days thereafter in which to elect, at Landlord's sole option, to repair, reconstruct and restore the Premises, and, if Landlord elects to restore, Landlord shall have 270 days from the date of dest...
	ii. In the event of a partial destruction of the Building, to an extent not exceeding 49% of the full replacement cost thereof, if the damage thereto is such that the Building may be repaired, reconstructed or restored within a period of 90 days from ...

	(b) Uninsured Casualty.  If the Building and/or Property is totally or partially destroyed from a peril not covered by Landlord's extended coverage insurance, Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, to restore the premises by giving not...
	(c) Release.  Upon any termination of this Lease under any of the provisions of this Section 11, the parties shall be released thereby without further obligation to the other from the date possession of the Premises is surrendered to Landlord except f...
	(d) Force Majeure.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this paragraph, should Landlord be delayed or prevented from repairing or restoring the damaged Premises within one year after the occurrence of such damage or destruction by re...
	(e) Extent of Repair.  It is hereby understood that if Landlord is obligated to or elects to repair or restore as herein provided, Landlord shall be obligated to make repairs or restoration only of those portions of the Building and/or Property and th...
	(f) Waiver.  The provisions of California Civil Code Section 1932, Subsection 2, and Section 1933, subsection 4, are hereby waived by Tenant.
	(g) Eminent Domain.  If the whole of the Premises, or such part thereof as shall substantially interfere with Tenant's use and occupancy thereof, shall be taken for any public or quasi-public purpose by any lawful power or authority by exercise of the...
	(h) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 11, Landlord shall not have any obligation whatsoever to repair, reconstruct or restore the Premises when the damage resulting from any casualty covered under this Section 11 occur...

	12. Alterations, Improvements and Additions.
	(a) Alterations, Consent Required.  Tenant shall not make any alterations, improvements, or additions, including Utility Installations, or hang or paint any signs visible from the exterior of the Property, without Landlord's prior written consent.  Te...

	The term "Utility Installations" shall mean installation of carpeting, window coverings, air lines, power panels, electrical distribution systems, lighting fixtures, space heaters, air conditioning, plumbing, and structural changes.  If Landlord autho...
	(b) Timing of Work.  All such work done pursuant to this Section shall be done at such times and in such manner as Landlord may determine.
	(c) No Warranty.  Neither Landlord's approval or supervision of any alterations, additions, or improvements or the use of any contractor or equipment, fixtures, or equipment selected by Landlord, shall be deemed a warranty as to the design, workmanshi...
	(d) Ownership of Improvements.  All alterations, improvements, or additions upon the Premises, made by either party, shall, unless otherwise indicated by Landlord, become the property of Landlord, and shall remain upon and be surrendered with the Prem...

	13. Utilities / Services.
	(a) Subject to any other provisions contained in this Lease and to any rules and regulations subsequently adopted by Landlord, Landlord, at its sole cost and expense, will provide for Tenant's use garbage bins (to be located outside the Premises) for ...
	(b) Tenant may not, without the prior written consent of Landlord, install any additional electric outlets or water pipes.  If Tenant requires excess electricity or any other resource in excess of what is customarily supplied for use in a professional...
	(c) Landlord is not in default or liable for any damages directly or indirectly caused from interruption of utilities or services, and in no event shall such interruption of services constitute Landlord's default, entitle Tenant to terminate the Lease...
	(d) Tenant shall be solely responsible for providing all telephone, satellite, internet or other telecommunications services necessary for Tenant's use of the Premises.  Any installation of cabling, satellite dishes or other equipment shall be subject...

	14. Release of Claim For Relocation Benefits.  Tenant hereby acknowledges and agrees that Tenant has no claim or right to relocation benefits or compensation of any kind or nature upon termination of this Lease for any reason, even if such termination...
	15. Insurance
	(a) Workers Compensation Insurance.  Tenant shall procure and maintain Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by the laws of the State of California.
	(b) Liability Insurance.  For the Term of the Lease, Tenant shall obtain and keep in full force and effect general liability insurance, insuring Landlord and Tenant against any liability arising out of the ownership, use, occupancy or maintenance of t...
	(c) Property Insurance.
	i. Prior to Tenant's entry upon the Premises and for the Term of the Lease, Tenant shall obtain and keep in full force and effect a policy of insurance covering loss or damage to the Premises, in the amount of the full replacement value thereof, again...
	ii. Tenant shall also insure its fixtures, equipment and tenant improvements on the Premises at its sole cost and expense.
	iii. The limits of said insurance shall not, however, limit the liability of Tenant hereunder.
	iv. Any proceeds from such insurance shall be used to repair or replace the insured property.

	(d) Restrictions; Endorsements.  Tenant shall not do or permit to be done anything which shall invalidate the insurance policies during the Term of this Lease.  All policies of insurance shall be endorsed to:  (1) name Landlord (and at Landlord's opti...
	(e) Certificates of Insurance.  Prior to taking possession of the Premises, and at any other time upon Landlord's request, Tenant shall provide Landlord with copies of all policies or certificates of insurance for all insurance policies required by th...

	16. Indemnification, Release, Liens.
	(a) Indemnification.  Tenant shall indemnify, defend, reimburse and hold harmless Landlord from and against any and all demands, claims, losses, damages or liabilities of any kind or nature, including claims for damage to property or persons, includin...
	(b) Release.  Tenant hereby agrees that Landlord shall not be liable for, and hereby waives and releases Landlord from, any injury to Tenant's business or any loss of income therefrom or for damage to the goods, wares, merchandise or other property of...
	(c) Liens.
	i. Tenant shall keep the Premises free from any liens arising out of any work performed, materials furnished or obligations incurred by Tenant.  In the event that Tenant shall not within ten (10) days following the imposition of any such lien, cause t...
	ii. Landlord may require, at Landlord's sole option, that Tenant cause to be provided to Landlord, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, a completion bond acceptable to Landlord with respect to any improvements, additions, or alterations to the Premises....


	17. Assignment and Subletting.
	(a) Except as otherwise provided below, Tenant shall not convey, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, sublet or encumber any interest in the Premises during the Term of this Lease, nor allow any other person (the employees, agents, servants and invitee...
	i. Conditions of Landlord's Consent.  Without limiting the other instances in which it may be reasonable for Landlord to withhold Landlord's consent to an assignment or subletting, Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that it shall be reasonable for Landlo...

	(b) Bonus Rent.  Tenant shall pay to Landlord as Additional Rent under the Lease 90% ("Landlord's Share") of the Profit (defined below) on such transaction as and when received by Tenant, unless Landlord gives written notice to Tenant and the assignee...
	(c) Liability.  No assignment or subletting by Tenant, permitted or otherwise, shall relieve Tenant of any obligation under this Lease or any guarantor of this Lease of any liability under its guaranty or alter the primary liability of the Tenant name...
	(d) Any dissolution, merger, consolidation, or other reorganization of Tenant or sale which results in a change of controlling persons shall be deemed an assignment of this Lease.  Tenant may assign this Lease to a successor in interest upon the sale ...
	(e) Landlord's Recapture Right.
	i. Despite any other provision of this Section 17, Landlord has the option, by written notice to Tenant ("Recapture Notice") within 30 days after receiving any request for consent to an assignment or sublease, to recapture the Premises or portion ther...
	ii. Consequences of Recapture.  To determine the new Minimum Rent under this Lease if Landlord recaptures the Subject Space, the original Minimum Rent under the Lease shall be multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the Rentable Square Fee...


	18. Defaults and Remedies.
	(a) Defaults.  In addition to those items already designated to be a breach or default of this Lease elsewhere in the Lease, the occurrence of any of the following events shall be a material breach of this Lease and shall constitute an event of default:
	i. Abandonment, vacation, or surrender of the Premises by Tenant without Landlord's prior written consent (failure to occupy and/or operate the Premises for ten (10) consecutive days shall be deemed an abandonment and vacation, unless at least ten (10...
	ii. The failure by Tenant to make any payment of Rent or any reimbursement or payment required to be made by Tenant pursuant to this Lease, as and when due, where such failure shall continue for a period of three (3) days after written notice thereof ...
	iii. The failure by Tenant to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions or provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Tenant, if the failure has continued for a period of ten (10) days after Landlord demands in writing that Tena...
	iv. The making by Tenant of any general arrangement or assignment for the benefit of any creditor, Tenant becoming a "debtor" as defined in 11 U.S.C. 101; the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of Tenant's ass...
	v. Any financial statement or any representation given to Landlord by Tenant, or any assignee, subtenant, other transferee or successor of Tenant or any guarantor of this Lease, that proves to be materially false or misleading.

	(b) Remedies.  In the event of any such material breach or default by Tenant, Landlord may at any time thereafter, with or without notice or demand, and without limiting Landlord in the exercise of any right or remedy which Landlord may have by reason...
	i. Terminate the Lease on thirty (30) days' written notice to Tenant, in which case Tenant shall immediately surrender possession of the Premises to Landlord on the termination date specified by Landlord.  In such event, Landlord shall be entitled to ...
	(1) the cost of recovering possession of the Premises, including all attorneys' fees and court costs incurred, if any;
	(2) the worth at the time of award of any unpaid Rent which would have been earned at the time of such termination;
	(3) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid rent which would have been earned after termination until the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that Tenant proves could have been reasonably avoided;
	(4) the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid Rent for the balance of the Term after the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental loss that Tenant proves could be reasonably avoided;
	(5) any other amount necessary to compensate Landlord for all the detriment proximately caused by Tenant's failure to perform its obligation under this Lease or which in the ordinary course of things would be likely to result therefrom;
	(6) the expenses of reletting, including necessary renovation and alteration of the Premises, reasonable attorneys' fees, and any real estate commission actually paid in connection with such reletting; and
	(7) that portion of the leasing commission, if any, paid by Landlord for the unexpired Term of this Lease.

	ii. Maintain Tenant's right to possession in which case this Lease shall continue in effect whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned or vacated the Property.  In such event, Landlord shall be entitled to enforce all of Landlord's rights and remedies...
	iii. Pursue any other remedy available to Landlord at law or in equity.

	(c) If at any time during the Lease Term Tenant fails, refuses, or neglects to do any of the things provided to be done by Tenant, Landlord may, after notice (except in the event of emergency), do same, but at the expense and for the account of Tenant.
	(d) Default by Landlord.  Landlord shall not be in default of this Lease unless Landlord fails to perform an obligation required of Landlord within a reasonable time, but in no event less than 30 days after written notice by Tenant to Landlord and to ...

	19. Estoppel Certificate.  Within ten (10) days after any written request which Landlord may make from time to time, Tenant shall execute and deliver to Landlord a certificate together with such financial information relating to Tenant or any guaranto...
	20. Possessory Interest Tax.  Tenant hereby recognizes that this Lease may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation, and that Tenant may be subject to the payment of property taxes levied on such interest.
	21. Severability.  If any portion of this Lease is ruled by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect.
	22. Entire Agreement; Amendments.  This Lease contains all agreements of the Parties with respect to the Property.  No prior agreement or understanding pertaining to any such matter shall be effective, whether oral or in writing.  This Lease may only ...
	23. Notices.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Lease shall be in writing and given by personal delivery or by first-class mail to the address and person below.  Either Party may, by notice to the other, specify a different addre...
	24. Waivers.  The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Lease by Landlord shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any future breach of that same provision or of any other provision of this Lease.  Landlord's consent to, or approval of, any ...
	25. Holding Over.  Tenant has no right to retain possession of the Premises or any part thereof beyond the expiration or termination of this Lease.  If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises or any part of the Property after the expiration or te...
	26. Cumulative Remedies.  No remedy or election hereunder shall be deemed exclusive but shall, wherever possible, be cumulative with all other remedies available at law or in equity.
	27. Binding Effect; Choice of Law.  This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties, their personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns.  This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of ...
	28. Attorneys' Fees and Costs.  If either Party brings an action to enforce the Terms of this Lease or declare the rights of the Parties under this Lease, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover all costs and expenses incurred in such action...
	29. Right to Enter Property.  Landlord and Landlord's agents shall have the right to enter the Premises at reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the same, showing the same to prospective purchasers, lenders, or Tenants, and making such altera...
	30. Nondiscrimination.  Tenant covenants by and for itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through it, and this Lease is made and accepted upon and subject to the requirement that there shall be no...
	31. Quiet Possession.  Upon Tenant's payment of the rent for the Premises and observing and performing all of the covenants, conditions and provisions to be observed and performed under this Lease, Tenant shall be entitled to have quiet possession of ...
	32. Compliance with Landlord's Rules for Use of Property.  Tenant agrees that it will abide by, keep and observe all reasonable rules and regulations which Landlord may make from time to time for the management of the Property, Premises, and Common Ar...
	33. Signs.  Tenant shall not, without the prior written consent of Landlord, place, construct or maintain any sign, advertisement, awning, banner or other decoration on or visible from, or otherwise use the exterior of the Premises (including, but not...
	34. Subordination; Attornment.
	(a) This Lease, at Landlord's option, shall be subject and subordinate to any ground lease, mortgage, deed of trust, or any other hypothecation or security device now or hereafter placed upon the real property of which the Premises is a part and to an...
	(b) Tenant agrees to attorn to a mortgagee, trustee, ground landlord or other party who acquires ownership of the Premises by reason of a foreclosure of a mortgage, deed of trust or other hypothecation or security device.  In the event of such foreclo...
	(c) The agreements in this Section 34 shall be effective without the execution of any further documents, provided, however, that upon written request from Landlord, Tenant agrees to execute any documents reasonably required to separately document an a...

	35. Release of Landlord After Sale.  In the event of a sale or conveyance by the Landlord of the Premises, and the assumption of this Lease by the successor in interest to Landlord, Landlord shall be released, only with respect to such obligations of ...
	36. Miscellaneous Rules.
	(a) No sidewalks, entrance, passages, courts, elevators, vestibules, stairways, corridors or halls shall be obstructed or encumbered by Tenant or used for any purpose other than ingress and egress to and from the Premises or the building on the Property.
	(b) No awning or other projection shall be attached to the outside walls or windows of the building on the Property without the written consent of Landlord.  No curtains, blinds, shades, drapes or screens shall be attached to or hung in, or used in co...
	(c) No animal or bird of any kind is allowed in or to be kept in or around the Premises and Property.
	(d) No articles shall be put in front of or affixed to any part of the exterior of the building on the Property, no placed in public portions thereof without the prior written consent of Landlord.
	(e) No additional locks, bolts or mail slots of any kind shall be placed upon any of the doors or windows by Tenant, nor shall any change be made in existing locks or the mechanism thereof.  Tenant must, upon termination of the Lease, restore to Landl...

	37. No Third-Party Beneficiaries; No Other Relationship.  There are no intended or incidental third-party beneficiaries of this Lease.  This Lease is not intended to create any joint venture, partnership, association, or other relationship between the...
	38. Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute one and the same instrument and a fully executed Lease.
	39. Authority to Execute.  The individuals executing this Lease on behalf of each Party represent and warrant that they are fully authorized and legally capable of executing this Lease on behalf of that respective Party, and binding that Party thereto.
	40. Time of Essence.  Time is expressly declared to be of the essence of this Lease.
	41. Recording.  This Lease, or a memorandum of this Lease, shall not be recorded without the written consent of Landlord.
	42. Governing Law.  This Lease, and all matters relating to this Lease, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, without application of conflicts of laws provisions or principles.  Venue shall be in the County of San Bernardino.
	43. Incorporation.  All exhibits and recitals are incorporated into this Lease.
	44. Successors and Assigns.  This Lease shall be binding on each Party's successors and assigns.
	45. Termination; Merger.  The voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Tenant or a mutual cancellation thereof, or a termination by Landlord shall, at the option of Landlord, terminate all or any existing subtenancies or may, at the option of Lan...
	46. Severability.  Should any provision in the Agreement be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect.
	47. Principles of Interpretation.  No inference in favor of or against any party shall be drawn from the fact that such party has drafted any part of this Lease.  The parties have both participated substantially in its negotiation, drafting, and revis...



	12. Consider Approving Lease Agreement with Arrowhead Woods   
  Architectural Committee.  




